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Council acknowledges the Wallumedegal people of the Eora Nation as the
traditional custodians of all land and water of the Hunters Hill local
government area. 

Council pays respect to Elders past, present and future and extends this
respect to all Aboriginal peoples living or visiting the Hunters Hill local
government area.

A C K N O W L E D G E M E N T  O F  C O U N T R Y
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W E L C O M E

Welcome to Hunter's Hill Council’s Annual Report for 2019-

2020. This report provides a comprehensive account of

Council’s achievements and challenges during the year.

The report also provides an overview of Council’s financial

position and details performance against commitments as

set in the Community Strategic Plan 2018-2028 and

Operational Plan 2019-2020.

It demonstrates the breadth and diversity of services and

operations delivered to our community and provides an

insight into our financial position and decision-making

processes.

Council acknowledges the commitment and hard work

staff and volunteers undertake in delivering services to

Hunters Hill. This year's Annual Report serves to highlight

the range of skills and expertise that our staff bring in the

delivery of services to our community.

The report is prepared in compliance with the Local

Government Act 1993.

H U N T E R ' S  H I L L  C O U N C I L  
A N N U A L  R E P O R T  |   2 0 1 9 - 2 0 2 0



H U N T E R ' S  H I L L  C O U N C I L  
A N N U A L  R E P O R T  |   2 0 1 9 - 2 0 2 0



1 .Message from the Mayor
2 . M e s s a g e f r om  the Ge neral  Manag e r
3 . D e m o gr a p hic  Sna ps ho t    
4 .O u r  H u n t ers  Hi l l              
5 .Y e a r  i n  R eview      
6.Counci l  Cit izen Awards
7.Sponsorships Received              
8 .Community  Grants  Awarded 
9 . G r a n t s  R e ceiv e d             
1 0.  M a na g ing the Money   

10.1   Income and Expenditure            
10.2  Financial  Performance Measures            
10.3  Service Results                   
10.4  Capita l  Works 

1 1 .  O u r  C o u nci l       
11 . 1  Our  Counci l lors                 
1 1 .2  Counci l  Meetings and Decision-Making             
1 1 .3  Speaking on Behalf  of  Our  Community              
1 1 .4  Counci l lor  Al lowances and Expenses 
11 .5  Counci l lor  Professional  Development  
11 .6  Connecting with  Our  Community          

1 2.  O u r  P e o ple          
12.1  Equal  Employment  Opportunity              
12.2  Learning and Development       

1 3 .  O u r  A c hievements         
13.1  Our  Response to  COVID
13.2  Case Study:  Care Packages and Kindness Cal ls
13.3  Case Study:  Love Gladesvi l le
13.4  Case Study:  Moocooboola
13.5  Case Study:  Local  Strategic  Planning Statement

1 4 .  S t a t u to r y  and O the r  Inf ormation
14.1  Code of  Conduct
14.2  Publ ic  Access to  Information
14.3  Major  Contracts  Awarded
14.4  Pr ivate Works
14.5  Financial  Assistance
14.6  Mayoral  and Counci l lor  Fees
14.7  Overseas Vis its
14.8  Senior  Staff  Salar ies
14.9  Legal  Proceedings
14.10  Special  Levies
14.11  Detai ls  of  External  Bodies,  Companies and Partnerships
14.12  Companion Animals
14.13  Major  Contracts
14.14  Planning Agreements
14.15  Bushfire  Risk  Management  

1 5 .  D is a b i l i t y  Inclusi o n  Acti on  P lan     
A P P E N D I C X  A -   Co unci l ’s  2 019-20 20 aud it ed Financial

S ta tem en t s

TABLE OF CONTENTS
01
02
03
04
05
09
16
17
18
19
20
20
21
21

2 2
23
24
24
25
26
27

28
31
32

33
61
62
64
65
66

6 7
67
67
67
67
67
67
68
68
69
70
70
70
70
70
70

71
72

H U N T E R ' S  H I L L  C O U N C I L  
A N N U A L  R E P O R T  |   2 0 1 9 - 2 0 2 0



0 4H U N T E R ' S  H I L L  C O U N C I L  
A N N U A L  R E P O R T  |   2 0 1 9 - 2 0 2 0  

This year has been one unlike any other. Drought, bushfires

and storms notwithstanding, we faced unprecedented

challenges with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic, the

effects of which are expected to be felt for many years.

This presented challenges to our Council and the community

as a whole. But it is at times like these that the strong

foundations we have built, particularly in the past two years,

to be a sustainable and thriving organisation have come to

the fore. Indeed, Council returned a positive financial result

this year. 

As Mayor during 2019-2020, I was proud of our staff and the

people throughout Hunters Hill who safely continued service

provision during the COVID-19 lockdown period and beyond.

As an organisation, we offered assistance in response to the

pandemic and economic downtown, adopting a revised

financial hardship policy to support both residents and

businesses in Hunters Hill. We waived on-street dining fees

for local businesses, sporting field hire fees and community

centre and hall hire fees.

To support residents during COVID, we contacted 2,500

people as part of our 'kindness call’ program, to check in and

assist with service referrals where needed.

During the lockdown, a number of new virtual events were

held to support the community - from virtual yoga to

woodworking and bingo, as well as an ANZAC at Home

campaign.

In 2019-2020, we delivered more than $2million in capital

works, including footpaths, kerb and gutter, and roads and

traffic projects.

We also attended to sea walls, fencing and barriers, sewer

repairs, drainage improvements and community facilities

upgrades.

The groundwork was also laid for the opening of an

innovative community and library space in Hunters Hill. 

Our decision to enter a new library service joint use

agreement with Lane Cove Council, from 1 July 2020, not

only grants our residents access to all Lane Cove’s

extensive library services, but also delivers significant

savings to make possible the opening of The YARN, our

community and library space in Hunters Hill Village. 

The YARN is a place of innovation too – Council has

partnered with the University of NSW’s Sustainable

Materials Research and Technology (SMaRT) Centre to

transform waste materials otherwise destined for landfill

such as plastic, glass, corflute and textiles, into furniture,

building materials and decor for The YARN.

The NSW Government’s commitment to remove

contaminated materials from Nelson Parade for disposal at

an overseas facility, as part of remediation plans for the

former uranium processing site, was another major success

for Hunters Hill.

It has been a great pleasure working with Council staff and

Councillors and serving our residents. I am sure a bright

future is assured for our Municipality.

Mayor Mark Bennett

MESSAGE FROM THE MAYOR1.
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The COVID-19 pandemic presented a number of  challenges but

also opportunities. During the time that Australia closed its

borders and implemented a range of public health orders and

restrictions, Council provided financial support to our local

businesses and sporting and community organisations as well as

to the local community. 

I wish to acknowledge all the staff at Hunter's Hill Council for

their dedication and flexibility as we have worked to seamlessly

continue to deliver services and projects to our community.

 

The past 12 months have been a time of consolidation and

change for the organisation as we work to deliver on the

outcomes in the community strategic plan 'Your Vision for Our

Future'.

I look forward to continuing to work in partnership with the

Mayor and Councillors, and our passionate local community to

make Hunters Hill an even better place.

Lisa Miscamble - General Manager

Upgrading our IT to improve customer service and

organisational efficiency.

Progressing the Town Hall refurbishment works.

Adopting the Boronia Park Plan of Management.   

Commencing a new joint use library services agreement with

Lane Cove Council and the creation of The YARN community

and library space in Hunters Hill Village.

Establishing partnerships with the University of New South

Wales Circular Economy Innovation Network to deliver a

program focused on diverting materials from landfill – including

fit out of The YARN using circular economy products and as a

demonstration site for circular economy in action.

Partnering with Macquarie University and Touched by Olivia to

launch an intergenerational remembering  project. The five-

year collaboration will involve research into intergenerational

remembering, aiming to enable adolescents as oral historians

to act as conversational partners for older Australian adults.

Partnering with Play It Forward to progress both the objectives

in the Playspace Strategy with improved play spaces as well as

actions in the Disability Inclusion Action Plan.

Preparing our Digital Asset Management Plan: one of the first

councils nationally to have an interactive live Asset

Management Plan.

The year 2019–2020 was a period of continued  transformation and

consolidation. We implemented key projects arising from our

Operational Plan and organisational strategy to position Hunters

Hill to be sustainable and thriving into the future.

Key highlights included:

0 2
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Population 
ABS Estimate 2019

14,980* 2,350
Families Average household size

2.63

27.2% 24.8%
Aged between 0 - 17Aged 60+Houses

5,262

26%

3.3%

0.6%

Born Overseas

Non-English Speaking

Aboriginal or Torres Strait Islander

62% Full-Time Empoyement

Unemployed

Part-Time Employement34%

3.5%

43.7%
Earn more than 

$2,500 per  week

40% Tertiary educated

Have qualifications58.5% Local business with
more than 10 employees

2293

14.8%
Three Most Popular Industries

Science and Technology 

Health Care

Education13.7%
8.9%
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Profile ID ABS estimate - all other statistics based on 2016 census
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Hunters Hill is a leafy sandstone peninsula stretching from

Pittwater Road to Onions Point, at the convergence of the Lane

Cove into the Parramatta Rivers;  approximately 7 kilometres

from the CBD of Sydney.

The Municipality of Hunters Hill has a wonderfully rich and

diverse history, which precedes Federation and the formation

of the Commonwealth of Australia in 1901. 

The Aboriginal name for the land is Moocooboola, meaning

meeting of waters.

The original inhabitants of this area were the Wallumedegal

clan who used the Woolwich area for thousands of years prior

to European settlement.

It is likely that the name Wallumedegal or Wallumattagal was

derived from wallumai the snapper fish, combined with matta,

a word used to describe a place, usually a water place.

Early French settlers, including the Joubert brothers and

Gabriel de Milhau, were influential in gaining the proclamation

of Hunters Hill as a separate Borough in 1861 and much of the

character of the Municipality has developed since that time.

The Municipality includes the suburbs of Gladesville (part),

Henley, Hunters Hill, Huntleys Cove, Huntleys Point and

Woolwich. Visually, it is easy to see why the area is recognised

as Australia’s oldest garden suburb, with more than 70% of the

Municipality declared a conservation area.

Our residents enjoy many lifestyle assets - from the bushland,

to Sydney Harbour foreshore and vibrant local villages. The

area exudes beauty, both on and off the streets. Boasting

many heritage-listed homes, sandstone workers cottages and

waterfront homes, Hunters Hill is home to a community that

has been nurtured by generations.

 

Today, Hunters Hill has a population of 14,980 (ABS est. 2019)

and is well known for its schools, accessible location, open

spaces and community spirit. The area brings great value and

satisfaction to residents and the wider community.
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4.  OUR HUNTERS HILL
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MOOCOOBOOLA
(15K PEOPLE)

$10K GRANT
FROM VETERANS
AFFAIRS / NSW

DEPT OF
COMMUNITIES

AND JUSTICE FOR
WAR MEMORIAL

REPAIRS

RENEWED 
SECTIONS OF

FOOTPATHS IN 
ASTON STREET

AND GLADSTONE
AVENUE

ESTUARY GRANT -
COUNCIL RECEIVED A
PLANNING, INDUSTRY

& ENVIRONMENT
GRANT UNDER THE

ESTUARY
MANAGEMENT
PROGRAM FOR

$30,000 OVER 2
YEARS. 

MAJOR ASPHALT PATCH
WORKS WITHIN THE LGA 

• WOOLWICH ROAD
• VERNON STREET

• CORNER OF MOUNT
STREET AND STANLEY

ROAD
• PRINCES STREET
• PITTWATER ROAD

COMMEMORATION
OF THE

CENTENARY OF
PLANTING THE

WAR MEMORIAL
TREE
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Over the past year, Council has delivered a range of events, projects and
capital works that contribute to delivering on our community’s vision to be
friendly, responsible, thriving and proud.

This section provides a summary of key projects and capital works, events
and awards, grants received and a summary of financial performance.

5.  YEAR IN REVIEW

AUGUST 2019JULY2019 SEPTEMBER 2019

BUS SHELTER
AND ADVERTISING
 CONTRACT WITH

OOH!MEDIA

RESURFACING
GLADESVILLE

ROAD AND
BURNS BAY

ROAD
INTERSECTION
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TARBAN CREEK
FLYING FOX

CAMP
MANAGEMENT

PLAN

ANALYSED
ROAD AND
FOOTPATH
NETWORK

CONDITION 

RESTORATION OF
PAVING WORKS
VICTORIA ROAD,
FERRY STREET

LOVE GLADESVILLE -
A UNIQUE

PARTNERSHIP
BETWEEN HUNTER'S
HILL COUNCIL, CITY

OF RYDE,
GLADESVILLE
CHAMBER OF
COMMERCE

12 NEW 
CITIZENS

RESOLVED TO
ENTER A
LIBRARY

AGREEMENT
WITH LANE COVE

LIBRARY
SERVICES



ROAD
RESURFACING

ELLESMERE AVE,
UNWINS LANE

FIGTREE
 PARK
WORKS
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BORONIA PARK
CHRISTMAS CAROLS

DECEMBER
2020

4.  YEAR IN REVIEW NOVEMBER
2019

OCTOBER
2019

WOOLWICH
 BATHS 
WORKS

REPAIR OF COMMUNITY
FACILITIES

- 9 CHURCH ST AND
RIVERSIDE PRESCHOOL

LED LIGHT
REPLACEMENT
PROGRAM WITH

AUSGRID TO
IMPROVE ENERGY

EFFICIENCY
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WEIL PARK HALL
MAINTENANCE

NATIVE
 STINGLESS 

BEE HIVE

COMMUNITY
CONSULTATION

- HENLEY POP UP
AND BORONIA

PARK POM

FUNDRAISING AND
SOCIAL SUPPORT

FOR REGIONS
AFFECTED BY
BUSHFIRE AND

DROUGHT
INCLUDING

PENPAL PROGRAM

THANKING OUR
COMMUNITY
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PARTNERSHIP 
 WITH UNSW 

CIRCULAR 
ECONOMY

MARCH
2020

FEBRUARY
2020

JANUARY
2020
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AUSTRALIA DAY

SENIORS WEEK

RECOGNITION OF
OUR SES

VOLUNTEERS AND
THE WORK THEY

DID THROUGH THE
STORMS TO KEEP
COMMUNITY SAFE

YOUTH  FORUM

COULTER 
STREET 
PARTY

DRAFT

SUPPORT FOR
REGIONS

AFFECTED BY
BUSHFIRE 

ADVOCACY 
FOR OUR 

COMMUNITY



MOOCOOBOOLA
(15K PEOPLE)

2018

0 1

JUNE 2020

BOAT TRAILER
POLICY

MEETINGS
 VIA ZOOM
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MAY 2020APRIL 2020
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ADY STREET
 PARK

HUNTERS
 HILL HUNT

DRIVEWAY
 PROJECT

HUNTERS CHILL

CARE 
PACKAGES

BORONIA
 PARK
 POM

HENLEY 
COMMUNITY

CENTRE 
WORKS

VICTORIA ROAD
 RE-PAVING

ONLINE 
CITIZENSHIP 
CEREMONY

$2MIL IN 
CAP WORKS 
2019 -2020



2020 Hunters Hill Citizen of the Year
Gay Harris

This award recognises an individual who, through their efforts, has made an
outstanding contribution to the community.

Gay works tirelessly as a volunteer at IRT aged care facility located at
Woolwich. She assists with many outings and events for the elderly residents.
Gay's weekly movie afternoon, accompanied by her delicious home-made
afternoon teas are very popular.

Gay, on what it means to receive the Citizen of the Year award:

“It’s lovely that community-level volunteers are appreciated and valued. When
you have the spare time, and health to do it, community service is a really
wonderful and satisfying thing; it’s just a matter of finding the direction, and
community need that is the right fit for you. I have many vivid family memories
of volunteer activities from childhood and adolescent days; it was a
fundamental part of my old NZ mother’s life – she called it Public Service Time.
The concept of it was private individuals, helping in a modest local community
environment, at a grass roots level. Today we call it volunteering; but the
principle, to me, is the same. I started retirement life volunteering at Royal
Prince Alfred Hospital; I ’d spent a lot of time sitting there in the chemo and
radiotherapy treatment areas with my husband, and it seemed like a good
place to help with community service. But it just wasn’t right for me. Then, a
good friend’s Mum had to move to aged care, and my friend asked me to help
her old Mum settle in to the new unknown environment. And so began my
volunteer association with IRT Woolwich aged care home. That was nearly
seven years ago. I help with anything that adds value to the residents’ day-to-
day lives: things like recreational activities, local Hunters Hill outings,
shopping, medical appointments, trips to the library, or just being a person to
talk to, or make a cup of tea. I highly recommend, and commend experiencing
what pleasure and fulfilment, that volunteer involvement can bring to you.”

Gay's contribution has facilitated the well-being of residents, 
encouraging participation so they can continue to be active
members of the community.
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2020 Hunters Hill Young Citizen of the Year
Jordyn Richards

This Award recognises outstanding work or achievement among younger

members of our community 25 years of age or under.

Jordyn has made a truly invaluable contribution over a number of years in

service to the local community through the arts, as a talented singer and

performer.
 

Jordyn has excelled as a talented singer, songwriter and performer,

demonstrating the traits of perseverance, dedication, hard work and passion.  

When she was in primary school, at Boronia Park Public School, Jordyn was

selected to perform a solo on the Opera House Concert Hall stage in the Ryde

Schools Spectacular event.  
 

Since those early days, she has gone on to win awards at many major

competitions, competing and placing in multiple categories of the Sydney,

Ryde, Hornsby and Northern Beaches Eisteddfods between 2011-2019.  In 2019

she placed first in the Sydney Eisteddfod in the Song Contest, performing her

original song at Circular Quay in front of 50,000 people.  
 

Jordyn was selected through a rigorous audition process as a member of the

2018-19 Talent Development Project, a joint initiative between the NSW

Department of Education and the entertainment industry.  
 

As a senior student at Riverside Girls High School, Jordyn is an outstanding

student and role model, excelling in her studies, and involving herself in a

host of extra curricular activities. She was elected as school Performance

Captain. Jordyn placed first in both Music and Drama in Year 11.  
 

Importantly Jordyn has performed at many community events over the years,

including the Moocooboola Festival, Carols in the Park, Hunters Hill Food and

Wine Fair, Hunters Hill Street Feast, as a guest performer with local

community choir Mamas & Co., and at several Hunter's Hill Council Australia

Day citizenship ceremonies.  
 

She is extremely active as a volunteer performer in local events, giving up her

time to provide quality entertainment to enhance these occasions.

0 1
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2020 Hunters Hill Community 

Project of the Year
Hunters Hill Historical Society 

This award recognises achievements of groups within the community

for any not-for-profit projects held during 2019. 

  

The Hunters Hill Historical Society researched and published the

booklet “A Brief History of Hunters Hill”. This is an important

capture and archive of our community’s history and the Historical

Society is ensuring  that it is freely available for our community.

 

The Society has worked tirelessly over many years running our

Museum and also collecting and disseminating matter of historical

interest to the local community. We appreciate the hard work of the

Society in preparing this booklet which is a companion piece to its

previous publication, "Hunters Hill Heritage Walks".

We also acknowledge the generous donation from the Mostyn

Family Foundation which enabled this project to proceed and

Beverley Sherry for her enormous contribution in producing the

booklet.

Please enjoy reading about the history of our beautiful Municipality

which was founded in 1861 and had been described as Australia's

oldest garden suburb."
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Young in Art 2019 - Young in Art is a long-running event in
Hunters Hill exhibiting artworks from all of the eight local
schools: Hunters Hill Public School, Gladesville Public
School, Boronia Park Public School, Villa Maria Catholic
Primary School,  Hunters Hill High School, Riverside Girls
High School, Marist Sisters College and  St Joseph’s
College.

JUNIOR

Overall First Prize:    
Boronia Park Public School ‘Towering Above’

 Overall Runner Up: Charlotte  
Hunters Hill Public School ’Delightful Idea’

Kindergarten Highly Commended: Omri 
Boronia Park Public School ‘King of the Jungle’
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JUNIOR CONTINUED...

Kindergarten Commended: 
 Boronia Park Public School ’Funny Frog’

Years 1 & 2 Highly Commended: Noelle
Villa Maria Catholic Primary School

‘Indigenous Bark Painting’

Years 1 & 2 Commended: Harry
Hunters Hill Public School ‘Sunshine’

Years 3 & 4 Highly Commended: Claudia
Gladesville Public School ‘Town on the

Lake’

Years 3 & 4 Commended:  Zoe
Hunters Hill Public School 'Modigliani Me'

Years 5 & 6 Highly Commended: Ashleigh
Gladesville Public School ‘Blue Willow

Vase’

Years 5 & 6 Commended: Edward
Gladesville Public School ‘Inferno’

Groupwork Highly Commended: Class 3H 
Boronia Park Public School ‘Catastrophe’

 Groupwork Commended: Year 4 
Villa Maria Catholic Primary School ‘Study

of White on Black’
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SENIOR

Overall First Prize:  Dylan
 Hunters Hill High School ‘Figures’

Senior Overall Runner Up: Hannah
 Hunters Hill High School ‘Untitled (Horses)’

Years 7 & 8 Highly Commended: Hugo
St Joseph's College ‘Untitled’

Years 7 & 8 Commended: Isabella
Hunters Hill High School ‘Don't Trip on the Shadows’

Years 9 & 10 Highly Commended: Sarita
Hunters Hill High School ‘Counting on Time’

Years 9 & 10 Commended: Millie
Hunters Hill High School ‘Inner Feelings’

Years 11 & 12 Highly Commended: Gemma
Hunters Hill High School ‘Take a Trip Through Wonderland'

’

Years 11 & 12 Commended: Ruby
Marist Sisters College ‘The Mushroom Garden’

Sculpture Highly Commended: Ruby
 Marist Sisters College ‘Early Bird Gets the Plastic’

Sculpture Commended: Louise 
Riverside Girls High School ‘Don’t Dump Me’

Groupwork Highly Commended: Year 8: Cleo,
Natasha, Sophie, Lachlan, Amber, Tyler, Madeline,

Caterina, Robbie, Milla, Rayyana - 
Hunters Hill High School Untitled (Birds)

Groupwork Commended: Year 8: Sophie, Scarlet, Greta,
Sam, Polina, Sena, Keona, Manuel -

Hunters Hill High School ‘Untitled
(Scratchboard)’

Photo / Digital Media: Highly Commended:  Maxim  
Hunters Hill High School ‘Untitled’

Photo / Digital Media Commended: Darcey 
Hunters Hill High School ‘I 'm Down Here’
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HUNTERS HILL ART EXHIBITION 2019

McGrath Estate Agents Hunters Hill - $8,000
Hunters Hill Private Hospital - $2,000
Ryde MG - $2,000
United Resource Management - $2,000
Hunters Hill Medical Practice - $1,000
See the Dentist - $1,000
MacMORGAN Next Practice Marketing - $500
Mark and Lydia Bennett - $375

7.  SPONSORSHIPS RECEIVED

MOOCOOBOOLA 2019

Hunters Hill Hotel - $5,000
United Resource Management - $5,000
Ryde Isuzu - $2,900

Council has appreciated the generous support from a
range of sponsors in 2019-2020 to support the delivery
of our signature events to the community.
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Council contributes funds to a wide range of organisations and
community groups under section 356 of the Local Government
Act 1993. Grants and donations totalling $11,976 were
distributed:

$800 Gladesville Occassional Care 
$800 Hunters Hill Quilters 
$800 Hunters Hill Historical Society
$800 Hunters Hill Scouts
$800 Bennelong Reconcilliation Group
$800 Hunters Hill Croquet Club
$776 Moocooboola Computer Club
$800 First Boronia Scouts 
$800 Sydney Community Services
$800 Stryder
$800 Hunters Hill Music
$800 Hunters Hill Tennis Club
$800 Yourside
$800 Streetwork
$800 Happy Hens

Council allows $1,500 to support individual athletic participation
from the local area. This grant was not used in 2019-2020. 

8.  COMMUNITY GRANTS AWARDED
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FUNDING BODY/PROGRAMPROJECT TITLE

Funding Body/Program Funding

2019-20 Crown Reserves Improvement Fund 
Program 

FUNDING BODY/PROGRAMPROJECT TITLE

Habitat Restoration along the lower Parramatta
River Estuary - Stage 2

Hunters Hill War Memorial Revitalisation

Gladesville Reserve - Sports Upgrade

Local Roads Community Infrastructure Program

Local Council Transition Fund (LCT Fund)

Designing with Country for the Parramatta River
Catchment

Minister for Planning and Public Spaces

Community War Memorials Fund - Office of 
Vetran Affairs

Office of Sport

Minister for Infrastructure, Transport and 
Regional Development - Hon Michael McCormack MP

NSW Environment Protection Authority (EPA)

Parramatta River Catchment Group

Project Title Funding Body/Program

Council advocates for funding from Australian and NSW
governments to assist Council to build infrastructure and
provide services for our community. During 2019-2020, Council
was successful in receiving over $2.3 million in grant funds.

Grants received during the year include:

9. GRANTS  RECEIVED

1 8

Department of Planning, Industry and Environment
Coastal Esturary Program Implementation Stream

Boronia Park $22,000, Buffalo Creek $11,000, 
Ferdinand Street $11,000

$30,000

$10,000 - Council to match

$2 million to be implemented by 2023

$92,935

$ 180,000 (ex GST)

$5,000

Funding
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Council manages finances on behalf of our community and is
committed to responsible financial management.

During 2019-2020, Council managed income of $18.4 million
of which 67% ($12.3 million) was collected from rates and
domestic waste charges. Operating expenditure of 
$17.1 million was used to provide Council services, resulting
in a net operating surplus of $1,296,000 for the year. When
capital grants and contributions are deducted from income
the result is a $531,000 surplus.

For comparison, results for the last four years are:

A copy of the Council’s 2019-2020 audited Financial
Statements is attached under Appendix A.

In addition to the ongoing provision of services, the value
of Council’s capital program was expanded this year with
$3.4 million spent on building new assets or improving the
condition of existing assets, such as roads and footpaths.
This is compared with expenditure of $1.6 million in 
2018-2019.  
 
The end-of-year cash balance increased by $0.5million to
$23 million, with $12.6 million of this untied to any specific
purpose. These funds, together with property initiatives,
resource-sharing savings and service improvements, will
be important in securing a sustainable long-term financial
position for the Council.

Income 2019-20

1 0 .   M A N A G I N G  T H E  M O N E Y
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Council uses several measures to track its financial and
asset management performance. They include measures
used by the NSW Government to assess performance
against its Fit for the Future criteria.

Council met all six financial measure benchmarks,
demonstrating very good cash liquidity, no debt and an
acceptable level of unpaid rates and annual charges at the
end of the year. This result was largely due to a one-off 
$1 million payment associated with the successful
negotiation of a bus shelter contract. 

During 2019-2020 Council initiated reforms to help bring
future years’ results into surplus, without compromising
service delivery. These changes continue and include a
focus on the capacity for Council-owned property to
produce ongoing increased revenue, resource sharing with
other councils and technology improvements to increase
efficiency and improve customer experience. 

This financial year, Council also continued to diversify its
financial investment strategy, moving from short term
deposits to medium term financial instruments. The cash
expense cover, as a result, has decreased from last year
due to the reclassification of cash to investing activities as
part of the introduction of the new accounting standards.

Whilst infrastructure asset performance measures have
improved, they are still below the target benchmark ratio. In
2019-2020, actual condition assessments were completed
enabling a far more accurate picture of the condition of
these assets and the cost to bring them up to a satisfactory
standard. 

1 0 . 2  F I N A N C I A L
P E R F O R M A N C E  M E A S U R E S

Expenditure 2019-2020

2 0

The work will also inform consultation with our community
regarding service levels for our assets including roads,
footpaths and buildings, and how any asset enhancements
can be paid for.



The following table compares the actual 2019-2020 income
and operational expenditure to that budgeted at the start of
the year. It is summarised by the cost centres included in
Council’s Delivery Program.

OPERATIONAL INCOME 2019-2020

OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE 2019-2020

Work in progress

Buildings

Footpaths

Stormwater drainage

Maintain Character & Manage
Growth Planning

Focus on the Community

521

1,123

3,148

Make Getting Around Easier

Total

1,330

10,561

16,683

2019-20 ACTUAL 2019-20
($'000)

Maintain Character & Manage
Growth Planning

Focus on the Community

1,189

3,840

3,893

Make Getting Around Easier

Total

3,694

4,489

17,105

2019-20 ACTUAL 2019-20
($'000)

Capital expenditure in 2019-2020 totalled $3.4 million, of
which $3,192,000 was for asset renewals and the balance for
new assets.

Further details of capital works expenditure can
be found in Section 14.10 – Special Levies and under
Appendix A.
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2019-20 EXPENDITURE ($'000)

Plant and equipment

Office equipment

1,394

187

63

ASSET TYPE

Other structures

Roads

88

113

393

Kerb & guttering

Other road assets

299

177

406

TOTAL

259

13,379

BUDGET 2019-20 ($'000)

Manage & Preserve Our
Environment

FUNTIONS & ACTIVITIES

Leadership & Governance

476

1,018

3,226

3,349

10,327

18,396

BUDGET 2019-20 ($'000)

Manage & Preserve Our
Environment

FUNTIONS & ACTIVITIES

Leadership & Governance

1,296

3,496

3,748

4,081

4,479

17,100



Our Council consists of a popularly-elected Mayor and six

councillors, the General Manager and staff, all working

together to implement our community’s vision to protect and

enhance the integrity, character and visual amenity of the

Hunters Hill Municipality through leadership, community

involvement and the pursuit of excellence.

0 1

Clr Jim Sanderson

Advisory Committees
Hunters Hill Access Inclusion Seniors Advisory Group
Bushland Management Advisory Committee
Conservation Advisory Panel

External Committees
Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils (NSROC)
Roads and Maritime Services Consultative Forum
Local Government NSW Annual Voting Delegate
Civic Risk Mutual Insurance (alt)
Hunters Hill Local Area Traffic Committee

Deputy Mayor from September 2019

Advisory Committees
School Principals Liaison Group
Property Advisory Committee

External Committees
Joint Regional Planning Panel
Hunters Hill Local Area Traffic Committee
Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils (NSROC)
Civic Risk Mutual Insurance
Hunters Hill Le Vésinet Friendship Committee
Sydney Harbour Councils
Local Government NSW Voting Delegate
Sydney North District Planning Panel
Remuneration Review Committee
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Clr Mark Bennett
Mayor
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Advisory Committees
Art Exhibition Advisory Committee
Bushland Management Advisory Committee
Children Services Committee
Conservation Advisory Panel
Floodplain Management Committee
Gladesville Main Street Committee
Hunters Hill Village Main Street Committee

External Committees
Sydney North District Planning Panel (alternate)
Remuneration Review Committee
Foreshores and Waterways Planning and Development Advisory Group
Parramatta River Catchment Group

Clr Ross Williams

1 1 . 1  Y O U R  C O U N C I L L O R S

Sunset Committees Working Groups
Library Services Working Party
Boronia Park Plan of Management Community Advisory Group

Advisory Committees
Children's Services Committee (alternate)
Events Committee
Gladesville Main Street Committee
Hunters Hill Village Main Street Committee
Property Advisory Committee
School Principals Liaison Committee (alternate) 

External Committees
Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils (alt)

Clr Elizabeth Krassoi

Sunset Committees Working Groups
Library Services Working Party

Advisory Committees
Children Services Committee
Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee
Property Advisory Group
Gladesville Main Street Committee

Clr Ben Collins

Advisory Committees
Art Exhibition Advisory Committee
Public Art Committee

External Committees
Northern Sydney Regional Organisation of Councils (alternate)
Remuneration Review Committee

Clr Justine McLaughlin

Clr Zac Miles
Sunset Committees Working Groups
Library Services Working Party
Boronia Park Plan of Management Community Advisory Group

Advisory Committees
Property Advisory Committee

2 3

Deputy Mayor until September 2019



Our community sets the vision for the future through the

Community Strategic Plan:  Your Vision for Our Future. In

response, the elected Council adopts a four-year Delivery

Program and one-year Operational Plan and Budget, which

outlines our commitment to implementing this vision.

Each year the General Manager, supported by staff, implements

the program of services, capital works and projects set out in the

annual Operational Plan and Budget.

Progress in implementing both the Delivery Program and

Operational Plan is monitored and reported to the community

every six months in the Six Monthly Performance Report and the

Annual Report.

The seven elected councillors, which includes the popularly-

elected Mayor, represent the interests of residents and

ratepayers. They provide community leadership and guidance,

channel communication between the community and Council, and

consider the issues facing the Hunters Hill Municipality, ensuring

that ratepayers’ money is allocated in the most effective way. 

This means balancing the needs of the community and the

needs of individuals, taking into account the long- and short -

erm implications of decisions. While individual councillors are

able to consult with their constituents and advocate on their

behalf, it is only as a collective that they can make decisions

affecting the Municipality. A decision of Council, which requires

a majority vote, is known as a resolution.

NSROC submission to Office of Local Government on the

IPART rating review report

Draft RMS Pay parking guidelines

IPART no.2 Review of Reporting and Compliance Burden on

Local Government

IPART Review on the Local Government Rating System,

 NSW 20-year Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy

Developer Contributions review

Emergency Services Levy - LGNSW has advised all councils of

the successful campaign to have the steep increases in the

2019-20 Emergency Services Levy dropped

Draft Discussion paper on Audit, Risk and                       

 Improvement Committees

Council is a member of the Northern Sydney Regional

Organisation of Councils (NSROC).

The NSROC assists member local councils to collaborate on key

issues and activities to generate social, environmental and

economic benefits for their communities and for the region as a

whole.

Through NSROC, Hunter’s Hill Council advocated on key areas of

interest and concern including:

1 1 . 3  S P E A K I N G  O N  B E H A L F
O F  O U R  C O M M U N I T Y
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Mayoral and Member fee allowance increases are frozen for five
(5) years going forward.

Delegate expenses are reduced to $1,000 per Councillor per year.

Savings are reallocated to asset renewal.

Allowances
The NSW Local Government Remuneration Tribunal is
responsible for categorising councils and determining the amounts
of allowances to be paid to councillors and mayors in each category.
There is normally a rise in the recommended allowance amount each
year. However, at the 11 May 2020 Ordinary Meeting of Council it was
resolved that the 2020-2021 Operational Plan and Budget (including
Long-Term Financial Plan) be amended so that:

       

 

Expenses

Council also covers some of the expenses incurred by

Councillors in the performance of their official duties. These

expenses include the provision of travel and accommodation,

catering and other items and activities directly related to

Council business. 

 

Our Councillors undertake regular and ongoing professional
development. 

Mayor Bennett 
Professional Development           
Council Strategic Workshop on 21/2 - 22/2/2020       $130.43  
Local Government NSW Conference 2019                     $763.64 
Sub Total                                                                                     $894.07

Councillor Williams
Professional Development
LG NSW Clr Training Workshop                                          $44.44
Council Strategic Workshop on 21/2 - 22/2/2020       $130.43 
Local Government NSW Conference 2019                     $863.64
Sub Total                                                                                     $1038.51

Councillor Krassoi
Professional Development
Council Strategic Workshop on 21/2 - 22/2/2020       $130.43 
Local Government NSW Conference 2019                     $763.64
Sub Total                                                                                     $894.07

Councillor McLaughlin
Lenovo laptop adaptor                                                          $70.91
Professional Development
Council Strategic Workshop on 21/2 - 22/2/2020       $130.43 
Sub Total                                                                                     $201.43

Councillor Collins
Professional Development
Council Strategic Workshop on 21/2 - 22/2/2020       $130.43 
Local Government NSW Conference 2019                     $763.64
Sub Total                                                                                     $894.07

Councillor Miles                
Professional Development           
Council Strategic Workshop on 21/2 - 22/2/2020       $130.43 
Local Government NSW Conference 2019                     $763.64 
Sub Total                                                                                     $894.07

Councillor Sanderson     
Professional Development           
Council Strategic Workshop on 21/2 - 22/2/2020       $130.43 
Local Government NSW Conference 2019 & 
Gala dinner                                                                                $863.64 
Financial issues in Local Government 30/10/19          $700.00
Sub total                                                                                     $1,694.07 
                                                                                  

1 1 . 4  C O U N C I L L O R  
A L L O W A N C E S  +  E X P E N S E S
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Clr Justine McLaughlin 

FUNDING BODY/PROGRAMPROJECT TITLE

Clr Ross Williams

Clr Zac miles

Clr Mark Bennett (Mayor)

Clr Ben Collins

Clr Elizabeth Krassoi

Clr Jim Sanderson

20,280

20,280

20,280

64,510

20,280

20,280

$201

$1,038

$894

$894

$894

$894

$1,694

Councillor Allowance Professional Development

20,280

TOTAL 186,190 $6,510



11.5 COUNCILLORS'
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary conflicts of interest
Managing conflicts of interest 
Promoting organisational integrity and  accountability

Our Councillors undertake regular and ongoing professional
development. Councillors are required to have been
provided with regular training and education in relation to
their requirement to “make all reasonable efforts to acquire
and maintain the skills necessary to perform the role of a
Councillor” (in accordance with the Local Government Act
1993).
 
Training over the past 12 months has included access to the
Local Government NSW resources and professional
development, Code of Conduct-based training on the Model
Code of Conduct, covering topics such as:

11.6 CONNECTING WITH OUR
COMMUNITY

Producing press releases, including a release after every
Council meeting
Conducting regular surveys
Producing weekly e-newsletters
Offering telephone feedback lines
Distributing information through our email database
Disseminating brochures, flyers and fact sheets
Postings on social media 
Advertising/public notices
Holding focus groups
Writing to community groups/businesses
Conducting precinct meetings
Placing draft plans, strategic policies on exhibition
Distributing community newsletters
Including regular items in local media

Council has been well placed to understand the needs and
wants of its community and prioritise these to ensure greater
resident confidence in its services. During 2019-2020 Council
undertook information and engagement across key projects
and services. Engagement included:

The following pages provide some examples of engagement
undertaken over the past 12 months.
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It was important for Council operations to continue as usual

once safe. The introduction of an online and interactive

mapping and survey tool assisted Council in reaching more of

our residents, and facilitating in  transparent dialogue. 

Council held focus groups using videoconferencing technology

and increased the frequency of hard copy newsletter delivery. 

The Kindness Call campaign assisted in updating the database

with current contact details, including email. 

Council have used the email database and weekly eNews to

provide residents the opportunity to participate in decision

making processes in Council. 

Corflute signage using QR code technology was erected on
location to encourage dialogue, and the pop up session has
begun re-emerging. 

Consultation - online and in person 

11.7 CONNECTING WITH OUR COMMUNITY

2 7

Youth Summit 2020

40 students from Riverside Girls High School and Hunters Hill
High School took over Town Hall on the 20 February 2020 for the
first Youth Summit. The students were challenged to develop an
idea that could change the world, in a small or large way.
Programs and projects have been developed with a number in
various stages of delivery. 
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A N N U A L  R E P O R T  |   2 0 1 9 - 2 0 2 0

2 7



Council is the governing body that appoints the General Manager.

The General Manager of Council leads the implementation of Council’s

strategic objectives and ensures that Council’s decisions are

actioned. The General Manager’s responsibilities include the effective

and efficient operation of Council, employment of Council staff and

management of resources.

Our workforce is led by the Leadership Team which consists of the

General Manager and a team of three Directors, who are responsible

for the delivery of a range of services across our community.  

The Directors (Finance and Corporate Strategy, Development and

Regulatory Services and Service Delivery and Special Projects)

provide strategic leadership and guidance. They also provide

professional workplace leadership by creating and maintaining an

environment where staff are valued, challenged and inspired to

achieve strategic objectives.

The General Manager, along with the three Directors and Manager 

 People Place + Projects and Manager People + Culture form the

Senior Leadership Team (SLT).

The team meets on a weekly basis to oversee policy development,

strategy and the overall management of Council. 

1 2 .   O U R  P E O P L E
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Senior Leadership Team
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Honesty Excellence  TeamworkAccountability Respect 

Council’s values are embedded into all our processes and are based on the
requirements of the Code of Conduct.  At Hunter's Hill Council, our values are
at the heart of what we do and who we are.  As such, we are represented by
the following core values:

Council Values

Asset management:
planning + delivery of
maintenance,
renewals + new
works
Waste + resource
management
Environment
Project management

 Deliver works +
organisational projects

FunctionsStrategic Land Use
Planning
Statutory Planning
Health + Building
Compliance +
Regulation

Align place + planning

Functions

Customer Services
Records
Finance
Information
Technology +
Communications

 How decisions are
made + ensure systems
+ resourcing is aligned
to strategy

Functions
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Recruitment +
Selection
Learning +
Development
Work Health and
Safety

 Supporting and
Empowering our team

Functions

Communication
Community
Consultation
Place Projects
Community Events

Placemaking,
Community Events and
Communication

Functions



Hunter's Hill Council is the smallest council in the Sydney
Metropolitan area. Our workforce for the period 1 July 2019 to 
30 June 2020 comprised of 52 full-time employees equivalent
(including permanent, part-time and casual employees). 
 
Given Council’s small size we recognise and understand the
value of our people. They are our most important asset. We are
committed to achieving a safe and rewarding workplace that is
free of unlawful harassment and discrimination.
 
Over the past 12 months Hunter's Hill Council has actively
sought best-practice solutions to deliver services and projects
to our local community. Our comprehensive training plan has
enabled Hunter's Hill Council employees to increase knowledge
and capacity to enable them to undertake a number of new
functions and projects. 

Effective collaboration with other councils and stakeholders
has provided innovative solutions, leading to the delivery of
more efficient and cost-effective services for the benefit of our
community.

Staff Numbers

Council also uses temporary roles as an adjunct to permanent
positions. These are additional to the organisation structure and are in
place to achieve a short-term outcome such as projects identified in
the Capital Works Program and the implementation of our new
Customer Services Management System.

Staff Age

The average age of staff has reduced in the last 12 months from 
 52 to 48 years. This reduction is due to the 13% retirement rate
of staff in the financial year 2019-20. 
 
Council continues to address the issue of diversity in the
workplace through initiatives such as traineeship programs,
internships, flexible working arrangements, family-friendly work
practices, and learning and development programs.

For the period 1/7/2019 to 30/6/2020 the average age for males
was 49 and the average age for females was 47.

Staff Turnover

For the period 1/7/2019 to 30/6/2020 staff turnover was 26%, of
which the majority was due to retirement.

3 0

Staff Gender and Diversity

For the period 1/7/2019 to 30/6/2020 the percentage of female
employees was 36.5% whilst the percentage of males is 63.46%

However, our part-time workforce was made up of 100%
females. Thereby, Council has been successful in appointing
women in the workforce seeking work/life balance.

70% of our Senior Leadership Team are women. This includes
the General Manager and a Director.

Overall Workforce

1 2 .  O U R  P E O P L E
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Hunter's Hill Council values and understands equity and

diversity in the workplace and expects its employees to treat

each other and members of the community with dignity and

respect, regardless of characteristics such as sex, marital

status, family responsibility or family status, race, religious

commitment, age or impairment.

 

Hunter’s Hill Council, through the implementation of an Equal

Employment Opportunity (EEO) Plan, seeks to identify and

eliminate all discriminatory practices both direct and indirect,

to maintain a workplace free of harassment.

 

Hunter's Hill Council has a strong commitment to EEO and

recruits and employs staff on the basis of merit. This provides

a diverse workforce and a workplace culture where people are

treated with respect. 

 

All employees are entitled to access employment, promotion,

training, transfers and benefits of employment on the basis of

merit. They are assessed on their skills, qualifications,

abilities, prior work experience and aptitude.

 

As a responsible employer, we are committed to taking

proactive measures to ensure our employees are afforded

equal access to employment, promotion and learning and

development opportunities within our workplace.

Review of the current EEO policy and plan 

Online EEO refresher training for all staff as part of the Code

of Conduct training program

Discussion of EEO requirements and demonstration  of

principles at the staff performance reviews

Communication of principles of EEO in monthly staff

newsletters

Our female outdoor worker was a finalist for the Minister’s

Award for Women in Local Government

Council events celebrating International Women’s Day

Implementation of EEO branding on all Council’s internal and

external recruitment advertising

Inclusion of EEO accountabilities and responsibilities on all

staff position descriptions

Inclusion of EEO information on Council’s website

In 2019-20, Council’s EEO Plan aimed to promote equal

employment opportunities for all employees of Hunter's Hill

Council with the introduction of several initiatives including:

 

The implementation of the EEO Plan has enabled Council to

create a diverse and skilled workforce that is built on values such

as equality and respect for all individuals.
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Code of Conduct training

Integrated Capability Framework

Recruitment and performance development

Disability awareness training x 2

Work Health and Safety

Financial report roadshows

Audit Risk and Improvement Committee training

Staff inductions

Excel training

Word training - Intermediate

Outlook training - Advanced

Mental Health at Work for Managers

Mental Health Awareness

Mental Health First Aid training

Introduction to Local Government

Employment Law Seminar

Traffic control accreditation

Leadership Development Program

Improving your Business Writing

Fire and emergency response procedures and training

Asbestos training

Improving your correspondence writing

Chemical awareness training

Local Government Parking Summit

BEST customer services training

First aid training

Chemical safety training

Annual Parks Seminar

Leadership development program seminars

Trapeze software training

InfoCouncil software training

Grant writing training

CRMS software training

Fire Warden training

Plan reading

Employment Law Seminar

Hunter's Hill Council is committed to the development of its employees

with the aim of building Council’s knowledge base and improving

Council’s efficiency and effectiveness.

Council conducts annual performance reviews and staff develop work

plans at this time. Individual training needs are identified at these

reviews and are captured in Learning and Development Plans. These

plans feed into Council’s Annual Training Calendar and to ensure

alignment to Council’s Community Strategic Plan.

Course type:

1 2 . 2  L E A R N I N G  +  D E V E L O P M E N T
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A Community Strategic Plan which sets out community and Council

goals and strategies for at least the next ten years.

A four-year Delivery Program that includes actions and performance

measures to achieve the goals in the Community Strategic Plan.

An Operational Plan that is a one-year instalment of the Delivery

Program.

A Resourcing Strategy that outlines how the financial, workforce and

asset management capabilities will be aligned to achieve the Delivery

Program. Council adopted these documents in July 2018, the first

three as a combined publication.

Leadership and Governance

Manage and Preserve our Environment

Make Getting Around Easier 

Maintain Character and Manage Growth Planning

Focus on the Community

Statutory Requirements

The Local Government Act requires all NSW councils to adopt a suite of

documents to satisfy Integrated Planning and Reporting (IP&R)

requirements. These  documents are:

Reporting Format

The Delivery program, as well as the other IP&R documents, are based

around five themes: 

        

Strategic objectives are included under each of these themes and they in

turn have a series of actions designed to achieve these objectives. The

following section provides progress on these actions, over the full year of

2019-2020. An icon is included against each action to indicate its status

(completed, progressing etc.). 

3 3

1 3 .   O U R  A C H I E V E M E N T S

2019-2020 has seen the continuation of a program of

reforms aimed at reviewing and streamlining processes

across the organisation, taking advantage of

contemporary technologies, reviewing and instigating

shared service arrangements, improving governance and

providing a new standard of customer experience. 

 

Whilst some initiatives were affected by COVID

restrictions in the second half of the year, the actions

undertaken, as detailed in attached Progress Report on

the Review of Delivery Program, have enabled the

organisation to more effectively deliver on the

community outcomes that are set out in the Community

Strategic Plan. The following pages contain a snapshot of

achievements and milestones reached in 2019-2020.
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This year Council commenced exploring a pilot project with

the University of NSW focused on promoting the circular

economy, which looks to minimise waste where discarded

products are reused for alternate purposes in the economy.

An additional 10 new Bushcare volunteers have joined the

Bushcare program, increasing the number to 75 volunteers.

Council, along with volunteers, have undertaken bush

regeneration at Boronia Park, Buffalo Creek Reserve,

Riverglade and Tarban Creek Reserve, Gladesville Reserve

and Betts Park, Kelly's Bush, Ferdinand St Reserve,

Mornington Reserve, Murray Prior Reserve, Woolwich Baths,

St Johns Park and Bedlam Bay.

Hunters Hill Bushland Management Advisory Committee met

three times in 2019-2020. Focus areas included biodiversity

actions from recently prepared Plans of Management and

presentation from the Nature Conservation Council on

planning for hazard reduction burns.

Stage 1 of the wildlife corridor project across sites from

Bedlam Bay to Kelly's Bush involved 272 planting volunteers

and 3,909 native species planted received commendation

from NSW Environmental Trust for community engagement.

Council has successfully continued third party agreements

in helping reduce the overall amount being sent to landfill.

This includes partnering with Bower who are a rehoming

service for home goods.

Council also shares management of the Community

Recycling Centre in Artarmon.  This is a free service for

Hunters Hill residents.

Improved protection of foreshores and waterways has

occurred through sea wall repairs being completed at

Woolwich Baths and Pulpit Point.

Annual parks maintenance program completed.

Manage and Preserve Our Environment
 

Council’s IT systems have been responsive to the changing needs

of the community with investment in expanding our remote

working facilities in response to COVID, and bringing all customer

service functions either online or through the customer call

centre.

In response to the COVID pandemic and economic downtown,

Council adopted a revised Financial Hardship Policy to support

both residents and businesses in Hunters Hill. Furthermore, a

relief package was resolved in areas such as street dining and

community hire fees.

IT transformation and efficiency in customer service and work

flow functions has continued throughout the year, with the

implementation of new digital platforms. Examples include

moving the Asset Management Plan to a cloud-based solution and

integration of the NSW DA Online Portal to Council IT systems.

Significant work has been undertaken to upgrade the Town Hall to

meet disability access requirements, as well as addressing work,

health and safety requirements in staff work areas. 

Council has continued to engage the community in open and

transparent communications. Additional methods of engaging

with the community have been deployed through additional social

media platforms and monthly newsletters for our residents.

Implementation strategy for a shared services arrangement with

Lane Cove Council for depot operations was resolved by Council in

May. 

Leadership and Governance 
·       
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Asset data collection, mapping and condition assessment audits

have been completed for Council’s new Asset Management Plan.

The Capital Works Roads Program was delivered with the

resurfacing of many areas within the community now

completed, including Unwins Lane and parks maintenance.

Council has commenced updating the Hunters Hill Bike Plan to

ensure cycle paths are well designed to meet current and future

infrastructure needs. The Plan will also align with Council’s Local

Strategic Planning Statement.

Park'nPay app has been launched in Hunters Hill, allowing drivers

to pay for their parking from their mobile phones at Clarkes

Point Reserve.

Make Getting Around Easier
        

The Draft Local Strategic Planning Statement (LSPS) was

exhibited ending on 25 October 2019 and adopted on 27 April

2020. Heritage statements, an action of the LSPS, were

completed and endorsed by the Greater Sydney Commission. 

Placed-based planning is a direction also adopted in the LSPS.

Actions implemented included Gladesville Shopping Village

improvements from Contribution Plan funds (s7.12) including

street pavement renewal, bins renewal, painting of street

furniture and planter boxes. 

Council continues to work with local businesses, City of Ryde

and the Gladesville Chamber of Commerce to promote the Love

Gladesville campaign. It has grown to 3,000 members and was

considered a valuable resource for the community in COVID

restrictions.

The next precincts to be activated are Beautiful Boronia and

Gorgeous Garibaldi.

Council adopted an updated s7.12 Contribution Plan at its 16

December 2019 meeting. The Plan, where contributions paid

under s7.12 of the NSW Environmental Planning & Assessment

Act are applied toward the capital cost of provision, extension

or augmentation of public facilities or services for the benefit

of the whole community.  

Adoption of the Hunters Hill Playspace Strategy, which was a

consolidation and review of a number of previous strategies at

Council, now informs the upgrade and program of playspaces

and surrounds.

Maintain Character and Manage Growth Planning
      

Boronia Park Plan of Management was adopted 27 April 2020. 

The draft Riverglade Reserve Plan of Management has been

prepared and has been submitted to Crown Lands for approval to

be placed on public exhibition. 

Due to COVID-19, Moocooboola and the Hunters Hill Food and

Wine Fair were cancelled. However, Council held its inaugural

Youth Summit in February and resolved to hold a new open-air

cinema event at Bedlam Bay.

During COVID restrictions, a number of new virtual events were

held to support the community such as Hunters Hill Connected

and an ANZAC at Home campaign.

The upgraded Customer Request Management System was

substantially completed during the year, improving recording and

workflows associated with implementing customer requests.   

Actions were undertaken to ensure a smooth transition to the

new Library Joint Use Agreement with Lane Cove Council.

Preparation of the draft agreement involved undertaking a

community survey to seek feedback on the types of programs

our community would like to see and liaising with UNSW

regarding the fit out of the library and community space to be

provided in Hunters Hill, which will include use of circular

economy materials.

Branding was developed for the community space and library

being located at Hunters Hill Village - The YARN. A campaign has

been launched using the brand, announcing that The YARN will be

opening later in the year.

To support residents during COVID, 2,500 residents were

contacted as part of the Kindness Call program, which assisted

with service referrals. Council also partnered with St George

Housing and delivered 100s of Care Packages of food donated by

Harris Farm Markets.

Focus on the Community
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Icons used for Action Status 

 Not due to start  

 Progressing – on schedule Project: project deliverables (timeframe, scope, budget etc) on track, approximately 75% 

underway, no remedial action required 

Program: nominated service standards being achieved, approximately 75% underway, 

no remedial action required 

Strategy: recommendations/actions on track, approximately 75% underway, no remedial 

action required 

Business case/commercial entity: projections for income/expenditure on track, 

approximately 75% achieved or higher, no remedial action required 

 Completed Project: project deliverables (timeframe, scope, budget etc) on track, approximately 90% 

complete or higher, no remedial action required 

Program: nominated service standards being achieved, approximately 90% complete or 

higher, no remedial action required 

Strategy: recommendations/actions on track, approximately 90% complete or higher, no 

remedial action required 

Business case/commercial entity: projections for income/expenditure on track, 

approximately 90% achieved or higher, no remedial action required 

 Progressing – behind 

schedule 

Project: project deliverables (timeframe, scope, budget etc) broadly underway, concerns 

are being addressed and do not require other remedial action 

Program: nominated service standards broadly being achieved, approximately 50%, 

concerns are being addressed and do not require other remedial action 

Strategy: recommendations/actions broadly being achieved, approximately 50%, minor 

concerns are being addressed and do not require other remedial action 

Business case/commercial entity: projections for income/expenditure on track, 

approximately 50% achieved, no remedial action required 

 Not progressing Project: project deliverables (timeframe, scope, budget etc) not on track, Council 

intervention or direction is required 

Program: nominated service standards cannot be met, Council intervention or direction is 

required 

Strategy: recommendations/actions cannot be met, Council intervention or direction is 

required 

Business case/commercial entity: projections for income/expenditure will not be 

achieved, Council intervention or direction is required 
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LEADERSHIP & GOVERNANCE        

Action 

Code 

Action Name Annual Comment Status 

Councils IT systems are responsive to the changing needs of our community 

1.1.1 Upgrade communication interface 

including CRM system 

 

 

Council has worked with its IT Service Provider to design an IT upgrade 

plan and budget to support implementation of new systems, including 

the Customer Request Management and Development application 

systems, as well as improve storage capacity and overall performance 

of the network. The plan will commence implementation in the 

September 2020 quarter. COVID work restrictions resulted in a massive 

effort to have staff working remotely and utilising the 3CX phone system. 



1.1.3 Investigate alternate options for a 

responsive HR/CSP management 

software solution 

 

 

Investigation complete 

 

Quote received and authorised - budget allocation for 2020/21 

financial year 

 

Discussions have been held with Pulse team regarding commencing 

implementation next financial year. 

 

Project plan is being prepared for implementation 



1.1.4 Implement software/hardware 

solution/s to allow for better 

communication and organisation 

of works staff 

 

 

This project is about providing a mobility solution for the efficiency of the 

works team.  Digital software will be implemented prior to shared depot 

arrangements commences. 

 

Training will be provided as part of the implementation process. Due For 

Completion 2nd Quarter 2020/21. 





Council provides a safe workplace and community facility  

1.2.1 Upgrade Town Hall 

accommodation  include a staged 

implementation plan to meet 

disability/access requirements 

 

 

Significant work was undertaken on the Town Hall and Administration 

areas to address major roof maintenance, compliance and 

accessibility issues as well as improve the  public / customer service 

area.  This has included: 

- roof and air conditioning work; 

-  accessibility improvements including installation of railing to 

enable access through the front doors, ambulant toilets, 

provision of a new accessible toilet and nappy change 

facility;  

- improved customer service area with additional meeting 

space and technology. 

- Addressing a number of long standing WH&S matters in the 

staff area. 



Council is recognised and respected as an open and transparent organisation 

1.3.1 Engage our community in 

conversation and provide timely 

and accurate information 

including maximising social media, 

advertising, print and face-to-face 

engagement options 

 

 

Over the year there has been significant expansion of the marketing 

and communications calendar, providing relevant and regular 

communication to our community through many channels. The COVID-

19 pandemic has challenged and pushed our calendar, and allowed 

the team to create meaningful conversations and connections online. 

In addition to weekly social media, enews and media releases, our look 

and feel in the local print media has been refreshed to communicate 

relevant news. New Facebook groups have been created. A monthly 

newsletter is being delivered to local residents.  
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Action 

Code 

Action Name Annual Comment Status 

1.3.2 Council and Councillors abide by 

the Code of Conduct, Code of 

Meeting Practice and  Local 

Government Act  

 

 

Council adopted the Office of Local Government Model Code of 

Meeting Practice.  A LGNSW online refresher course on the Code of 

Conduct was completed by Council staff and Councillors. The Annual 

Strategy session in February included hearing from the OLG on key 

issues and changes.  The majority of Councillors attended the LG NSW 

Annual conference which was at Warwick Farm.  Councillors have also 

been provided access to Professional Development in a box by LGNSW 

which allows them to create a development plan and links to 

professional development resources.  



1.3.3 Review, update and implement 

the Community Engagement 

Strategy and Communication Plan 

to reflect advocacy, transparency, 

communication and engagement 

 

 

Communication and engagement activities continued across the year. 

Social Pinpoint, an online engagement tool, has been introduced with 

great success. 190 unique comments and almost 3000 views of the 

project online, supported by the working party.  Council will continue to 

communicate the engagement strategy and make it easy for the 

community to participate in democracy. The draft Communications 

Strategy was prepared following the annual Councillor Strategy session 

in February.  Due to the need to refocus attention to the 

communications around COVID-19 the Community Communications 

and Engagement Strategy will be completed in the first quarter of 

2020/21 



1.3.4 Report quarterly to Council and 

the community on the progress of 

the Delivery Program, Operational 

Plan and associated Resourcing 

Strategy (LTFP, AMPs & Workforce 

Plan) 

Reporting has been conducted on a 6 monthly basis in line with OLG 

requirements. In 2020/21 reporting will be undertake on a quarterly 

basis. 



1.3.5 Implement Audit Risk and 

Improved Committee (ARIC) 

recommendations 

Progress with implementation of Audit Risk and Improvement 

Committee (ARIC) recommendations was reported to three of the four 

ARIC meetings during 2019/20. The recommendations include responses 

to external audits, Audit Office management letters, internal audits 

(including complaints and facility management) and the Continuous 

Risk Improvement Program. implementation of ARIC recommendations 

is part of Council's overall program and supports a focus on continuous 

improvement. 



Councillors are supported within a democratic governance framework 

1.4.1 Provide professional development 

opportunities for Councillors 

Ongoing professional development opportunities have been provide 

across the year. This has included attendance at LGNSW Annual 

Conference, seminars, presenters at the annual strategy session in 

February, through Councillor briefings.  Due to COVID-19 training is 

being provided via webinar, zoom or online training.   This has included 

a refresher in the Code of Conduct. 

Councillors are advised of training opportunities via the Councillor 

Bulletin and through OLG and LGNSW communications. 



There is a shared vision by Council and staff of continuous improvement  

1.5.1 Council has an appropriately 

trained, skilled and supported 

workforce to ensure a consistent 

level of quality customer care 

(Workforce Plan) 

Over the past 12 months staff have participated in a wide range of 

training programs at Council.  Council's training plan considers the 

strategic objectives as outlined in the CSP and focuses on the 

development of staff skills to enable staff to meet these objectives through 

their work plans. 

The list of training provides includes BEST Customer Services training, Code 

of Conduct, Writing a Winning Grant, Business Writing. Staff also 

participated in Mental Health Awareness training. 

Outdoor staff participated in compliance and accreditation training in 

Chemical Application, Traffic Control, Asbestos training, First Aid and WHS. 

All staff have access to a personal development plan.  These plans were 

developed, in conjunction with their managers at their performance 

reviews and following a training needs analysis. 
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Code 

Action Name Annual Comment Status 

1.5.2 Provide front line staff with training 

to better interface with customers 

 

Over the 12 months there has been a strong focus on customer service.  

This has included implementation of new systems (C3X; CRM); new 

processes through a centralised email address; on the job coaching for 

Customer Services Officer.  All staff attended the Customer Services 

training held late 2019 which focussed on an organisation wide approach 

to customer service and interactions. 

The continued upgrade of systems will support the efficient  provision of 

service to the community. 



1.5.3 Develop and implement initiatives 

that support and promote career 

development capability across 

the organisation 

 

 

Learning  and development opportunities have been implemented across 

the organisation.  this has included a comprehensive training calendar; 

opportunities to participate in formalised training both in personal and on 

line.   

The implementation of the new IT systems and a move to a more agile and 

nimble organisation have also offered opportunities for career 

development. 

These initiatives support the annual individual development plans that 

which are aligned to the outcomes to be delivered in the CSP and the 

Sustainable and Thriving organisational strategy. 



1.5.4 Attract, retain and develop staff 

to meet current and future 

workforce needs 

 

 

Recruitment and development strategies are aligned to Council's current 

Workforce Plan. 

The workforce plan is currently being reviewed in line with Council's 

strategic direction. 

Project team has been established to develop a new intranet which will 

include on-boarding modules  



1.5.5 Review Workforce Management 

Plan 

Current plan being updated to reflect future needs.  Revised plan due late 

2020 

 



Service standards are up-to-date and reflect community need  

1.6.1 Review, develop, implement and 

monitor service standards and 

key performance indicators 

Service standards have been updated in line with the implementation of 

the CRMS and Pulse system.   

 

Reporting is undertaken on an ongoing basis. 



1.6.2 Council benchmarks its services 

(e.g. PwC Performance 

Excellence Program) to ensure 

they meet agreed standards 

 

 

Council benchmarks its services both internally (against previous years and 

trends) and externally (with other organisations).  This involves 

environmental scanning; data from Council systems and use of 

standardised benchmarks and tools such as the community satisfaction 

survey.   



1.6.3 Assessment of asset utilisation by 

the Internal Audit Committee  

 

 

Significant progress was made during the year on the development of 

Council's digital asset management plan. Asset condition assessments of 

most asset classes was substantially completed and this work will inform 

future asset investment decisions. 



Council is financially sustainable  

1.7.1 Provide timely financial 

information, advice and reports 

to Council, the community and 

staff including the Long Term 

Financial Plan 

The 2018/19 financial reports, quarterly reviews of the 2019/20 budget and 

the 2020/21 budget and long-term forecasts were completed and 

adopted by Council 22 June 2020. 
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1.7.2 Council develops commercial 

opportunities that generate 

alternate sources of 

income/revenue (e.g. property 

portfolio) 

This is an ongoing action. Projects are being progressed in line with the 

draft Property Strategy.  This has included progressing the sale of land at 45 

The Point Road (as per Councils' resolution); entering into a MoU with the 

City of Ryde to look at options for 4 Pittwater Road; undertaking research 

and background work associated with the key sites identified in the draft 

Property Strategy; as well as consideration in relation to smaller parcels of 

remnant lands. 



1.7.3 Fees and charges will be 

reviewed annually 

 

 

All fees and charges for 2020/21 were reviewed and publicly exhibited 

before adoption by Council in June 2020. As well, some 2019/20 fees, 

including outdoor dining licences and playing field hire, were revised as a 

result of COVID 19 restrictions. A revised hardship policy was also adopted 

by Council to assist individuals and businesses facing difficulties in meeting 

their payment commitments for rates or other charges. 



1.7.4 Councils rating structure is 

reviewed to include the option of 

applying for a Special Rate 

Variation (SRV) 

2020/21 rates were set, publicly exhibited and adopted by Council during 

the June 2020 quarter as part of the annual budget process.. The program 

of community facility works to be funded from the Special Variation were 

implemented and the operational component of the variation is helping 

maintain service levels. 



1.7.6 Council to continue to explore 

opportunities and implement a 

program of shared services 

including the provision of a 

shared depot with Lane Cove 

Council 

This is an ongoing action. 

Provision of shared services in partnership with Lane Cove Council are 

progressing well.   

Continuing services include the waste officer role and road safety officer 

roles.   

Work is underway on the preparation of a joint waste collection tender.   

Council resolved at its meeting held in May 2020 to move towards a 

shared depot arrangement with Lane Cove Council.  Funds will be 

allocated in the 2020/21 budget to progress this. 



Council collaborates with other agencies and all levels of government  

1.8.1 Council continues its membership 

of NSROC 

 

 

Council has continued to be an active member of NSROC.   

This has included: 

-  Mayor and Councillor attendance at quarterly board meetings. 

- General Manager (GM) attendance and participation in GM 

Advisory Committees. 

- Professional Officers participation in the various working groups. 

- Contribution to the Regional Social Infrastructure Plan, Regional 

Transport Plan and regional Waste Strategies.  



1.8.2 Council advocates for the 

community in responding to local 

and regional issues 

 

 

Council has advocated on local issues relating to the proposed changes 

in Ferry Services as well as the remediation of Nelson Parade. 

Council is an active member of NSROC and LGNSW.  Through NSROC 

Council has provided joint submissions including: 

- IPART no.2 Review of Reporting and Compliance Burden on Local 

Government, 

- IPART Review on the Local Government Rating System, 

- NSW 20 year Waste and Resource Recovery Strategy, 

- Developer Contributions review, 

- draft Discussion paper on Audit, Risk and Improvement 

Committees. 

Council has also supported LGNSW advocacy efforts over the past 12 

months in particularly around the Circular Economy, financial support for 

local government in particular arising from the COVID-19 pandemic and 

support for the drought and Bushfire Recovery.  

Council has contacted over 2,500 local residents with a Kindness Call, in 

the initial COVID period to ensure our local residents remained socially 

connected while physically distancing and offering referral services and 

other support where required. 
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MANAGE AND PRESERVE OUR ENVIRONMENT  

Action 

Code 

Action Name Annual Comment Status 

A leader in sustainability by responding proactively to pressure facing our natural environment  

2.1.1 Review the Environmental 

Management Plan and include 

sustainability, upcycling, 

community gardens, street library, 

tree scape, and energy 

efficiency 

 

 

This is an ongoing action.  Environmental and sustainability initiatives are 

embedded in the Operational Plan.  Initial work on the Sustainability 

Action Plan commenced. 

 

Over the past 12 months some of the Sustainability initiatives 

implemented include: 

- support of Annual Garage Trail 

- employment of our first ever sustainability officer. 

- integration of energy saving features as part of the Town Hall 

works. 

- continued participation in the Resilient Cities Project. 

- installation of the rain water collection tank at Boronia 3. 

- continued rollout of LED street lights. 



2.1.2 Establish a Sustainability and 

Biodiversity Advisory Committee 

to address the quadruple bottom 

line and review areas such as 

water, tree canopy, energy 

management, air quality, waste 

and recycling 

 

 

The Bushland Management Advisory Committee, which consists of two 

Councillors, two Council Officers and one representative from each of 

the 11 bushcare groups, has held three meetings in October, February 

and May in 2019/20.  

 

The meetings have included presentations from the Communications 

Officer on community engagement, Human Resources Manager on 

Round Up and a representative from Nature Conservation Council on 

planning for hazard reduction burns.  



Council validates the benefits of sustainable living and supports advanced approaches to resource recovery  

2.2.1 Create strong partnerships with 

our community to support 

innovative attitudes to 

sustainable lifestyles, waste 

minimisation and increase reuse 

and recycling opportunities 

 

 

This year, council has successfully continued third party agreements in 

helping reduce the overall amount being sent to landfill.  

 

Council has partnered with the Bower who are a rehoming service for a 

variety of home goods. Bower collect unwanted, good quality items from 

residencies and rehome them through their own store and website. The 

Bower is a free service for the residents of Hunters Hill.  

 

Council also shares management of the Community Recycling Centre 

(CRC) in Artarmon. The CRC is a drop-off location for problematic waste 

including: gas bottles, paint, motor oils, light globes, batteries, e-waste 

and more. The CRC is a free service for Hunters Hill residents. Residents are 

also provided with a mattress collection and recycling service through 

Soft Landing. Residents can book a mattress collection online or over the 

phone and have the mattress removed from their kerbside and have all 

of the contents recycled at Veolia Greenacre. This is a free service for 

Hunters Hill residents.  

 

Council is also exploring a pilot project with UNSW focussed on promoting 

the circular economy. 



2.2.2 Undertake education programs 

aimed at decreasing waste to 

landfill for residents, schools, 

businesses and staff 

 

 

This is an ongoing action. 

 

Council's Sustainability Education officer has worked with local schools to 

develop and deliver 6 sustainable projects designed at the inaugural 

Youth Summit, developed textile diersion grant programs and run events 

for Plastic Free July and garage sale trail (November 2020) 
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2.2.3 Promote opportunities and 

assistance for residents and 

business to access funding and 

grants that will assist them in 

making sustainable choices 

 

This is an ongoing action. 

 

Council officers provide a monthly report on grant programs that may be 

suitable and are planning a training program to support community 

groups.  

 

Council officers are developing sustainable grant program, and are 

working closely with groups such as the scouts and sports clubs to support 

waste diversion 



2.2.4 Ensure waste collection service 

meets community expectations 

in terms of accessibility, ease and 

frequency 

 

 

This year, the Waste Coordinator addresses any issues highlighted by the 

public regarding waste collection. The Waste Coordinator also ensures 

waste collection meets all compliancy through consistent monitoring and 

reporting. All public inquiries regarding waste collection are responded to 

promptly and efficiently. Works are being completed with regards to the 

new waste collection and processing contract.  



2.2.5 Maximise water efficiency and 

recycling through water sensitive 

urban design, capturing 

stormwater, encouraging 

substitution of potable water with 

alternative supply and improving 

water usage behaviour 

This is an ongoing action. Initiatives in 2019/20 included, Council is working 

on an education program around water use. We are continuing to 

undertake curb and gutter projects to address significant drainage issues. 

The works at Boronia 3 Oval has enabled the capture of rain water to be 

used for irrigation at Boronia Park.  



2.2.6 Monitor and maintain stormwater 

assets 

 

 

A range of projects have been completed. 

 

Planned projects must be completed using the following process; Firstly, a 

consultant must be engaged to design. Then a public consultation is held. 

A contractor is then engaged to deliver the planned expectations.  

 

The projects that have been accomplished this year include Hill Crest 

Avenue, Alexandra Street, Collingwood Street, The Point Road and 

Wandella Avenue.  

 

General maintenance of stormwater assets have also taken place 

throughout the year. Jet blasting and pit sucking from specified 

contractors have ensured smooth functionality of the stormwater assets.  



2.2.7 Support and encourage groups 

undertaking community garden 

projects 

 

 

Place and Projects is providing ongoing support for the Happy Hens at 

Henley Bowling Club. Bushland staff are also supporting a local scout 

group to create accessible and mobile gardens beds from discarded 

boats (dinghys). Council has also partnered with the Happy Hens to plant 

herbs in the planter boxes on Victoria Road in the Gladesville shopping 

precinct.  



Our natural environment is protected, and enhanced for future generations A  

2.3.01 Encourage and support active 

community participation in local 

environmental projects and 

events 

 

 

An additional 10 new bushcare volunteers have joined the bushcare 

program in 2019-20 increasing the number to 75 volunteers.  

 

Most of the 11 bushcare groups meet once a month except for Friends of 

Kellys Bush who meet every Monday.  

 

We have produced a series of videos showcasing the 11 bushcare sites 

whilst bushcare was postponed during the COVID-19 lockdown period.  

 

Two corporate volunteer days with Telstra and ABNAMRO Clearing were 

held in in 2019/20 planting 300 native plants and 1 hectare of bushland 

area weeded. 1st Boronia Cubs planted 150 shrubs and ground covers in 

Gladesville Reserve on 28 July as part of National Tree Day 2019.  
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2.3.02 Manage, protect and 

rehabilitate damaged and 

fragmented natural areas 

 

 

Contractors, volunteers and Council staff undertook bush regeneration in 

the last financial year at: 

 

a. Boronia Park 

b. Buffalo Creek Reserve 

c. Riverglade and Tarban Creek Reserve 

d. Gladesville Reserve and Betts Park 

e. Kellys Bush 

f. Ferdinand St Reserve 

g. Mornington Reserve 

h. Murray Prior Reserve 

i. Woolwich Baths 

j. St Johns Park 

k. Bedlam Bay 

Council continued the DPIE grant project: Habitat restoration along the 

lower Parramatta River - Stage 2. Bush regeneration works continue but 

community habitat plantings were postponed for the second half of 

2019/20 due to the COVID-19 lockdown period. 800 native plants were 

planted across the project sites from Bedlam Bay to Kellys Bush by 

bushcare and community volunteers in the first second half of 2019. 

 

Stage 1 of this wildlife corridor project, completed in August 2019,  

involved 272 planting volunteers, 3,909 native plants plant, 305 volunteers 

in total and received commendation from NSW Environmental Trust for 

community engagement.  



2.3.03 Protect the diversity of flora, 

fauna and ecological 

communities 

 

 

Bushcare Volunteers, contractors and Council staff undertook bush 

regeneration in the last financial year at: 

 

a. Boronia Park 

b. Buffalo Creek Reserve 

c. Riverglade and Tarban Creek Reserve 

d. Gladesville Reserve and Betts Park 

e. Kellys Bush 

f. Ferdinand St Reserve 

g. Mornington Reserve 

h. Murray Prior Reserve 

i. Woolwich Baths 

j. St Johns Park 

k. Bedlam Bay 

 

For example a sediment management project using best practice 

techniques to protect and enhance coastal saltmarsh and mangroves in 

Tarban Creek commenced this financial year and will continue until May 

2021. 





44 

 

HUNTERS HILL COUNCIL 

ANNUAL REPORT  |   2019 - 2020  

Action 

Code 

Action Name Annual Comment Status 

2.3.04 Ensure that future land use 

planning and management 

enhances and protects 

biodiversity and natural heritage 

 

 

The Local Strategic Planning Statement incorporates land use planning 

and management.  

 

Councils current Local Environment Plan and Development Control Plan 

also provides for protection of biodiversity and natural heritage.  

 

The Boronia Park and draft Riverglade Reserve PoMs outline management 

actions that enhances and protects biodiversity and natural heritage in 

these reserves.  

 

In addition Council staff attended a Department of Planning, Industry and 

Environment workshop on the proposed Sydney Harbour Coastal 

Management Program.  



2.3.05 Improve environmental 

monitoring and reporting 

 

 

Environmental monitoring and reporting to government bodies happens 

as a matter of course, for example, grant monitoring and reports, 

scientific licensing reports, weed inspection/activity reporting to the 

Department of Primary Industry, vertebrate pest species monitoring and 

Council and Crown Land reports.   



2.3.06 Implement effective weed 

control programs including track 

maintenance 

 

 

Bushcare Volunteers, contractors and Council staff are undertaking bush 

regeneration in accordance with a work plan in the majority of Councils 

bushland reserves.  

 

Council is implementing three Crown Land grants for Boronia Park, Buffalo 

Creek Reserve and Ferdinand Street Reserve for weed control totaling 

$40,000.  

 

Track maintenance is primarily undertaken by Council staff. 



2.3.07 Carry out hazard reduction 

activities as outlined in the 

Bushfire Risk Management Plan 

 

 

The draft Hunters Hill, Lane Cove, Parramatta and Ryde Bush Fire Risk 

Management Plan was placed on public exhibition in December until 14 

February 2020.  

 

The Bushfire Risk Management Committee meeting was held 30 June to 

discuss the submissions.  

 

Council continues to implement actions in the draft Plan. NSW Rural Fire 

Service inspected potential burn sites at Boronia Park and Buffalo Creek 

Reserve and Boronia Park has been included in the Fire and Rescue NSW 

hazard reduction works program.  



2.3.08 Tree Preservation Orders are 

managed through the 

Development Application (DA) 

process 

 

The Tree Permit process is an ongoing process. 

 

Tree preservation orders are managed through the DA process. 



2.3.09 Maintain and improve the local 

tree canopy 

 

 

Replacement of street and park trees happens as a matter of course.  

 

Tree planting schedule has been adjusted due to prolonged drought and 

COVID-19. However the bushcare program continues to gradually plant 

trees in bushcare sites. 
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2.3.10 Improve the protection of 

foreshores and waterways 

 

 

There are protection and criteria within Council's current LEP and DCP 

Controls including State policies protecting the foreshores and waterways. 

The Parramatta River Catchment Group stormwater sub committee meet 

regularly to implement step 4 and step 5 of the Parramatta River 

Masterplan i.e. "standardising the standards" and "reduce runoff in the 

Parramatta River"  and have prepared a draft Recommendations Paper. 

 

Council staff were interviewed by Parramatta River Catchment Group 

staff on the status of stormwater management in the LGA as part of the 

implementation of Step 5.  

 

In addition sea wall repairs have been completed at Woolwich Baths and 

Pulpit Point  

 



2.3.11 Protect and monitor waterways 

and improve water quality  

 

 

Council inspects and maintains stormwater assets on a regular basis.  

 

In addition the Parramatta River Catchment Group has compliance and 

education programs which Council is actively involved in, such as "Get 

the Site Right" a compliance program targeting sediment and erosion 

control on building sites, (blitz month of October 2019 and June 2020 

where development sites were 100% compliant) and RiverAware a 

residential stormwater education program.  



2.3.12 Manage and maintain parks and 

reserves 

 

 

To manage the parks and reserves within the community, we have 

continually kept up maintenance through mowing, weed spraying, line 

marking and getting fields ready for seasonal sports.  

 

Weil Park, Gladesville Reserve and Bedlam Bay are great examples of this, 

encouraging active use from the community. Council has engaged a 

sports fields lights specialist to implement a new system to manage the 

booking of sports fields through customer service. This allows the lights to 

be automatically be turned on and off for prompt use.  



2.3.13 Complete a State of Environment 

Report to be included in the 

Annual Report in the year in 

which an ordinary local 

government election is held 

The State of Environment reporting will be completed and submitted to 

the OLG in line with the next election period and in accordance with 

statutory requirements  



Council recognises Aboriginal cultural connections and heritage  

2.4.1 Work with other agencies to 

protect local Aboriginal assets 

 

 

Council staff have been liaising with Department of Planning Industry and 

Environment, Indigenous organisations, bushcare groups and the Hunters 

Hill Trust as required.  



2.4.2 Council appoints a Native Title 

Manager as required by the 

revised NSW Crown Land Act 

 

 

Native Title Manager was appointed and has actively engaged in the 

preparation of both the Boronia Park and Riverglade Plans of 

Management. 
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Asset Management Plans meet community and legislative guidelines 

3.1.1 Review Asset Management Plans 

and include prioritised 

maintenance schedules and 

standards 

 

 

The Asset Management Plan is continually reviewed to prioritise 

maintenance schedules and standards.  

 

To action this, road segmenting and mapping across the LGA has 

been completed.  

 

Road pavement condition assessments have also been undertaken to 

ensure priority for works carried out on high risk roads.  

 

Footpath segmenting and mapping have been completed.  

 

Building, stormwater and open space assets assessment has also been 

completed.  

 

The final digital AMP is due to be delivered in July / August 2020. 


 

Roads are well maintained 

3.2.1 Council constructs and maintains 

accessible, safe and high quality 

roads 

 

 

The Capital Works Program has commenced and has successfully 

progressed throughout the year, 90% completed.  The balance of 

works were as a result of delays outside of Council officers control.  

 

The resurfacing of many areas within the community have now been 

completed, including Unwins Lane and Ellesmere Avenue.  

 

Passy Avenue kerb and gutter works have also been completed. 

Church Avenue has also seen a new road resheet.  

 

In addition, Sherwin Street has undergone road reconstruction.  

 

These project examples bring safety to the community as well as a 

refreshed look for Hunters Hill. Council will continue on these projects, 

including Gaza Avenue and High Street, whilst also finalising works on 

Kelly Street as well as others.  


 

Footpaths are accessible, safe and connected  

3.3.1 Council plans, designs, constructs 

and maintains accessible, safe, 

and high quality infrastructure for 

people to walk (Asset 

Management Plan and PAMP 

 

 

The draft Asset Management Plan and also developed a Future Works 

Program for the 10 years long-term financial plan.  

 

As a result of this, all footpath programs have been completed 

successfully and to a good standard to ensure a high quality 

infrastructure for the local community to walk. This includes ongoing 

work on Victoria Road.  
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Council has a network of safe and linked cycle paths 

3.4.1 Update and implement the 

Hunters Hill Cycle Plan to 

ensure cycle paths are well 

designed to meet 

infrastructure needs  

Council have engaged respective contractors in preparation for a new and 

updated local Bike Plan.  

The development will take into account stakeholder input, Council priority 

and the auditing of the existing cycleway network with reference to Councils 

renewable roads program. 

By developing a network of bicycle routes, Council are striving to meet the 

current and future communitys needs including route maps, concepts etc. 

Logical links to regional routes and local destinations will be taken highly into 

account to strengthen the community connection.  

The new Bike Plan will align with NSW Government and NSROC Transport 

Plans and Strategies, as well as taking inspiration from neighbouring Councils 

Bike Plans for smooth transition and interaction.  

It will also align with Councils Local Strategic Planning Statement (LSPS).  

Council are identify any pinch points, intersection design issues or other site 

specific items and will be exploring sketch plans of potential remedies. Audits 

will take place regarding the current condition and compliance with 

standards and guidelines of Councils existing bicycle network. 

Overall, the new Bike Plan will help in providing an understanding of the 

cycle network within Hunters Hill and connecting areas. 

The revised plan is due for completion in 2020/21 



Road congestion and traffic safety is improvement 

3.5.1 Review Traffic Management 

Plans to identify areas that 

require intervention (e.g. 

traffic calming) 

 

 

Traffic Management initiatives completed over the past 12 months include: 

1. Reiby Road traffic and pedestrian safety improvements completed  

2. Mary Street pedestrian crossing civil and electrical design completed 

3.  Manning Road Pedestrian refuge design completed awaiting RMS 

funding approval. 

4.  Woolwich Road raised threshold re-painted with 'piano key' line-

marking is completed. 

5.  Alexandra Street - Completed Traffic Assessment at Alexandra 

Street/Mount Street and on Alexandra Street at drop off/pick up zone 

at Hunters Hill P.S. 

6.  TfNSW have been requested to review restricting right turn vehicle 

movements from Victoria Road into Manning Road.  

7.  Implementation of actions arising from  Local Area Traffic Committee 

8.  Installed Speed Radar Display on Manning Road to improve speed 

awareness 



3.5.2 Council advocates on 

behalf of the community to 

the State Govt for local 

traffic solutions and grant 

funding 

 

 

This is an ongoing action. 

An application under the NSW Active Transport Program was submitted for 

both Mary Street and Manning Road.  

No update has been given by TfNSW regarding Blackspot funding for 

pedestrian safety at Church Street. 

Council continues to receive RMS Road Safety Program funding and 

material. 
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3.5.3 Deliver targeted education 

programs to encourage the 

community to make better 

road safety and transport 

choices 

 

 

1. Child car seat safety checking vouchers are currently being distributed 

to residents within the Hunters Hill LGA to use a local provider to check 

the fitting of child restraints. 

2. In June an online Helping Learner Drivers Become Safer Drivers Workshop 

was delivered through Zoom. This workshop is targeted at supporting the 

parents/supervisors of Learner Drivers. Another Zoom workshop is 

scheduled for Thursday 3 September and High School communities will 

receive notification at the beginning of Term 3. 

3. RSOs have continued to stay in contact with Hunters Hill school Principals  

sending relevant resources to each school, emailing a termly school 

zone newsletter and any other supporting material 

4. RSOs are currently liaising with TfNSW (Transport for NSW) regarding the 

development of Plan B resources. Plan 'B' campaign promotes 

alternative transport options to empower the driver to make the choice 

to not drink and drive. 

5. Look out before you step out signage added for pedestrian and access 

safety. 



Schools are supported through the provision of safe drop off and pick-up zones 

3.6.1 Identify and prioritise school 

zones where traffic and 

safety management is 

required 

 

 

Schools in the area have been supported by regular maintenance of signs 

and line marking around schools to improve safety.  

The Pedestrian Crossing at Hunters Hill Public School was re-marked at the 

start of the school year.  

Other improvements around schools include the new footpath on the 

western side of Reiby Road and a traffic island installed at Reiby Road and 

The Avenue to assist the passage of school children to and from school.  

A drop off pick up zone has been approved on Woolwich Road outside 

Marist Sisters and will be installed shortly. 



3.6.2 Liaise with the School 

Principals Committee to 

exchange and identify any 

traffic safety concerns 

 

 

The Committee have met regularly over the past 12 months. 

The Committee have discussed a range of health and safety matters relating 

to local schools as well as broader sustainability ideas.  Topics discussed 

include: 

- presentations from Council's Road Safety Officers: Car Seat Safety 

Check; opportunities to conduct a workshop for parents to teach 

learner drivers.  

- School to Work program, includes school based apprenticeships 

and traineeships (SBATs), Career expos and other school-focused 

- programs for disengaged youth and youth health and wellbeing 

- sustainability initiatives (eg Hunters Hill High School sustainable 

uniforms initiatives; native bee programs)  

The Principals have agreed that a working group of P&C reps would support 

the development of a local safety around schools program, with the 

assistance of our Road Safety Learning Officer.  

Next steps will be to provide feedback on terms of reference. 



Parking will support the needs of our community 

3.7.1 Develop parking 

management plans in 

commercial, village and 

public transport zones 

 

 

A Parking Strategy has been developed for the LGA  providing prioritized 

recommendations to address parking issues. 

Council has also responded to community needs by adopting parking 

restriction change from a 2hour parking restriction to a 3hour restriction at 

Signal Hill car park on Cowell Street. Other initiatives have also been 

undertaken such as the installation of sensors at Signal Hill car park to assist in 

compliance.  

Visitors to Buffalo Park and Clarkes Point Reserve may now choose to pay for 

parking via the 'ParknPay' APP. Users of the free APP can make payment and 

top up from their smart phone. By using the APP there is no need to walk to a 

meter and the user will be notified that their parking is going to expire. 

The' ParknPay' APP also provides real time parking availability at Signal Hill car 

park. 
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Maintain the character and amenity of Hunters Hill 

4.1.1 Complete and implement  

heritage character 

statements, eg trees, rocky 

outcrops, stonewalls, iconic 

views, seawalls, streetscape 

and waterscape 

The statements are an action of the Local Strategic Planning Statement 

(LSPS), which has now been endorsed by Greater Sydney Commission and 

adopted by Council (27/4/20) and will be prepared in 2020/21. 



4.1.2 Prepare and review 

strategic land use 

strategies, policies and 

plans, such as the LEP and 

DCP 

The LSPS was exhibited ending on 25 October 2019 and was adopted by 

Council 27 April 2020 following review and sign off by the NSW Greater 

Sydney Commission.  The LSPS will inform the review of the LEP and DCP's to 

be undertaken in 2020/21. 



4.1.3 Provide quality technical 

heritage advice to 

residents, developers, DCU, 

and the Land and 

Environment Court 

Heritage technical advice to residents at the pre-DA stage, as well as to the 

Planning Team during the assessment process of DA has continued.  

 

Heritage adviser also assists Council in Court proceedings.  

 

During this time Heritage Consultant continued to provide heritage advice 

whilst recruiting for a permanent Heritage Advisor. 



4.1.4 Encourage community 

participation and 

responsibility in 

development applications 

and heritage conservation 

This is an ongoing action. Preliminary Pre-DA Lodgement meetings and 

Development Control Unit meetings (DCU) and held weekly to encourage 

best-practice approach to development and heritage conservation.  

 

Conservation Advisory Panel (CAP) meetings held monthly.   

 

28 for Pre-DA Lodgement meetings and 41 Development Control Unit 

meetings have been held over the 12 months period.  



4.1.5 All building work complies 

with Council regulations 

Due to COVID-19 there was a substantial increase in inspections required to 

be undertaken following complaints received by the community.  


Council has well planned commercial areas, village centres and neighbourhoods  

4.2.01 Apply design in excellence 

planning controls that 

protect the residential 

character of Hunters Hill  

The Local Strategic Planning Statement was addopted by Council in April 

2020.  We are still awaiting advice from the Department of Planning 

regarding the developer lead planning proposal for the GSV site. In the 

meantime we are continuing with the GMU on the Masterplan for Gladesville, 



4.2.02 Use place based planning 

to support the role of village 

centres as a focus for 

connected 

neighbourhoods 

 

 

Placed based planning is Local Strategic Planning Statement (LSPS).   

 

Gladesville town centre improvements actioned via Gladesville Action Plan 

with Contribution Plan funds (s7.12) including street pavement renewal, bins 

renewal, painting of street furniture and planter boxes. other projects.   

 

Gladesville project was delivered in partnership with local businesses.   

 

Gorgeous Garabaldi and Beautiful Boronia will commence in first quarter 

2020/21.  
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4.2.03 Review and update the 

Gladesville Master Plan and 

liaise with key stakeholders 

including residents and the 

City of Ryde  

 

 

The Master plan is also an action of the Local Strategic Planning Statement 

(LSPS), which is now endorsed by the Greater Sydney Commission and 

adopted by Council (Quarter 3). Work on the Master plan is progressing with 

designs and report for Blocks 1,2, and 3 finalised (Quarter 3 and 4). 

Stakeholder information sessions for landowners of lots in blocks 1,2, and 3 

were held February 2020. Stakeholder engagement via Gladesville main 

street committee (including City of Ryde membership) in March 2020. Council  

approached the Department of Planning in April and May 2020 in discussions 

to address resolving and progressing the Planning Proposal.   Council still 

awaiting the determination of the Gladesville Shopping Village, Planning 

Proposal.  



4.2.04 Develop and implement a 

commercial centre/village 

centre improvement 

program 

 

 

Council continues to work with local businesses, City of Ryde and the 

Gladesville Chamber of Commerce to promote the Love Gladesville 

campaign. In 6 months, it has grown to 3000 members and has been 

considered a valuable resource for the community in COVID restrictions. 

Council promoted Love Gladesville at the Coulter Street Party and sponsored 

stall fees for local businesses 

 

The next precinct to be activated is Beautiful Boronia and Gorgeous 

Garibaldi.  



4.2.05 Developments include a 

mix use of housing, shops 

and commercial facilities 

 

 

The adopted LSPS will be used to guide the review of the LEP and DCP will 

assist in the promotion of mix use. 

 

The draft Gladesville Master Plan will also provide the opportunity for mix use 

developments.  

 

The Master Plan of Gladesville Stages 1, 2 and 3 and meetings with the land 

owners within these areas were held and reports/plans are near complete. 



4.2.06 Educate the community 

and key stakeholders about 

the importance of 

referencing key planning 

documents such as the 

Burra Charter 

 

 

Preliminary Pre-DA meetings held weekly to encourage best-practice 

approach to development and heritage conservation.  

 

Conservation Advisory Panel meetings held monthly for Pre-DA and current 

development applications that consider the heritage provisions of Hunters Hill 

LEP and Hunters Hill DCP.   

 

Assisting and providing information to the Hunters Hill Trust as requested and 

working in partnership.   

 

Working in partnership with Museum and the RSL sub branch, by digitising war 

memorabilia increasing awareness of history and heritage of the area and 

the commencement of discussion with Vienna Cottage State Heritage item 

working in partnerships with a view of supporting there upcoming 

celebrations and will be progressed 2021. 



4.2.07 Prepare a local or district 

housing strategy that 

addresses the delivery of a 

housing supply target of 150 

by 2021 

Consultants have been engaged to develop a Housing Strategy to support 

the in the LSPS of 150 new dwellings. 


4.2.08 Continue to advocate to 

improve foreshore access 

and boating facilities.  

A review process and policy development has been undertaken for dinghy's 

in the LGA. In addition Council via participation in the Parramatta River 

Catchment Group advocates to improve foreshore access along the 

Parramatta River.  
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4.2.09 Review and administer the 

Section 94A Plan and 

implement any 

recommended outcomes 

 

 

Review and implementation of the s7.12 Plan is required as the previous Plan 

is near expired/completed.   Consultants were engaged, for commence with 

Stage 1 of the project to review the 7.12 Plan.  Council adopted the s7.12 

Contribution Plan at its 16 December 2019 meeting. The Plan has now been 

actioned and activated, effective 15 January 2020, were contributions paid 

under s7.12 Plan are applied toward the capital cost of provision, extension or 

augmentation of public facilities or services for the benefit of the whole 

community.  Stage 2 of the review is now progress to increase percentage 

rate of the S7.12 levy, however Council is awaiting advise from the 

Department of Planning following their review of the Contributions Plan 

framework. 



4.2.10 Encourage commercial 

development that is easily 

accessible by walking, 

riding, driving or public 

transport 

 

 

Review accessibility and transport provisions in DCP Review, which is also an 

action of the Local Strategic Planning Statement. Accessible commercial 

centres and public spaces funding being considered in Stage 2 of the 

Hunters Hill Contribution Plan project, which will focus on a development of a 

levy for centres. Stage 1 of the Contributions Plan project, the area-wide 

development levy plan adopted by Council on 16 December 2019 and 

come into effect on 15 January 2020. Council participating with the NSW 

governments Transport Strategy, Victoria Road and the NSROC transport 

infrastructure priorities, and the commencement of the Bike Plan. 



Public Places are vibrant and active 

4.3.1 Ensure that new and existing 

voluntary planning 

agreements contain 

provisions for vibrant and 

active public places where 

applicable 

No VPAs were developed in the past 12 months. 

4.3.2 Maintain public places to 

ensure they are clean and 

attractive 

 

 

The outdoor team have continued their hard work in keeping residents proud 

to be a part of their local community this year.  

 

Many actions have been taken to ensure this, including graffiti removal, 

upgrading the Hunters Hill Village shop garden beds and extra cleaning of 

public toilets to make the area much safer and cleaner.  

 

Parks and playgrounds have also remained a high priority for Hunters Hill 

Council, and we have assured these areas have been well kept, cleaned 

regularly and retained a safe standard for our community's youth.  

 

Both mechanical and hand sweepers have been actively working within 

Hunters Hill, managing the area throughout the year's changing climates to 

ensure safety for the public. Council will be undertaking work to improve the 

general aesthetic of the community, enhancing the vibrancy and active 

engagement through general maintenance of the area's nature.  



4.3.3 Ensure public spaces 

provide for a range of 

people and can be easily 

adapted to suit the 

changing needs of our 

community 

 

 

Our team has taken the lead on educating and informing the community 

around COVID restrictions, best practice social distancing and use of 

community facilities in an evolving environment. This includes parks, business 

and community assets.  

 

Adoption of the Playspace Strategy which was a consolidation and review of 

a number of strategies in Council across the years. This strategy is now 

informing the upgrade and program of our playspaces and surrounds.  

 

DIAP 50% review completed and endorsed by Council. Team is responsible 

for reviewing and have been working on how to make our facilities and 

amenities accessible in collaboration with development and works teams. 

 

Love Gladesville project was developed and implemented in 2019/20. 
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4.3.4 Continue to revitalise the 

Gladesville precinct as a 

commercial hub 

Gladesville Master Plan, Stages 1, 2 and 3 are underway. Gladesville Place 

making initiatives have also commenced with a Place Maker engaged to 

work with local businesses. 



4.3.5 Liaise with the Main Street 

Committees and Chambers 

of Commerce to support 

and promote local 

businesses 

The Mainstreet Committees have met regularly to facilitate effective 

communication. 

 

Continuing to improve the communication and collaboration between 

Council, business community, community groups and the residents to 

enhance the centres productivity and usability. 



Council monitors compliance with environmental controls and standards 

4.4.1 Ensure compliance with the 

Swimming Pool Act 

 

 

Regular inspections are undertaken for swimming pools following requests for 

inspections for sale and leasing purposes. In addition, inspections were 

undertaken when complaints and general requests are received by Council. 

 

A total 14 inspections were undertaken for the final quarter of 2019/20 

financial year. 



4.4.2 Provide animal 

management services that 

meet legislative 

requirements 

As part of normal monitoring duties for Council Rangers.  

This is an ongoing service. 



4.4.3 Conduct regular inspections 

of food premises 

 

 

Approximately one-hundred and forty-nine (149) food premises inspections 

were conducted (biannual inspections) and an additional two (2) inspections 

from complaints were investigated. In addition, general surveillance of food 

proprietors compliance with was undertaken for COVID-19. 



4.4.4 Ensure all commercial 

operators adhere to health 

and buildings standards 

 

 

These inspections focussed on: 

 

a. CDC (where Council is the certifier) – 5 

b. Build related complaints/investigations – 490 

There has been a decrease in assessment of CDC's likely due to COVID-19. 

Notwithstanding, building related complaints have seen a dramatic increase 

over the same period.  
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Plans of Management reflect community need 

5.1.1 Review plans of 

management for: 

- Create Figtree 

Park POM 

- Clarkes Point 

(review) 

- Boronia Park 

(review) 

- Riverglade 

Reserve 

- Gladesville 

Reserve (review) 

- Create a POM for 

Buffalo Creek 

Reserve P 

Boronia Park Plan of Management was adopted 27 April 2020. The draft 

Riverglade Reserve Plan of Management has been prepared and has been 

submitted to Crown Lands for approval to be placed on public exhibition. 

Request for Quotations were sent for a generic plan of management which 

will include site specific plans for Figtree Park  and Gladesville Reserve.  



Council encourages a sense of belonging and connection to the local community 

5.2.1 Conduct and 

regularly review an 

annual program of 

events 

 

 

The Events Program has been reviewed.   

 

Due to COVID19, Moocooboola was cancelled, the Hunters Hill Food and 

Wine Fair was cancelled and Council commitment to supporting an art 

exhibiton had to be reviewed. Council Officers have worked with the 

advisory committee to develop an art show to be held in November focused 

on local art, called communARTy.  

 

Adopted agile principles to pivot our program to a lockdown world as a part 

of the COVID-19 Pandemic. 

 

Events review undertaken in June and presented to the Council. 

Moocooboola 2019, Christmas Carols and News Years Eve in partnership with 

Good for the Hood. Young in Art. Seniors, Australia Day and Citizenship, 

ANZAC at home in partnership with Sydney bagpipers and Hunters Hill RSL 

branch.  

 

Free accommodation in Gladesville Shopping Village was secured for for 

local Artist Mertim Goklap  



5.2.2 Support and 

facilitate  community 

events/projects and 

initiatives that 

encourage 

community 

participation 

 

 

Council waived field and hall hire for seasonal bookings as part of the 

continuing response to COVID19. This has been well received, and enabled 

our groups to return from isolation.  

Return to Play campaign promoted. Additional signage has been provided 

and the provision of hand sanitiser.  

Supported the Museum in the curation and hanging of art wall.  

Supported community groups in their return to activities including:  

-  Playgroups  

-  Tennis Table  

-  Domestic Violence Self Defence  

-  Art Groups  

-  Sporting Clubs 

-  Music  

-  Theatre  
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5.2.3 Support and 

facilitate initiatives 

and projects to 

promote local 

community groups 

 

 

Kept community informed around COVID restrictions, best practice social 

distancing and use of community facilities in an evolving environment. This 

includes parks, business and community assets.   

Adoption of the Playspace Strategy which was a consolidation and review of 

a number of strategies in Council across the years. This Strategy is now 

informing the upgrade and program of our playspaces and surrounds.  

Supported the Happy Hens to create a seasonal growers markets beside the 

Henley Community Garden. This is an ongoing sponsorship and collaboration. 

Working with Hunters Hill Music to create a monthly recital. Native Stingless 

Hives for Scouts and Happy Hens.  

Conducted fundraising and foodbank drive for Sydney Community Services.  

Work in collaboration with St George Housing to ensure all residents in our 

community are supported, particularly those social isolated due to COVID. 

Collaborated with Hunters Hill Hotel and Hunters Hill Rugby Club to donate 

excess furniture to the Generous and The Grateful.  

Continued to partner with Gladesville Chamber of Commerce, including the 

launch of Hunters Hill Connected.  

Ran online forum and provided information and support and signage for 

Sporting Groups.  



5.2.4 Assist Northern 

Sydney Aboriginal 

organisations and 

activities 

 

 

This is ongoing. 

Council has sponsored the Bennelong Council monthly community group 

meeting. 

Established partnership with the Bennelong Alliance however this has been 

postponed due to COVID-19.  

Plan of Management process. 



5.2.5 Develop and 

implement a Youth 

Engagement 

Strategy 

 

 

Council worked with our local schools to successfully deliver the first Youth 

Summit. The ideas and pitches are being further refinded by Council's 

Sustainability Education Officer and will be rolled out in term 3.  

As part of Council's Advisory Group young people have been encouraged to 

join these have included the Library Working Group and Property Advisory 

Group. 



The community is informed and involved in decisions 

5.3.1 Increase 

engagement 

through social media 

platforms and 

Councils website 

 

 

Established Instagram and increased audience.  

Consolidated all pages across channels to simplify and promote council as 

the key provider of events, services etc.  

Promoted Social Pinpoint as an online platform. 

Brand guideline developed and championed across organisation.  

Introduced Hunters Hill Community Facebook Group.  

Reviewed the website, established participation platform and regular 

communication of news and events online and undertaken review of the 

website to build a new space.  

Regular analytics to improve user experience. 
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5.3.2 Improve community 

engagement (e.g. 

Councillors 

reinvigorate precinct 

forums and 

investigate 

community led 

governance) 

 

 

Range of community engagement over the last 12 months including the 

precinct meeting at Henley Community Centre and pop up at Boronia Park 

as a part of the overall Plan of Management consultation.  Consultation for 

Riverglade, LSPS Popup, Gladesville Masterplan with key land holders. 

Regularly held advisory committee meeting including Plan of Management 

Committee Advisory Groups(CAG), Principal’s Forum, Bike Plan Working 

Group, Library Working Group, Bush Land Management Advisory Group, Art 

Exhibition Advisory Group. Community Satisfaction Survey/Place score survey 

Gladesville, Gladesville Main Street Committee with a focus on Love 

Gladesville.  



5.3.3 Promote access to 

Customer Request 

Module (CRM) 

 

 

Implemented the Customer Request Management System improving 

recording and workflow associated with the actioning of customer requests. 

This included centralisation of the customer service inbox to better handle 

online requests and improved data reporting capabilities.  

 

Further enhancements are planned for 2020/21, including those that will 

complement improved e-planning, development application assessment 

and bookings systems. 



5.3.4 Conduct a 

Community Survey in 

July 2018 and bi-

annually thereafter 

 

Community Survey completed and presented to Councillors Strategy session 

in February.  

 

Action ensuing have been incorporated into the Operational Plan as well as 

organisation strategies. It is intended to undertake the next survey every 

four(4) years. The next Survey to be undertaken in 2021 post local 

government election. 



5.3.5 Distribute a quarterly 

hardcopy and e-

Newsletter that 

informs and 

encourages 

community 

engagement 

This is an ongoing action and will be continually refined. Newsletter is 

distributed monthly and enews weekly. We have grown the database 

significantly, to 6,000 people, with an average click rate of 35%.  



5.3.6 Update and 

implement the 

Communication 

Policy 

 

 

Employed our first ever Communications Officer and has supported the 

implementation of the Communication Strategy and includes revamp of 

enews and frequency. 

 

The Communication Policy has included review of standardised language 

and templates across the organisation; a review of the website and 

streamlining of the language and look and feel, and the social media 

standardisation.  

 

This has included the use of branding guidelines and corporate colours, 

including signage for works team.  



5.3.7 Audit and review 

branding on all 

council publications 

to ensure residents 

are aware of Council 

initiatives 

Brand guideline has been created and adopted across all communication 

channels and printed materials.  
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The library service is well organised and well supported 

5.4.1 Continue to ensure 

that a high quality 

library service is 

provided to residents 

Throughout 2019/20 the City of Ryde continued to provide library service to 

the Hunters Hill Community via a Joint Use Agreement. Under the agreement 

City of Ryde were paid approximately $753K to provide access to library 

services to the Hunters Hill Community.  

Council resolved in September 2019 to enter into a new Joint Use Agreement 

with Lane Cove Council from July 2020 following the expiration of the 

agreement with the City of Ryde. This resulted in over $400k in saving to the 

Hunters Hill Community and also has enabled the creation for the first time 

ever of a Library and Community Program space (The Yarn) to be provided in 

the Hunters Hill LGA. 



5.4.2 Review the delivery 

and location of the 

library service.  

 

 

Actions are underway to ensure a smooth transition to the new Library Joint 

Use Agreement with Lane Cove Council.  This has involved preparation of the 

draft agreement, undertaking a community survey to seek feedback on the 

types of programs our community would like to see; liaising with UNSW 

regarding the fit out of the library and community space to be provided in 

the heart of Hunters Hill which will include use of circular economy materials. 



5.4.3 Promote library 

programs, services 

and events 

Branding developed for the library, The YARN. A campaign has been 

launched using the brand, announcing that The YARN will be opening later in 

the year. Programs have been agreed with Lane Cove Council, and a new 

TEI playgroup approved for October 2020.  



Councils Social and Cultural Plans reflect community need 

5.5.1 Review and update 

the Hunters Hill Social 

and Cultural Plans 

 

Scoping was delayed due to COVID-19 and community priorities. The Council 

under take as part of the NSROC Social Infrastructure Plan developed in the 

first half of 2020 will assist in informing the Community Infrastructure Plan and 

Social Cultural Plans to be developed in 2020/21. 



5.5.2 Promote facilities 

and activities that 

promote and 

enhance cultural 

diversity 

 

 

Council waiving of field and hall hire for seasonal bookings as part of the 

Council Response to COVID19. This has been well received, and enabled our 

groups to return from isolation.  

 

Return to Play campaign promoted. Funded signage and the provision of 

hand sanitiser.  

 

Supported the Museum in the curation and hanging of art wall.  

 

Supported community groups in their return to activities including: 

- Playgroups  

- Tennis Table  

- Domestic Violence Self Defence  

- Art Groups  

- Sporting Clubs 

- Music  

- Theatre  
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Enhance the health and sense of wellbeing of the community at all life stages. 

5.6.1 Promote and 

organise health and 

wellbeing 

campaigns and 

programs. 

 

 

The Urban Bush Dance was held to celebrate Seniors Week with over 100 

seniors, it was very successful.  

 

Road safety campaigns were continued including learner driver training and 

restraint checking.  

 

Created a Communication Strategy that provided our community with 

current, reliable and relevant information around COVID19 and the 

restrictions.  

 

Undertook a campaign to contact residents in the community for a Kindness 

Call. Approximately 2,500 calls were made in the quarter. This information was 

used to provide referral for additional services where needed, and 

encouraged local community to work together.  

 

Created The Hunters Chill program which allowed our community to connect 

and be active through COVID19. This included: 

-  Daily Yoga x 20 sessions 

-  Created a collection of musical playlists relating to our area.  

-  Mapped nature walks for our children 

-  Grab a good book and bear hunt.  



5.6.2 Work with  health 

providers and local 

organisations to 

increase awareness 

of health and 

wellbeing issues 

 

 

Engaged with Sydney Community Services almost daily through the Kindness 

Call program and referrals.  

 

Through partnership with Harris Farm at Boronia Park, distributed 100 boxes of 

fresh fruit and vegetables to community organisations and individuals with 

need due to the impact of COVID19. Delivered 900 hampers.  

 

Worked with local schools to identify who was at risk or had great need and 

arranged referral for services.  

 

Created a weekly meeting with Sydney Community Services, St George 

Housing and Lane Cove Council community services to highlight programs 

and community needs. 



Services and facilities that are child, youth, family  and age friendly are supported 

5.7.1 Improve and 

maximise access to 

and use of parks, 

community, sporting 

and cultural 

facilities. 

 

 

As part of Councils commitment to increasing usage to parks for the 

community, Council is continuously working on improvement of existing 

facilities such as the installation of drainage on Boronia 3.  

 

Supported community groups such as Happy Hens and worked with 

Community services to ensure events, such as Moocooboola and Carols by 

Candlelight, run smoothly. 

 

In addition, engagement with the community services to improve the 

disabled access to reserves has been ongoing. The regeneration of Councils 

Bushland has been encouraged through local volunteers aiding in tree 

planting activities. Council continues to be open to suggestions such as the 

installation of a synthetic field at Gladesville Reserve. 

 

Council has recently partnered with TAFE NSW to utilise Boronia Park to train 

students in Arboriculture. They will be trained to conduct maintenance work 

in removing dead wood which will not only improve the park but will also 

provide the students with the practical experience they need in their studies.  
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5.7.2 Liaise with and 

support local 

childrens and age 

services providers 

 

 

Council continue to host quarterly childrens services meetings and continue 

to work closely with the services through COVID.  

 

Created ANZAC at Home campaign so that our community could still 

recognize ANZAC in COVID19 lockdown. This included a virtual honour roll 

published and printed and distributed into every letter box. On ANZAC 

morning, in lieu of traditional dawn service we engaged 4 bagpipers to walk 

through the community, beginning outside our aged care facilities. This was 

filmed and loaded to our digital channels for the community to enjoy on the 

same day.  

 

Engaged the community in a bear hunt to excite and delight our younger 

residents on their daily walks when at the peak of lockdown, and home 

schooling.  

 

Worked with local school student to craft poems in the style of Banjo Paterson 

which where painted on empty shop windows for the community to enjoy. 



Council provides accessible services and facilities to residents of all abilities 

5.8.1 Implement the 

Disability Inclusion 

Action Plan (DIAP), 

including: 

- Commence 

upgrades to play 

spaces in line with 

NSW Everyone 

can Play 

guidelines 

- Introduce closed 

captions for 

Council meeting 

- Work with Jigsaw 

on digitising  

Council completed and endorsed a Hunters Hill Playspace Strategy 

http://www.huntershill.nsw.gov.au/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/HHC-

Playspace-Strategy-2020-2024-1-1.pdf 

 

Council reviewed 50% progress of DIAP and created an action plan for what 

comes next. http://www.huntershill.nsw.gov.au/wp-

content/uploads/2020/05/DIAP-FINAL-DRAFT-24_02_2020.pdf 

 

Council meetings moved to live-stream on YouTube which provides better 

Closed Caption options.  

Engaged Jigsaw (a social enterprise employment for people with disability) to 

assist in the digitising of historical records as part of the "Our People, Our History" 

project. This is also a partnership with the RSL Sub Branch. 



5.8.2 Review the use of 

open spaces, parks, 

reserves, 

playgrounds in line 

with DIAP, POMs 

and Councils Asset 

Management Plans 

 

 

The Boronia Park Plan of Management was adopted 30 April 2020. The draft 

Riverglade Reserve Plan of Management has been prepared and has been 

submitted to Crown Lands for approval to be placed on public exhibition.  

A Playspace Strategy adopted 27 April 2020.  

The DIAP review in February and playspaces are included in draft AMP and 

Playfix report.  

The drainage on Boronia Park Oval 3 and tank installation for water reuse has 

been completed. 

In addition, the landscaped areas at Figtree Park were refreshed. 



5.8.3 Hunters Hill Council 

incorporates 

Universal Design 

Principles into its 

plans and 

documents 

 

 

Completed the Playspace Strategy and is upgrading new playspaces. Council 

is partnering with Play for All and Touched by Olivia to deliver inclusive 

playspaces and has been funded by Everyone Can Play.  

Preparation to assist with a smooth transition to Lane Cove Council Library 

service with a focus on a substantial digital offering and will continue to provide 

home delivery service. 

Website has been reviewed for accessibility.  

Works as part of the Town Hall will address accessibility and support Universal 

Design principles including:  

-  provision of access via a new ramp through the front door 

-  new ambulant toilets 

-  new accessible toilets 



http://www.huntershill.nsw.gov.au/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/DIAP-FINAL-DRAFT-24_02_2020.pdf
http://www.huntershill.nsw.gov.au/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/DIAP-FINAL-DRAFT-24_02_2020.pdf
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5.8.4 Organise events to 

celebrate Seniors 

Festival 

 

 

Reviewed the success of the Urban Bush Dance and the communication 

campaign for 2021 Seniors Festival. 

 

Held discussion with NSROC group around how to support seniors events in the 

future. 



5.8.5 Work with local 

organisations and 

residents to assist 

disadvantaged 

residents and 

reduce social 

isolation. 

 

 

Approximately 2,500 residents were contacted as part of the Kindness Calls 

program and assisted with service referrals, a chat or some needed 

information.  

 

A MOU was entered into with Macquarie University and Touched by Olivia to 

conduct an Intergenerational Remembering Project. 

 

Delivered 900 Hampers to local residents with need through the initial COVID-19 

period.  



5.8.6 Maximise access to 

and usage of 

Councils community 

and sporting 

facilities 

 

 

Councils focus on maximising access and usage of community and sporting 

facilities has seen significant changes within the local area.  

The improvement works at Town Hall included an access ramp and accessible 

bathrooms to improve Councils comprehension with the community.  

Henley Community Centre has also undergone structural improvements, 

improving the functionality for the local community.  

As a popular spot for local families, Woolwich bath has also seen significant 

improvements in regards to a tree that was deteriorating sea wall which has 

now been rectified.   

Happy Hens were also supported in the additional disability toilet access, to 

ensure the public is accommodated.   

The sports field light booking system has also been a huge success in allowing 

users to swiftly book and manage their accessibility through automatic 

response.  



Council provides a diverse and well supported arts and cultural program 

5.9.1 Promote Hunters Hill 

as a destination for 

arts and culture 

 

 

One of the only Councils to continue commitment to host art in COVID19. 

Continued to support our schools thorugh the Young In Art program.  

 

Creation of a new, local exhibition to replace the regular art exhibition.  

 

Developed a platform for Art and Culture as partner of Google Art and Culture 

to create an online collection to enable access to all materials by a broader 

audience.  

 

Encouraged community art projects through the Hunters Hill Hunt and other 

activations. 



5.9.2 Review public art 

policy and list and 

promote public art 

installations 

Council has prepared mural submissions for DPIE Streets as Shared Spaces 

program. In addition, council arranged for poems written by children locally to 

be painted on empty shop windows.  

A Public Art Implementation Strategy was created.  



Council builds social networks and cohension 

5.10.1 Support regional 

strategies to improve 

service provision for 

residents of non-

English speaking 

backgrounds 

Council has been working with St George Housing to connect residents in 

Blandville Court will service during COVID19 and have delivered 100's of Care 

Packages of food donated by Harris Farm Markets to these groups.  





60 

 

HUNTERS HILL COUNCIL 

ANNUAL REPORT  |   2019 - 2020  

Action 

Code 

Action Name Annual Comment Status 

5.10.2 Support awards and 

initiatives that 

promote the 

contribution made 

by volunteers to 

community life 

The Volunteers morning tea was held in November.  Australia Day Awards were 

held and Citizen awards honouring the contribution of people in the local 

community. Communications were sent out following the event congratulating 

winners. 



5.10.3 Foster and promote 

volunteering 

programs that 

support community, 

cultural, recreational 

and environmental 

priorities 

Council continues to support the Happy Hens, Bushcare groups and our 

sporting and community clubs, Council has also signed an MOU with 

Macquarie University and Touched By Olivia to undertake an Intergenerational 

remembering projects.  

Council has engaged social enterprise, Jigsaw, to work with the RSL as part of 

the Our People, Our History project, digitising precious wartime memories from 

our local residents. Council has developed a pen pal project that will be rolled 

out in August.  

Council has commenced discussions with Ecopaddlers and are supporting their 

submission to take custodianship of a boat shed on the harbour to house 

kayaks that will be used to patrol the water and collect rubbish.  



5.10.4 Provide annual 

community service 

grants to local 

organisations 

Council received 15 Community Grant Applications by the deadline of 1 

October 2019.  A subcommittee of Councillors met on Monday 18 November 

2019 to review the applications. A report went to Council on 25 November 2019 

recommending that all applicants receive the funding they requested, which 

totaled $11,976. Payments were made to the applicants in November and 

December 2019. 



5.10.5 Facilitate meetings 

between School 

Principals and 

Council 

The Committee have met regularly over the past 12 months. 

The Committee have discussed a range of health and safety matters relating to 

local schools as well as broader sustainability ideas.  Topics discussed include: 

- presentations from Council's Road Safety Officers: Car Seat Safety 

Check; opportunities to conduct a workshop for parents to teach 

learner drivers.  

- School to Work program, includes school based apprenticeships and 

traineeships (SBATs), Career expos and other school-focused  

- programs for disengaged youth and youth health and wellbeing 

- sustainability initiatives (eg Hunters Hill High School sustainable uniform 

initiatives; ie. native bee programs  

The Principals have agreed that a working group of P&C reps would support 

the development of a local safety around schools program, with the assistance 

of our Road Safety Learning Officer. Next steps will be to provide feedback on 

terms of reference. 



The Hunters Hill local government area is a place where people feel safe 

5.11.1 Inform residents 

about community 

safety and 

encourage residents 

to report any safety 

issues 

Provided community with regular and reliable information on how to manage 

concerns and issues around safety.  

Opened regular dialogue with the Local Area Command and community 

leaders. 



 



Creation of a Pandemic Plan  
COVID Communication Plan
Revised working from home policies
Updates to employee conditions as per legislative
requirements
IT responsiveness
Risk assessments
Safety plans

In early 2020, Council, like all organisations was affected by the
COVID-19 pandemic.

A Crisis Management Team was quickly established to respond to
the crisis.  Our response included, but was not limited to:
      

Being a smaller Council, the General Manager and Senior
Leadership Team have the benefit of knowing individuals,
meaning that Council could tailor our response and be agile,
taking into consideration everyone’s wellbeing and knowing
capabilities around resilience would vary.

Rather than being reactive to the crisis, Council’s Crisis
Management team took a strategic and planned approach.
Alternative pathways and methods were considered and solutions  
implemented, which ensured that essential services were
maintained, and in some cases enhanced, for our community.

Hunter’s Hill Council was prepared, and able to continue operating
through the pandemic. Whilst most staff worked from home,
Council implemented strict criteria and protocols for those
employees required to work on site.

During this time we identified the required skills necessary to
ensure that Council came out of the pandemic stronger.
 
To bridge that gap in employee skills, our Crisis Management Team
demonstrated leadership which helped build resilience in our
employees. This is evident by the continuous levels of service and
the ability for our employees to adapt to different roles as
required.
 
Council created an environment of psychological safety which
encouraged our employees to voice their opinion – through COVID
health check and Employee Engagement surveys.
 
Through the crisis, our people demonstrated adaptability and
flexibility. This was underpinned by good communication and
mental health support. These skills enabled Council to build and
manage resilience across Council and our community.
 
COVID-19 enabled Council to fast-track online solutions, the
digitialisation of forms, reach out to our community and staff like
never before, and provide a strong platform for staff to work from
home effectively and efficiently.
 
Council was also able to ensure that all our employees remained
gainfully employed through the crisis, and this was largely due to
resilience and willingness of staff to be multi-skilled and a sense
of urgency and strategic planning from the leadership team.
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13.1  OUR RESPONSE TO COVID-19
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Hunter's Hill Council partnered with Sydney Community

Services and St George Housing (supported by Touched by

Olivia and Harris Farm Markets) to provide care packages to

our residents in need during the initial stages of lockdown in

the pandemic.

  

Through our kindness calls, seventy (70) of our residents

indicated they needed help. Council worked directly, delivering

fruit and vegetable packages, and then worked  with Sydney

Community Services through a referral model to ensure fresh

fruit and vegetables were delivered. 100 care packages were

delivered daily from Harris Farm at Boronia Park. 

Council also conducted a fundraiser and food bank drive for

Sydney Community Services, raising more than $3,000 to

replenish the shelves. 

  

COMMUNITY  SHOUT OUT!

Regular  “Community Shout Out” posts were made via Council’s

social media channels asking for goods donations from the

community. 

  

H U N T E R ' S  H I L L  C O U N C I L  
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"We are working hard  to ensure that the

Foodbank at Sydney Community Services

doesn't run low. The team at Sydney

Community Services is keeping hundreds of

our local older and self-isolating residents

supplied with the basics in addition to fresh

fruit and veggies. Tomorrow there are 14

parcels needing to be delivered to single

parent families who are doing it very tough.

We need your help. The current call out to be

delivered by 4pm today is for tinned foods

such as tuna, rice and  pasta, kids snack

foods. Anything is greatly appreciated. Please

deliver directly to the SCS office verandah on

46 Gladesville Rd Hunters Hill." 

13.2 CASE STUDY: CARE PACKAGES & KINDNESS CALLS



CASE STUDY cont...

Calls began on Monday 30 March 2020 with Hunter’s Hill

Council Place and Projects team making Kindness Calls to

residents. Over 2,368  unique calls were made within the

community.

 

The reaction to the Kindness Calls was overwhelmingly

positive, with many residents saying they were extremely

touched by the gesture. Residents informed of their own

local social networking initiatives as they made sure their

isolated neighbours were being looked after. 

Many residents generously offered to volunteer in the

community if needed.

 

The team asked residents if they were okay, if they could

shop for themselves, or receive deliveries; and if they have

support. With the information collected, staff could put

vulnerable residents in touch with fabulous organisations

such as Sydney Community Services, and identify areas of

community  concern.

  

•       2,368 unique calls

•       Individualised engagement

•      Almost 50% of our rateable properties 

•       70 calls were referred to other services

•       Follow-up calls to check once a week on older/

vulnerable members

•    Onsite visits where there were issues (eg fence)

 •       COVID Communications + Engagement

•     Online community activities

•   Support to local business, community + sporting

groups

•    Online forums

•       Significant communication  

H U N T E R ' S  H I L L  C O U N C I L  
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Gladesville Heritage Walking Trail
Happy Hens Community Garden
local restaurants and cafes
community groups running art classes
foreshores and waterways
local businesses
new improvements to the look of the shopping areas.

The concept for Love Gladesville was developed in 2019, with
the City of Ryde and Hunter’s Hill Council working together
with residents and local businesses to develop a campaign to
promote this proud and thriving community place.
 
The program started out by promoting a number of key
initiatives, including:     

The concept then grew to developing a Love Gladesville
Facebook page run by the Gladesville Chamber of Commerce,
with people jumping on to share stories, asking for local
advice and generally finding out what’s happening. During
2019-20 the page had 3,000 members.

An interactive map on our website, which outlines nearly
every business in the Gladesville Shopping Precinct now
makes it easy for any visitor wanting to find out where to eat,
or where to bank or even where to find the local grocery
store. Businesses have also been encouraged to set up their
profile on Google so people can find them.

Place making activations included laneway murals, pavement
art, installing planter beds (aka Hen Beds) to grow herbs for
use by local cafes and restaurants, repurposing existing aged
bus seats with a coat of paint, art exhibitions and special
events, business promotion initiatives, and branded
brochures and shopping bags.

Love Gladesville is not just about finding out where a local
business is, it’s about building a sense of community and
ensuring that the businesses and people of Gladesville are
valued and supported.

0 1

It aims to increase patronage in the precinct,
promote improved appearance and a positive vibe within
the area, create a more user-friendly experience for
visitors to the area, and aid business promotion through
resources, networking, advice and support.

A survey following Love Gladesville’s inception showed
nine out of 10 respondents would be very likely to
recommend Gladesville to their friends of family.

Love Gladesville has been recognised as a finalist in a
series of national awards during 2020 including national
and state local government excellence awards and Greater
Sydney Planning Awards.

During the pandemic, Love Gladesville became a
connection point for many in the community.

For more about Love Gladesville visit:
huntershill.nsw.gov.au/community/our-
places/lovegladesville/

H U N T E R ' S  H I L L  C O U N C I L  
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The annual Moocooboola community festival was once held in
the streets surrounding the Hunters Hill Town Hall. The event
comprised community information and merchandise stalls in
D’Aram Street, food stalls in the Council carpark and a
community performance stage in the Town Hall. The
highlight of the day was the Grand Parade, which started at
the overpass and travelled down Church and Alexandra
streets. People would line the streets to cheer on travelling
bands, community and sporting groups as well as community
service organisations and our local schools.

Moocooboola outgrew the Town Hall and in 2001 was moved
to the Hunters Hill High School oval.

The name of the festival originated from the Indigenous term
for the Peninsula, Moco Boula, which translated means the
meeting of two waters - the Lane Cove and Parramatta
Rivers. It was considered even more appropriate that the
event was held on the water at Hunters Hill High School.

Moocooboola enjoyed a reinvigorated focus at Hunters Hill
High School, particularly with senior secondary school
groups, who hosted a Battle of the Bands. The parade even
changed and commenced at the Hunters Hill Club, travelled
down Madeline, Ferdinand, Alexandra, Mount streets and
onto the High School oval.

Boronia Park also made it possible to have more stalls,
with a particular emphasis on quality food. Families could
come to the event and spend a day out, catch up with
friends and enjoy the performances, rides and celebrity
challenges.  

Moocooboola has changed with the times. The key theme
of 'community' is still alive and well, proven with visitor
numbers reaching 20,000.

H U N T E R ' S  H I L L  C O U N C I L  
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1 3 . 4  C A S E  S T U D Y :  M O O C O O B O O L A

However, Moocooboola was to move
one last time - to the ovals of Boronia
Park in 2008. The new site enabled
more community groups to get
involved, promote their services and
perform in front of thousands of
people. 



provide a 20-year land use vision 

outline the characteristics which make the Hunters Hill

LGA special 

identify our shared values to be enhanced or maintained 

direct how future growth and change will be managed 

make changes to planning rules in our Local

Environmental Plan and Development Control Plan 

implement the North District Plan

identify where further detailed strategic planning may be

needed.

The Local Strategic Planning Statement (LSPS)  is a 20-year

strategy document to manage growth and change in the

Hunters Hill local government area (LGA). 

The LSPS is a State Government requirement and aligns with

two key State Government documents that outline the need

for Hunter’s Hill Council to deliver 150 new dwellings - The

North District Plan and Greater Sydney Metropolitan Regional

Plan, prepared by the Greater Sydney Commission (GSC).  

The LSPS addresses land use planning, management and

sustainability as part of a place-making focus for our

community. The LSPS involves public and private

lands and operates alongside the Hunters Hill Community

Strategic Plan.

The purpose of the LSPS is to: 

·       

0 1

The LSPS sets out future opportunities for population and

housing, our environment, access, transport and the

economy. 

This includes addressing our changing population with an

increase in younger people, protecting our bushland,

waterways and open spaces and helping people get to

where they need to go by managing traffic and improving

public transport.

Our LSPS can be found here:

huntershill.nsw.gov.au/wp-content/uploads/2020/05/HHC-

LSPS-20200316-V12cspreads.pdf
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NSROC Waste Alliance Disposal contract valued at                   

Waste Collection Service Contract valued at $1,253,363

This section of the Annual Report provides additional
detailed supporting information and addresses statutory
requirements.

Council’s general reporting requirements are in section 428
of the Local Government Act 1993 and section 217 of the
Local Government (General)  Regulation 2005 (Part 9 Division
7).

14.1 Code of Conduct
Section 440 of the Local Government Act 1993 requires every
council to adopt a Code of Conduct. Councillors and staff are
bound by this Code of Conduct, which sets a high standard for
ethical behaviour and decision-making. The code defines
roles and responsibilities and outlines the steps to be
followed when making and investigating allegations of
breaches of the code.

All Councillors and Council staff participated in Code of
Conduct training.

During 2019-20 there were two (2) Code of Conduct
complaints received.

14.2 Public Access to information
Responding to requests made under the Government
Information (Public Access) Act 2009 (GIPA Act), is an
essential component of transparent and accountable
governance. Under the GIPA Act, we encourage the proactive
public release of government information where possible.
The public have an enforceable right to access government
information by way of open access information, informal
requests, and formal access applications. Access to
information is only restricted when there is an overriding
public interest consideration against disclosure, as clearly
defined within the GIPA Act. Council must decide valid
formal access applications made under GIPA Act within the
decision period of 20 working days from receipt, except
where an extension of time is provided by the GIPA Act.

During 2019-2020 Council received 25 formal access
applications under the GIPA Act.

14.3 Major Contracts Awarded
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 217 (1)(a2)
In 2019 - 2020 Council awarded two (2) contracts over
$250,000:
·      

       $902,980 including GST

       including GST

0 1

Written off Rates + Charges
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 - 132
The following rates and charges were written off in
2019/20:

14.5 Financial Assistance
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 - 217 (1)(a5).

Council assistance to community groups during 2019-20
totalled $12,476, the details of which can be seen in
Section 5.2 of this report.

14.6 Mayoral and Councillor Fees
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 - 217 (1) (a1)

Total payments to Councillors in 2019-20 were $186,190 as
itemised in Section 7.4 of this report. 

6 7

Rate postponements written off

14.4 Private Works 

Local Government Act 1993 - 67 (3) and Local Government

(General) Regulation 2005 - 217 (1) (a4).

No private works were carried out.
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2019-20

Interest waived

Pensioner rebates

$1,534

$527

$76,532



14.7 Overseas Visits
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 - 217 (1) (a)

No overseas visits were undertaken during the year by
Councillors or staff.

14.8 Senior Staff Salaries
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 - 217 (1) (b) and (c)

Council had one senior staff position during 2019-20.

The current General Manager had a total remuneration
package of $300,404 during this period.

14.9 Legal Proceedings
Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 - 217(1) (a3).

Council’s net legal expenditure for 2019-20 was $385,802.
Down from the previous year Council’s net legal expenditure
for 2018-19 of $725,000.

During this period ten (10) notices of appeal to the Land and
Environment Court of NSW were filed being appeals before
Council under the “deemed refusal” provisions of the
Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, or against
Council’s determination of Development Applications.

Most of the appeals were all resolved through consent orders
handed down by the Court.  However, one (1) of the appeals
was dismissed and two (2) of these appeals were
discontinued.

0 16 8

The results of these appeals and other legal matters are
set out in the table below.  A number of appeals have
been orders to give effect to the parties s34 (3)
Agreement, (s34 Agreement between parties) following a
process of successful negotiated outcomes.  This
approach of mediation is also endorsed by the Court,
following amendments to the court directions, hence
resulting in sustainable planning outcomes for both
parties.

This amendment to s34 of the Land and Environment
Court Act 1979 makes conciliation conferences under
that section available in all proceedings within Classes 1
to 3 of the Court’s jurisdiction and the recent Practice
Notes which encourages parties to consider using such
conferences to resolve disputes or narrow the scope of
issues in dispute.

The court now endorses conciliation conferences, the
purpose of which is to resolve all issues in appeals, if
possible. The parties are all advised to properly prepare
for each conference with this purpose in mind. The Court
also expects all parties to be prepared and have
sufficient instructions and authority to engage in
meaningful conciliation of the conference whether or not
they agree to the Commissioner resolving the dispute if
consensus is not reached. 

In addition to the appeals, Council often requires legal
advice from its solicitors, in respect of general matters
such as contracts, leases and other matters pertaining to
the planning, building and regulatory functions of the
Council.

1 4 .  S T A T U T O R Y  +  O T H E R  I N F O R M A T I O N

FUNDING BODY/PROGRAMPROJECT TITLE

File No.
2019/17666
17 January 2019

PROJECT TITLE

Case No.

David Melocco v Hunter's
Hill Council - 
2 Viret Street 
Hunters Hill

Case Name

FUNDING BODY/PROGRAM

Funding Body/Program

FUNDING BODY/PROGRAMPROJECT TITLE

Appeal Class 1 Application
Deemed refusal of
DA No. 2019-1119

PROJECT TITLE

Matter

Appeal Discontinued 
2 June 2020

Case NameCase Name Status outcome Funding Body/Program

FUNDING BODY/PROGRAM

 $23436

Case Name$ by case

File No.
2019/361850
21 November 2019

Blainey North & Associates
Pty Ltd v Hunter's Hill
Council 
22 Vernon Street Hunters
Hill

Appeal Class 1 Application
Deemed refusal of
DA No. 2019-1056

Appeal Discontinued  
28 April 2020  $700

File No.
2019/00188972
21 December 2018

David Charles Shad v
Hunter's Hill Council – 
96 Barons Crescent
Hunters Hill

Appeal Class 1 Application
Refusal of DA  
DA Number 2019/1010

Consent orders issued    
Appeal Upheld 25 February
2020 s34 Agreement
between parties

 $38458

File No.
2019/89953
21 March 2019

Jason Khouri v Hunter's Hill
Council – 
32 -32A Ryde Road,
Hunters Hill

Appeal Class 1 Application 
Deemed refusal    21 March
2019
DA Number 2019 - 1002

Consent orders issued   
Appeal Upheld 21 February
2020 s34 Agreement
between parties

 $21103

File No.
2018/208397
12 July 2018

Nonlow Pty Limited v
Hunter's Hill Council 
219 - 221 Victoria Road
Gladesville

Appeal Class 1 Application 
Deemed refusal   
DA Number2017-1183

File No.
2019/110343
12 March 2019

Doyle v Hunter's Hill Council
– 3 Joly Parade, Hunters Hill

Appeal Class 1 Application 
Refusal of DA  
DA Number 2018/1002

Appeal Dismissed   
17 December 2019  $18406

File No.
2019/17666
17 January 2019

David Melocco v Hunter's
Hill Council - 2 Viret Street 
Hunters Hill

Appeal Class 1 Application
– Deemed refusal   
DA Number 2018 - 1126

Consent orders issued   
Appeal Upheld 24 October
2019 s34 (3) Agreement
between parties

 $0

File No.
2018/393980
21 December 2018

John David Hamilton Evans
v Hunters Hill Council
14 Ferry Street 
Hunters Hill

Appeal Class 1 Application 
Refusal of DA
DA number 2017/1172

Consent orders issued.
Appeal Upheld 18
September 2019 s34 (3)
Agreement between
parties

 $43420

Consent orders issued  
Appeal Upheld 20
December 2019
s34 Agreement between
parties

 $32668

File No.
2018/279902
12 September 2018

Atlen Construction  Pty
Limited v Hunter's Hill
Council 233 - 235 Victoria
Road Gladesville

Appeal Class 1 Application
Deemed Refusal 
DA Number 2017-1199

Consent orders issued 
Appeal Upheld 12 July 2019
s34 (3) Agreement between
parties

 $0

File No.
2018/279986
12 September 2018

Atlen Construction  Pty
Limited v Hunter's Hill
Council 223 - 227 Victoria
Road Gladesville

Appeal Class 1 Application
Deemed Refusal 
DA Number 2017-1197

Consent orders issued 
Appeal Upheld   
12 July 2019
s34 (3) Agreement
between parties

 $16280



14.10 Special Levies Environmental Special Levy  

Other Infrastructure Special Levy 
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A rates special variation allows councils to increase
general income above the State Government set rate
peg. The rate peg limits the amount which councils can
increase their general income by. There are a range of
reasons why councils apply for special rate variations,
such as to address financial sustainability, funding new
or enhancing community services and funding the
development and/or maintenance of essential
community infrastructure. Council has the following
special levies:

Community Facilities Special Levy  

Road Infrastructure Special Levy  



14.15  Bushfire Risk Management

Rural Fires Act 1997 - Division 2 Section 74

The Hunter's Hill, Lane Cove, Ryde and Parramatta Council's
Bush Fire Management Committee worked with Fire and
Rescue NSW to prepare an annual Hazard Reduction Program.
The draft Hunter's Hill, Lane Cove, Ryde and Parramatta
Council's Bushfire Risk Management Plan 2019-24 was
prepared and placed on public exhibition in December 2019. In
addition, Council has been implementing treatment actions
including community education from the existing Hunter's Hill,
Lane Cove, Ryde and Willoughby Council's Bushfire Risk
Management Plan 2010.

Two hazard reduction burns have been proposed and
supported by Fire and Rescue NSW this financial year; one in
Boronia Park (adjoining High Street - adjacent to Montefiore
Nursing Home) and the second in Buffalo Creek Reserve,
including the lower part of 13 private properties. Landowner
consent had been provided for both proposed hazard
reduction burns. 
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Access Inclusion and Seniors Advisory Group  
Art Exhibition Advisory Committee
Audit and Risk Improvement Committee 
Bushland Management Advisory Committee
Children's Services Advisory Committee 
Conservation Advisory Panel
Events Advisory Committee 
Gladesville Main Street Committee 
Hunters Hill Village Main Street Committee 
Joint Library Advisory Committee 
Property Advisory Committee
Public Art Committee
School Principals Liaison Group 
Inclusive Playground Project Panel

Details of external bodies, companies and partnerships Local
Government (General) Regulation 2005 - 217 (1) (a6-8)
Committees of Council  

Council has not delegated under S355 any functions. However,
it does have a range of Advisory Committees. These are set
out below: 

Advisory Committees 
Council has a number of Advisory Committees which generally
meet quarterly to share ideas, gather feedback and provide
advice to Council on broad areas of interest.

 Local Area Traffic Committee 
Le Vésinet Friendship Committee
Local Planning Panel
NSROC
Parramatta River Catchment Group
Regional Planning Panel        
Sydney Harbour Foreshore Authority (SHFA)

Boronia Park Plan of Management Community Advisory
Committee
Floodplain Risk Management Advisory Committee
Library Services Working Party

External Committees

Sunset Committees
From time-to-time we also establish sunset committees
which are similar to advisory committees but are formed
for a defined period of time for a specific project.

In 2019-2020 Council had the following sunset committees
in operation:

Civic Risk Mutual Insurance Pool
Joint Use Agreement with the City of Ryde for provision of library
services 
Local Government NSW
Shared Services for Internal Audit
Shared Service with Lane Cove Council: Waste Officer and Road
Safety officers
Waste Alliance

Interests in Companies, Partnerships, Joint Ventures and Co-
operatives

In 2019-20 Council did not hold a controlling interest in any company,
joint venture or partnership. A listing and description of significant
agreements, cooperatives and partnerships are as follows:  

14.12 Companion Animals

Local Government (General) regulation 2005-217(1)(f)
Council is required to report its activities about enforcement
and compliance with the Companion Animals Act 1988 and
Companion Animals Regulation 2008.

In 2019-20 Council spent $2,529 on the management and
control of companion animals, excluding administrative
support or additional support provided by regulatory officers.

Council retained a commission on the collection of 63 new
Companion Animal Registration fees totaling $2,660 for 
2019-20. This is used to partially offset the costs of companion
animal management.

During 2019-20, animal control officers managed:
Attacks reported: 0
Impounded:0
Sold: 0
Returned to owners prior to impounding: 2
Returned to owners post impounding: 0
Euthanised: 0

14.13 Major Contracts Awarded

Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 217(1)(1a)
In 2019-20 Council awarded two (2) contracts over $250,000:

NSROC Waste Alliance Disposal contract valued at $902, 980
including GST

Waste Collection Service Contract valued at $1,253,825
including GST

14.14 Planning Agreements

Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979-93G (5)

There were no planning agreements in place during the 2019-
20 financial year.



 Council is required under the NSW Disability Act 2014 to develop
a Disability Inclusion Action Plan (DIAP), which is to be reviewed
annually and updated in our Annual Report. The DIAP relates to
some of the directions outlined in Hunter's Hill Council's
Community Strategic Plan. 

As required, Council reviewed the DIAP mid-term and provided a
report to Council on the progress. This review and report were
adopted by Council in May 2020 and published on Council's
website.

Hunter’s Hill Council has made significant achievements against
the actions in the DIAP, with most actions completed or
underway. We have addressed many challenges through
disability awareness training, revision of public forms and
documents, broadcasting Council meetings and improvements
to customer service.

Council has adopted a deliberate strategy to promote positive
messaging about inclusion, demonstrated in the
“inclusion” branding of events and public places. While we can
report on the completion of many of the DIAP actions,
the test of the effectiveness of the DIAP will be the level of
satisfaction of people with disability with Council’s services and
facilities.

The DIAP’s overall effectiveness will be evidenced by increased
contact and improved communication with residents with
disability, and through improved accessibility of facilities,
services and employment.

Over the next two years, our DIAP actions will be completed. This
report provides an opportunity to review the DIAP actions and
consider how to assess whether these actions have been
effective. The mid-term report introduced a series of outcome
KPI's to measure the performance in the future annual review.  

Promoted the lived experience of disability through
communications regularly.
Sponsored the Inclusion Award at the Northern Districts Local
Business Awards.

Commenced upgrade of Town Hall access, including an entry
ramp, accessible bathrooms and accessible chamber.
Commenced review of Council facilities, and collated
information on access for hiring information.
Reviewed footpath conditions and improved access in
Gladesville and Garibaldi Villages.
Advocated for Universal Design and Inclusion in all projects
and events.
Developed a Playspace Strategy informed by the Everyone Can
Play guideline. Created design for new playspace at Riverglade
Reserve based on the principles.  
Promoted inclusive play through partnerships with Touched by
Olivia and Play for All Australia.
Promoted the completion of bus stop upgrade program to DDA
compliance.

Engaged contractors and entertainers with disabilities.
Updated Council's Equal Opportunity Employment policy and
communicated and promoted with internal and external
stakeholders.

Improved Council and committee meeting accessibility using
online broadcast through COVID.
Updated accessibility of Council's website, including review of
colour contrast, usability and the function of assistive
technology like screen readers on our website. 
Created a community directory that includes information on
disability service providers. 
Participated and facilitated local and regional forums with
service providers, and planned collaborative approaches to
key issues. 
Continued to promote opportunities for consultation online, in
person and via phone. 

Key achievements across the four focus areas are:

FOCUS AREA 1 - Develop positive community attitudes and
behaviours

FOCUS AREA 2 - Create liveable communities

FOCUS AREA 3 - Support access to meaningful employment 

FOCUS AREA 4 - Improve access to services through better
systems and processes

15. DISABILITY  INCLUSION ACTION PLAN
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Hunter's Hill Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business at:

Overview

22 Alexandra Street
Hunters Hill NSW 2110

Council’s guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the LGA and includes:

• principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,
• principles to be applied when making decisions,
• principles of community participation,
• principles of sound financial management, and
• principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.

A description of the nature of Council’s operations and its principal activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All
press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website: www.huntershill.nsw.gov.au.
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§Note/Subtotal§

Each year, individual Local Governments across NSW are required to present a set of audited financial statements to their
council and community.

§Subnote§

Introduction

The financial statements set out the financial performance, financial position and cash flows of Council for the financial year
ended 30 June 2020.

What you will find in the Statements

The format of the financial statements is standard across all NSW Councils and complies with both the accounting and reporting
requirements of Australian Accounting Standards and requirements as set down by the Office of Local Government.

The financial statements must be certified by senior staff as ‘presenting fairly’ the Council’s financial results for the year and
are required to be adopted by Council – ensuring both responsibility for and ownership of the financial statements.

About the Councillor/Management Statement

The financial statements incorporate five "primary" financial statements:

1. The Income Statement

About the Primary Financial Statements

Summarises Council's financial performance for the year, listing all income and expenses. This statement also displays
Council's original adopted budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

2. The Statement of Comprehensive Income
Primarily records changes in the fair value of Council's Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

3. The Statement of Financial Position
A 30 June snapshot of Council's financial position indicating its assets, liabilities and “net wealth”.

4. The Statement of Changes in Equity
The overall change for the year (in dollars) of Council's "net wealth".

5. The Statement of Cash Flows
Indicates where Council's cash came from and where it was spent. This statement also displays Council's original adopted
budget to provide a comparison between what was projected and what actually occurred.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide greater detail and additional information on the five primary financial statements.

About the Notes to the Financial Statements

Council’s financial statements are required to be audited by the NSW Audit Office.

About the Auditor's Reports

In NSW the auditor provides 2 audit reports:

1. an opinion on whether the financial statements present fairly the Council’s financial performance and position, and
2. their observations on the conduct of the audit, including commentary on the Council’s financial performance and financial

position.

The financial statements are publicly available documents and must be presented at a Council meeting between seven days
and five weeks after the date of the audit report.

The public can make submissions to Council up to seven days subsequent to the public presentation of the financial statements.

Council is required to forward an audited set of financial statements to the Office of Local Government.

Who uses the Financial Statements?

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Understanding Council's Financial Statements
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The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill 

General Purpose Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2020 

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to Section 413(2)( c) of the Local 

Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) 

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with: 

the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended) and the regulations made thereunder, 

• the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board

• the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements: 

• present fairly the Council's operating result and financial position for the year

• accord with Council's accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way. 

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 09 November 2020. 

Ross Williams 

Mayor 

09 November 2020 

General Manager 

09 November 2020 

Maria Kenny 

Responsible Accounting Officer 

09 November 2020 
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§Statement§

Original 
unaudited 

budget Actual Actual
2020 $ '000 Notes 2020 2019

Income from continuing operations
12,299 Rates and annual charges 3a 12,323 11,397

1,550 User charges and fees 3b 1,982 1,207
1,090 Other revenues 3c 2,057 1,051

754 Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes 3d,3e 836 932
338 Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes 3d,3e 765 1,481
530 Interest and investment income 4 376 567
122 Net gains from the disposal of assets 6 57 116

– Net share of interests in joint ventures and associates
using the equity method

17
– 31

16,683 Total income from continuing operations 18,396 16,782

Expenses from continuing operations
6,225 Employee benefits and on-costs 5a 5,216 5,233
5,555 Materials and contracts 5b 6,944 5,933
2,267 Depreciation and amortisation 5c 2,378 2,295
2,848 Other expenses 5d 2,435 2,335

210 Net losses from the disposal of assets 6 – –

– Net share of interests in joint ventures and associates
using the equity method

17
127 –

17,105 Total expenses from continuing operations 17,100 15,796

(422) Operating result from continuing operations 1,296 986

(422) Net operating result for the year 1,296 986

(422) Net operating result attributable to council 1,296 986

(760) Net operating result for the year before grants and contributions
provided for capital purposes 531 (495)

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 Notes 2020 2019
§Subnote§

Net operating result for the year (as per Income Statement) 1,296 986

Other comprehensive income:
Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result
Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 10 13,502 370
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating 
result 13,502 370

Total other comprehensive income for the year 13,502 370

Total comprehensive income for the year 14,798 1,356

 
Total comprehensive income attributable to Council 14,798 1,356

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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§Statement§

$ '000 Notes 2020 2019

ASSETS   
Current assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 7(a) 4,683 22,516
Investments 7(b) 18,334 –
Receivables 8 1,333 1,065
Inventories 9a 13 8
Other 9b 161 59
Total current assets 24,524 23,648

Non-current assets   
Receivables 8 31 31
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 10 223,131 208,686
Investments accounted for using the equity method 17 499 625
Total non-current assets 223,661 209,342

Total assets 248,185 232,990

LIABILITIES   
Current liabilities   
Payables 13 4,486 3,737
Income received in advance 13 262 252
Contract liabilities 11 1,040 –
Provisions 14 1,385 1,762
Total current liabilities 7,173 5,751

Non-current liabilities   
Provisions 14 19 5
Total non-current liabilities 19 5

Total liabilities 7,192 5,756

Net assets 240,993 227,234

EQUITY   
Accumulated surplus 15 110,890 110,633
Revaluation reserves 15 130,103 116,601
Council equity interest 240,993 227,234

Total equity 240,993 227,234

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2020
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§Note/Subtotal§

as at 30/06/20 as at 30/06/19

$ '000 Notes
Accumulated

surplus

IPP&E 
revaluation 

reserve

Total
equity Accumulated

surplus

IPP&E 
revaluation 

reserve

Total
equity

§Subnote§

Opening balance 110,633 116,601 227,234 109,647 116,231 225,878
Changes due to AASB 1058 and AASB 15 adoption 15 (1,040) – (1,040) – – –
Changes due to AASB 16 adoption 15 – – – – – –
Restated opening balance 109,593 116,601 226,194 109,647 116,231 225,878

Net operating result for the year 1,296 – 1,296 986 – 986
Restated net operating result for the period 1,296 – 1,296 986 – 986

Other comprehensive income
– Gain (loss) on revaluation of IPP&E 10 – 13,502 13,502 – 370 370
– Joint ventures and associates 17a 1 – 1 – – –
Other comprehensive income 1 13,502 13,503 – 370 370

Total comprehensive income 1,297 13,502 14,799 986 370 1,356

Equity – balance at end of the reporting period 110,890 130,103 240,993 110,633 116,601 227,234

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative
information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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§Statement§

Original 
unaudited 

budget
  

Actual Actual
2020 $ '000 Notes 2020 2019

Cash flows from operating activities   
Receipts:   

12,299 Rates and annual charges 12,169 11,332
1,550 User charges and fees 1,798 1,261

530 Investment and interest revenue received 376 578
1,092 Grants and contributions 1,655 2,366

– Bonds, deposits and retention amounts received – 37
1,212 Other 3,132 1,908

Payments:   
(6,225) Employee benefits and on-costs (5,579) (5,399)
(5,555) Materials and contracts (7,103) (5,499)

– Bonds, deposits and retention amounts refunded (49) –
(3,057) Other (3,317) (3,438)

1,846
Net cash provided (or used in) operating 
activities

16b

3,082 3,146

Cash flows from investing activities   
Receipts:   

91 Sale of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 115 328
Payments:   

– Purchase of investment securities (18,334) –
(3,266) Purchase of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (2,696) (1,485)

(3,175) Net cash provided (or used in) investing activities (20,915) (1,157)

(1,329) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (17,833) 1,989

20,498 Plus: cash and cash equivalents – beginning of year 16a 22,516 20,527
19,169 Cash and cash equivalents – end of the year 16a 4,683 22,516

  
– plus: Investments on hand – end of year 7(b) 18,334 –

19,169 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 23,017 22,516

The Council has not restated comparatives when initially applying AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities, AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers and AASB 16 Leases. The comparative information has been prepared under AASB 111 Construction
Contracts, AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 1004 Contributions, AASB 117 Leases and related Accounting Interpretations.

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 9 November 2020. Council has the power to amend and
reissue these financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and Regulations, and the Local Government
Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Council is a not for-profit entity.

The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

(a) Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of 
certain financial assets and liabilities and certain classes of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment 
property.

(b) Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year include:

(i) estimated fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment – refer Note 10
(ii) employee benefit provisions – refer Note 14

(i) Impairment of receivables

Significant judgements in applying the council's accounting policies

Council has made a significant judgement about the impairment of a number of its receivables – refer Note 8.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW), all money and property received
by Council is held in the Council’s Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council’s Trust Fund.

Monies and other assets received by Council

(a) The Consolidated Fund

The Consolidated Fund has been included in the Council's financial statements.

Cash and other assets of the following entities have been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:

◾ General purpose operations

continued on next page ... 

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation

Page 11 of 76

Financial Statements 2020The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 1. Basis of preparation



(b) The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) (as amended), a separate and
distinct Trust Fund is maintained to account for all money and property received by the council in trust which must be applied
only for the purposes of, or in accordance with, the trusts relating to those monies.

No trust funds are currently held by Council.

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services

Council does not have material dependence on volunteer services. Voluneteers are utlised in Cultural Events & Bushland. 
Theses services are not recognised due to their natural as a large percentage would not go ahead should there not be 
volunteers to undertake the roles and their non-material value.

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 30 June 2020 reporting
periods (and which have not been early adopted by Council).

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Council's assessment of these new standards and interpretations (where they have been deemed as having a material impact
on Council's future financial performance, financial position and cash flows) are set out below:

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year, Council adopted all standards which were mandatorily effective for the first time at 30 June 2020.

Those newly adopted standards which had an impact on reported position, performance and/or disclosures have been
discussed in Note 15.

AASB 16 Leases

AASB 16 will result (for YE 19/20 and beyond) in almost all operating leases being recognised on the balance sheet by Council
(alongside existing finance leases) with the distinction between operating and finance leases removed.

Under the new standard, a financial liability (ie. a lease liability) and an asset (ie. a right to use the leased item) will be
recognised for nearly all arrangements where Council commits itself to paying a rental fee for the use of a specific asset.

The only exceptions are short-term and low-value leases which are exempt from the accounting (but not disclosure)
requirements of AASB 16 - Leases.

Council staff have reviewed all of Council’s leasing arrangements over the last 12 months taking into consideration the new
lease accounting rules in AASB 16 (applicable from 1/7/20).

AASB 16 will (on the whole) affect Council's accounting for existing operating lease agreements that are in place as at 30/6/20.

As at the end of this reporting period, lease agreements currently in place will have no material impact on Council's reported
position, performance and /or disclosures.

continued on next page ... 
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Council does not expected any impact on the financial statments from financial activities as a lessor.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and associated amending standards.

AASB15 introduces a five-step process for revenue recognition, with the core principle of the new standard being for entities
to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration (that
is, payment) to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

Accounting policy changes will arise in the timing of revenue recognition, treatment of contracts costs and contracts which
contain a financing element.

Councils should assess each revenue stream but particular impact is expected for grant income and rates which are paid
before the commencement of the rating period.

The changes in revenue recognition requirements in AASB15 may cause changes to the timing and amount of revenue
recorded in the financial statements as well as additional disclosures.

AASB 1058 Income of NFP Entities

AASB 1058 supersedes all the income recognition requirements relating to councils, previously in AASB 1004 Contributions.

Under AASB 1058 the future timing of income recognition will depend on whether the transaction gives rise to a liability or
other performance obligation (a promise to transfer a good or service) related to an asset (such as cash or another asset)
received by an entity.

AASB 1058 also applies when a council receives volunteer services or enters into other transactions in which the consideration
to acquire an asset is significantly less than the fair value of the asset, and where the council’s objective is principally to enable
the asset to further the council’s objectives.

Upon initial recognition of the asset, this standard requires council to consider whether any other financial statement elements
(called ‘related amounts’) should be recognised in accordance with the applicable accounting standard, such as:

(a) contributions by owners,
(b) revenue, or a contract liability arising from a contract with a customer,
(c) a lease liability,
(d) a financial instrument, or
(e) a provision.

If the transaction is a transfer of a financial asset to enable council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset
to be controlled by council (i.e. an in-substance acquisition of a non-financial asset), the council recognises a liability for the
excess of the fair value of the transfer over any related amounts recognised. Council will then recognise income as it satisfies
its obligations under the transfer similarly to income recognition in relation to performance obligations under AASB 15.

If the transaction does not enable council to acquire or construct a recognisable non-financial asset to be controlled by council,
then any excess of the initial carrying amount of the recognised asset over the related amounts is recognised as income.

The specific impacts of AASB1058 for Council is a deferral of revenue of $1.04m which has been recognised as a contract
liability at 1 July 2019 and 30 June 2020.

AASB 2018-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Right-of-Use Assets of Not-for-Profit Entities

This Standard provides a temporary option for not-for-profit entities to not apply the fair value initial measurement requirements
for right-of-use assets arising under leases with significantly below market terms and conditions, principally to enable the entity
to further its objectives (for example, concessionary or peppercorn leases).

The Standard requires an entity that elects to apply the option (i.e. measures a class or classes of such right-of-use assets at
cost rather than fair value) to include additional disclosures in the financial statements to ensure users understand the effects
on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the entity arising from these leases

continued on next page ... 
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As per a NSW Office of Local Government recommendation, Council has elected to measure right-of-use assets (under a
concessionary or peppercorn lease) at cost. The standard requires additional disclosures be provided in relation to below
market-value leases measured at cost.

Council has not applied any pronouncements before its operative date in the annual reporting period beginning 1 July 2020.

The impact of AASB 2018-8 is expected to have no material impact on Council's reporting position, performance and/or
disclosures.
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities.
Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note 2(b).

Income from 
continuing operations

Expenses from 
continuing operations

Operating result from 
continuing operations

Grants included 
in income from 

continuing operations Carrying amount of assets
$ '000 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Functions or activities
Maintain Character and Manage Growth 
Planning 476 334 1,296 1,498 (820) (1,164) – – 11 67
Focus on the Community 1,018 2,141 3,496 3,360 (2,478) (1,219) 114 67 103,642 100,481
Manage and Preserve Our Environment 3,226 3,281 3,748 3,648 (522) (367) 54 215 15,521 8,056
Make Getting Around Easier 3,349 960 4,081 3,298 (732) (2,338) 310 197 89,993 86,472
Leadership and Governance 10,327 10,066 4,479 3,992 5,848 6,074 334 328 38,973 37,914
Total functions and activities 18,396 16,782 17,100 15,796 1,296 986 812 807 248,185 232,990

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020
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§Note/Subtotal§

Maintain Character & manage Growth Planning

§Subnote§

Details relating to the Council’s functions/activities as reported in Note 2(a) are as follows:

Urban growth is well managed by applying ‘excellence in design’ principles. Development meets tight controls and complies
with Local Environment Plans (LEPs) and Development Control Plans (DCPs). There is a balanced view of ‘built form’ to ensure
the area continues to remain vibrant and diverse, but at the same time there is a strong desire to limit overdevelopment and
retain the existing streetscape. We provide a range of flexible and adaptable buildings for a mix of retail, commercial, community
and residential spaces in addition to our thriving village centres being used by our engaged and supportive community.

We champion our conservation zones and remain committed to fighting against high rise urbanisation. Our community and
Council work in partnership to continue to strive for retention of our harbour access and foreshores and the remarkable harbour
views, which are iconic to our Municipality.

Focus on the Community

Residents are inspired to lead an active lifestyle by the provision of multipurpose community facilities that are accessible and maximise
participation opportunities. Open spaces, parks, reserves and playgrounds are attractive places where people can find sanctuary amongst
urban living.

A range of arts and cultural activities that are respected and celebrated enhance our strong sense of place and belonging and assist in
shaping our unified community. We look to create opportunities through a lively events calendar that promotes friendly neighbourhoods
and vibrant village centres.

Volunteering is a way of life for many Hunters Hill residents and we aim to expand on this by encouraging the community to realise the
benefits of a harmonious, well supported and positive place that improves the happiness of our entire community.

Manage and Preserve Our Environment

Together, we respond proactively to pressure facing our environment and endeavour to enhance the way we conserve our
resources and natural systems. Striving towards an ecological sound future and measuring the extent of our human footprint
is critical for the long term sustainability.

We regularly review our operations and processes to identify opportunities to reduce, recycle and reuse products generated by
our changing lifestyles. We understand that this is an important process in the development of all future programs, policies and
partnerships. With an impressive 14km of harbour foreshore and abundant flora and fauna that we are so blessed to inhabit,
we acknowledge that sound environmental management is fundamental in ensuring the high quality of life we all enjoy.

Make Getting Around Easier

Efficient and reliable major public transport options that are safe and integrated will see a future that is less dependent on cars and a
reduction in congestion and carbon footprint. We recognise the importance of targeted programs to encourage the community to make
public transport options a way of daily life.

Alternate methods of transport, such as walking and cycling require paths that are well designed and maintained. Safe and convenient
footpaths and cycle ways will promote walking and cycling as a viable option that will reduce reliance on private motor vehicles.
While private transport is a popular preference, focus will be given to the development and implementation of local area traffic
management plans and parking schemes, which will effectively manage traffic flow and safety.
In order to improve all modes of transport choices, our planning controls will require a co-ordinated approach to support movement in,
around and beyond our Municipality.

Leadership & Governance

Through widespread community involvement, Council succeeds with responsible and transparent management that promotes best
practice initiatives. A consultative approach creates an informed and educated community who are empowered to identify, participate
and offer solutions in any decision making process.

To ensure that statutory and financialmanagement obligations aremet, strategic outcomes are delivered to ensure social, environmental,
economic and civic issues are addressed in the best interest of the community.
Our staff are essential to the success of the organisation andwe strive to attract, retain and develop a committed team that encompasses
a workplace culture that values ethical behaviours and safe working practices. Council’s internal values reflect the HEART of what we

continued on next page ... 
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do and who we are: Honesty, Excellence, Accountability, Respect, Teamwork and Safety. Simply explained, these values will guide our
future choices and how we can best add value to the community.

Council will advocate for strong partnering programs with other governing bodies, neighbouring councils and key stakeholders to ensure
we reflect a commitment to a whole-of-government approach to undertaking important issues. Aligning ourselves in this manner will
ensure the successful implementation and execution of integrated plans.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions (continued)

Page 17 of 76

Financial Statements 2020The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2020

Note 2(b). Council functions/activities - component descriptions (continued)



continued on next page ... 

§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 AASB 2020 2019

(a) Rates and annual charges

§Subnote§

Ordinary rates
Residential 1058 (1) 7,813 7,595
Business 1058 (1) 235 226
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) 1058 (1) (51) (52)
Rates levied to ratepayers 7,997 7,769

Pensioner rate subsidies received 1058 (1) 28 30
Total ordinary rates 8,025 7,799

Special rates
Environmental 1058 (1) 182 177
Infrastructure 1058 (1) 385 375
Other 1058 (1) 516 250
Community facilities 1058 (1) 348 –
Rates levied to ratepayers 1,431 802

Total special rates 1,431 802

Annual charges
(pursuant to s.496, s.496A, s.496B, s.501 & s.611)

Domestic waste management services 1058 (1) 2,818 2,745
Section 611 charges 1058 (1) 61 62
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory) 1058 (1) (26) (26)
Annual charges levied 2,853 2,781

Pensioner subsidies received:
– Domestic waste management 1058 (1) 14 15
Total annual charges 2,867 2,796

TOTAL RATES AND ANNUAL CHARGES 12,323 11,397

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,
15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,
1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Council has used 2019 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these
receipts which is the beginning of the rating period to which they relate.

Accounting policy for rates and charges

Prepaid rates are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Pensioner rebates relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of residence in the
local government council area that are not subsidised by the NSW Government.

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates
and are in substance a rates payment.

2019 accounting policy
Control over assets acquired from rates and annual charges is obtained at the commencement of the rating year as it is an
enforceable debt linked to the rateable property or, where earlier, upon receipt of the rates.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Notes to the Financial Statements
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 AASB 2020 2019

(b) User charges and fees

Specific user charges
(per s.502 - specific 'actual use' charges)
Domestic waste management services 15 (1) 6 7
Waste management services (non-domestic) 15 (1) 162 163
Total specific user charges 168 170

Other user charges and fees
(i) Fees and charges – statutory and regulatory functions (per s.608)
Inspection services 15 (1) 26 28
Planning and building regulation 15 (1) 475 363
Section 10.7 certificates (EP&A Act) 15 (1) 47 47
Section 603 certificates 15 (1) 18 16
Total fees and charges – statutory/regulatory 566 454

(ii) Fees and charges – other (incl. general user charges (per s.608))
Community centres 1058 (1) 160 193
Lease rentals 15 (1) 17 14
Leaseback fees – Council vehicles 1058 (1) 24 25
Park rents 1058 (1) 65 83
Parking fees 1058 (1) 156 153
Restoration charges 15 (1) 826 115
Total fees and charges – other 1,248 583

TOTAL USER CHARGES AND FEES 1,982 1,207

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,
15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,
1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

Accounting policy for user charges and fees

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases such as caravan parks, the customer is required to
pay on arrival. There is no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or returns.

Where an upfront fee is charged such as membership fees for the leisure centre the fee is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the expected life of the membership.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than the term of the licence.

2019 accounting policy
User charges and fees are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 AASB 2020 2019

(c) Other revenues

Rental income – other council properties 1058 (2) 312 196
Bus shelter contract - License fee 15 1,000 –
Fines -other 1058 (1) 26 16
Fines – parking 1058 (1) 447 258
Legal fees recovery – other 1058 (1) – 320
Commissions and agency fees 1058 (1) 1 17
Sundry rents and charges 1058 (1) 193 189
Waste rebate 1058 (1) 60 55
Other 1058 (1) 18 –
TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 2,057 1,051

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,
15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,
1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy for other revenue
Miscellaneous sales are recognised when physical possession has transferred to the customer which is deemed to be the 
point of transfer of risks and rewards.

Where the revenue relates to a contract with customer, the revenue is recognised when or as the performance obligation is
completed and the customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

Where the revenue relates to a contract which is not enforceable or does not contain sufficiently specific performance
obligations then revenue is recognised when an unconditional right to a receivable arises or the cash is received, which is
earlier.

Council has received $1m one-off license fee for the new bus shelters' advertising. Based on an assessment under the new
accounting standard AASB15 Revenue from Contract with Customers, the $1m license fee is recognised as revenue in the
2019/20 financial year.

2019 accounting policy:
Council recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the Council and specific criteria have been met for each of the Council’s activities as described below. Council
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics
of each arrangement.

Parking fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the service has been provided, or when the penalty has been applied,
whichever occurs first.

Rental income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Other revenue is recorded when the payment is due, the value of the payment is notified, or the payment is received, whichever
occurs first.
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Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ '000 AASB 2020 2019 2020 2019

(d) Grants

General purpose (untied)
Current year allocation
Financial assistance – general component 1058 (1) 162 161 – –
Financial assistance – local roads component 1058 (1) 74 73 – –
Payment in advance - future year allocation
Financial assistance – general component 1058 (1) 172 167 – –
Financial assistance – local roads component 1058 (1) 79 75 – –
Total general purpose 487 476 – –

Specific purpose
Community care 1058 (1) 23 23 – –
Environmental programs 1058 (1) 2 105 – –
Library 1058 (1) 91 44 – –
Recreation and culture 1058 (1) – 46 10 1,040
Street lighting 1058 (1) 35 34 – –
Traffic route subsidy 1058 (1) 8 7 – –
Transport (roads to recovery) 1058 (1) – – 93 –
Stormwater drainage 1058 (1) 40 64 – –
Other 1058 (1) 23 8 – –
Total specific purpose 222 331 103 1,040

Total grants 709 807 103 1,040

Grant revenue is attributable to:
– Commonwealth funding  487 476 – –
– State funding  222 331 103 1,040
 709 807 103 1,040

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,
15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,
1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.
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§Note/Subtotal§

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$ '000 Notes AASB 2020 2019 2020 2019

(e) Contributions

Developer contributions:
(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
Cash contributions
S 7.11 – contributions towards 
amenities/services 1058 (1) – – 358 441
Other developer contributions 1058 (1) – – 270 –
Total developer contributions – cash – – 628 441

Total developer contributions 25 – – 628 441

Other contributions:
Cash contributions
Kerb and gutter 15 (1) 14 14 – –
RMS contributions (regional roads, block 
grant) 1058 (1) 93 92 – –
Other 15 (1) 20 19 34 –
Total other contributions – cash 127 125 34 –

Total other contributions 127 125 34 –

Total contributions 127 125 662 441

TOTAL GRANTS AND 
CONTRIBUTIONS 836 932 765 1,481

The AASB notation (above) identifies the revenue recognition pattern for material items of Council revenue:

15 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “at a point in time”,
15 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 15 “over time”,
1058 (1) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “at a point in time”, while
1058 (2) indicates income recognised under AASB 1058 “over time”.

Accounting policy from 1 July 2019

Accounting policy for grants and contributions

Grant income under AASB 15

Where grant income arises from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations
then the revenue are recognised when control of each performance obligations is satisfied.

The performance obligations are varied based on the agreement but include [provide details of performance obligations within
AASB 15 grants e.g. events, vaccinations]. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant, cash is received upfront
for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Each performance obligation is considered to ensure that the revenue recognition reflects the transfer of control and within
grant agreements there may be some performance obligations where control transfers at a point in time and others which have
continuous transfer of control over the life of the contract.

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

Grant income
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Assets arising from grants in the scope of AASB 1058 is recognised at the assets fair value when the asset is received.
Councils considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in
accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
that the asset is received

Capital grants

Capital grants received to enable Council to acquire or construct an item of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment to
identified specifications which will be under Council’s control and which is enforceable are recognised as revenue as and when
the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project as there is no profit margin.

For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Council.

Contributions

Council has obligations to provide facilities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
7.4, 7.11 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979.

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer contributions
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due to the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Council.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but the Council
may apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules

Accounting policy prior to 1 July 2019

Control over grants and contributions is normally obtained upon their receipt (or acquittal) and revenue is recognised at this
time and is valued at the fair value of the granted or contributed asset at the date of transfer.

Where grants or contributions recognised as revenues during the financial year were obtained on condition that they be
expended in a particular manner, or used over a particular period, and those conditions were un-discharged at reporting date,
the unused grant or contribution is disclosed below.

A liability is recognised in respect of revenue that is reciprocal in nature to the extent that the requisite service has not been
provided at reporting date.
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2020 2019

(f) Unspent grants and contributions – external restrictions

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on condition that they be 
spent in a specified manner due to externally imposed restrictions.

Operating grants
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 90 92
Add: operating grants recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent

(2019 only) 65 119
Add: operating grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future

period – –
Less: operating grants recognised in a previous reporting period now spent (2019

only) (111) (121)
Less: operating grants received in a previous reporting period now spent and

recognised as income – –
Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (operating grants) 44 90

Capital grants
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 1,040 –
Add: capital grants recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent

(2019 only) 103 1,040
Add: capital grants received for the provision of goods and services in a future

period – –
Less: capital grants recognised in a previous reporting period now spent (2019 only) – –
Less: capital grants received in a previous reporting period now spent and

recognised as income (10) –
Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (capital grants) 1,133 1,040

Contributions
Unexpended at the close of the previous reporting period 1,701 1,513
Add: contributions recognised as income in the current period but not yet spent 655 484
Add: contributions received for the provision of goods and services in a future period – –
Add: contributions recognised as income in the current period obtained in respect of

a future rating identified by Council for the purpose of establishing a rate (2019
only) – –

Less: contributions recognised in a previous reporting period now spent (568) (296)
Unexpended and held as externally restricted assets (contributions) 1,788 1,701
 

Note 4. Interest and investment income
§Note§

$ '000 2020 2019
§Subnote§

Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost
– Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 29 25
– Cash and investments 347 542
Finance income on the net investment in the lease – –
Total Interest and investment income 376 567

Interest revenue is attributable to:
Unrestricted investments/financial assets:
Overdue rates and annual charges (general fund) 29 25
General Council cash and investments 320 499

continued on next page ... 
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$ '000 2020 2019

Restricted investments/funds – external:
Development contributions
– Section 7.11 27 43
Total interest and investment revenue 376 567

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is earned.
Accounting policy for interest and investment revenue
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2020 2019

(a) Employee benefits and on-costs

§Subnote§

Salaries and wages 4,043 3,980
Employee leave entitlements (ELE) 483 488
Superannuation 447 533
Workers’ compensation insurance 92 68
Fringe benefit tax (FBT) 20 31
Other Employee benefits
Travel expenses 56 65
Training costs (other than salaries and wages) 75 68
Total employee costs 5,216 5,233

TOTAL EMPLOYEE COSTS EXPENSED 5,216 5,233

Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.
Accounting policy for employee benefits and on-costs

Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various defined
benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuation plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Council participates in a defined benefit plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however, sufficient
information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes
payable – refer to Note 19 for more information.
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2020 2019

(b) Materials and contracts

Raw materials and consumables 739 711
Contractor and consultancy costs 5,677 4,399
Auditors remuneration   2 103 93
Legal expenses:
– Legal expenses: planning and development 313 691
– Legal expenses: other 73 34
Expenses from short-term leases (2020 only) – –
Expenses from leases of low value assets (2020 only) – –
Expenses from Peppercorn leases (2020 only) 7 –
Variable lease expense relating to usage (2020 only) 26 –
Operating leases expense (2019 only):
– Operating lease rentals: minimum lease payments   1 – 5
Other 6 –
Total materials and contracts 6,944 5,933

TOTAL MATERIALS AND CONTRACTS 6,944 5,933

Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the council receives the goods or services.
Accounting policy for materials and contracts

Operating leases (2019 only)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to Council as lessee are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to
the income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

1. Operating lease payments are attributable to:
Other – 5
 – 5

2. Auditor remuneration
During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor 
of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms
Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Audit and review of financial statements 50 45
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 50 45

Total Auditor-General remuneration 50 45

Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

(i) Audit and other assurance services
Internal auditors 53 48
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 53 48

Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms 53 48

Total Auditor remuneration 103 93
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 Notes 2020 2019

(c) Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of 
non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation
Plant and equipment 139 107
Office equipment 92 76
Furniture and fittings 17 19
Infrastructure: 10

– Buildings – non-specialised 111 111
– Buildings – specialised 267 258
– Other structures 204 222
– Roads 962 955
– Footpaths 283 277
– Kerb and guttering 130 122
– Other road assets 58 34
– Stormwater drainage 115 114
Total gross depreciation and amortisation costs 2,378 2,295

Total depreciation and amortisation costs 2,378 2,295

TOTAL DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION AND 
IMPAIRMENT FOR NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS 2,378 2,295

Accounting policy for depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses of non-financial assets

Depreciation and amortisation
Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are included in Note 10 for IPPE assets.

Council assets held at fair value that are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash flow, and that are deemed to be
specialised, are no longer required to be tested for impairment under AASB 136. This is because these assets are assessed
on an annual basis to ensure that the carrying amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment
loss would be captured during this assessment.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Other assets that do not meet the criteria above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the
asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,
with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2020 2019

(d) Other expenses

Advertising 66 61
Bad and doubtful debts – 2
Bank charges 37 37
Contributions/levies to other levels of government
– Department of planning levy 61 60
– NSW fire brigade levy 473 419
– Regional library 774 740
– Other contributions/levies 22 22
Councillor expenses – mayoral fee 44 43
Councillor expenses – councillors’ fees 142 139
Councillors’ expenses (incl. mayor) – other (excluding fees above) 19 32
Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356) 29 20
Electricity and heating 184 162
Insurance 239 133
Printing and stationery 48 77
Street lighting 145 247
Subscriptions and publications 131 105
Telephone and communications 21 36
TOTAL OTHER EXPENSES 2,435 2,335

Accounting policy for other expenses
Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

$ '000 Notes 2020 2019

Property (excl. investment property)
Proceeds from disposal – property – 160
Net gain/(loss) on disposal – 160

Plant and equipment 10

Proceeds from disposal – plant and equipment 115 168
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off (58) (181)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 57 (13)

Infrastructure 10

Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off – (31)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal – (31)

NET GAIN/(LOSS) ON DISPOSAL OF ASSETS 57 116

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Income
Statement.

Accounting policy for disposal of assets

The gain or loss on sale of an asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the
asset is de-recognised.
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2020 2019
§Subnote§

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand and at bank 928 377
Cash-equivalent assets
– Deposits at call – 115
– Short-term deposits 3,755 22,024
Total cash and cash equivalents 4,683 22,516

Accounting policy for cash and cash equivalents
For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand; deposits held at call 
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are 
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value; and bank 
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.
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§Note/Subtotal§

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

§Subnote§

a. ‘Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss’
– Amortised cost 18,334 – – –
TOTAL CASH ASSETS, CASH 
EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 23,017 – 22,516 –
 
§Subnote§

Accounting policy for investments

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending 
on the classification of the financial assets.

On initial recognition, Council classifies its financial assets into the following categories – those measured at:
Classification

• amortised cost
• fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
• fair value through other comprehensive income – equity instrument (FVOCI-equity)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as described
above are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Financial assets through profit or loss

Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Council’s financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise investments in FRNs and NCDs in the
Statement of Financial Position.
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 23,017 – 22,516 –

§Total§

attributable to:
External restrictions 4,794 – 4,779 –
Internal restrictions 5,582 – 5,509 –
Unrestricted 12,641 – 12,228 –

23,017 – 22,516 –
 

$ '000 2020 2019

Details of restrictions

§Total§

External restrictions – other
Developer contributions – general 1,594 1,701
Other developer contributions 195 –
Specific purpose unexpended grants (recognised as revenue) – general fund 1,177 1,130
Domestic waste management 680 505
Other special levies 1,148 1,443
External restrictions – other 4,794 4,779

Total external restrictions 4,794 4,779

Internal restrictions
Plant and vehicle replacement 434 389
Employees leave entitlement 596 632
Deposits, retentions and bonds 2,704 2,760
Construction of buildings 249 249
Office equipment 520 693
Road reconstruction 306 87
Elections 106 84
Insurance reserve 108 99
Property strategy 146 30
Sustainability Reserve 300 300
Other 113 186
Total internal restrictions 5,582 5,509

TOTAL RESTRICTIONS 10,376 10,288
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§Note/Subtotal§

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

§Subnote§

Purpose
Rates and annual charges 458 17 304 17
Interest and extra charges 13 14 13 14
User charges and fees 404 – 210 –
Accrued revenues
– Interest on investments 61 – 61 –
– Other income accruals 109 – 126 –
Government grants and subsidies – – 54 –
Net GST receivable 307 – 316 –
Total 1,352 31 1,084 31

Less: provision of impairment
User charges and fees (19) – (19) –
Total provision for impairment – 
receivables (19) – (19) –

TOTAL NET RECEIVABLES 1,333 31 1,065 31
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2020 2019
 
§Subnote§

Accounting policy for receivables

Receivables are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the reporting date
which are classified as non-current assets.

Recognition and measurement

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.
Impairment

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, and when
estimating ECL, the Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.

When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For non-rates debtors, Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Council uses the presentation that a financial asset is in default when:
• the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Council in full, without recourse by the Council to actions

such as realising security (if any is held) or
• the financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the
asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recognised on day 1.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.

The Council writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or when the receivables are over 5 years past due, whichever occurs first.

None of the receivables that have been written off are subject to enforcement activity.

Where the Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are
discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.

Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.
Accounting policy under AASB 9 applicable from 1 July 2019

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition, and when
estimating ECL, the Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.
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When considering the ECL for rates debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a charge against the
rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold. For non-rates debtors, Council uses the presumption
that an asset which is more than 30 days past due has seen a significant increase in credit risk.

The Council uses the presentation that a financial asset is in default when:
• the other party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Council in full, without recourse by the Council to actions

such as realising security (if any is held) or
• the financial assets (for non-rates debtors) are more than 90 days past due.

Credit losses are measured as the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

On initial recognition of the asset, an estimate of the expected credit losses for the next 12 months is recognised. Where the
asset has experienced significant increase in credit risk then the lifetime losses are estimated and recognised.

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the current reporting period.

The Council writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings, or when the receivables are over 5 years past due, whichever occurs first.

Where the Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are
discounted at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.
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§Note/Subtotal§

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

(a) Inventories

§Subnote§

(i) Inventories at cost
Stores and materials 13 – 8 –
Total inventories at cost 13 – 8 –

TOTAL INVENTORIES 13 – 8 –
 

(b) Other assets
§Subnote§

Prepayments 161 – 59 –
TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 161 – 59 –
 

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

Total externally restricted assets – – – –
Total internally restricted assets – – – –
Total unrestricted assets 174 – 67 –
TOTAL INVENTORIES AND OTHER ASSETS 174 – 67 –

§Subnote§
§Total§

 
§Subnote§

Accounting policy for inventories and other assets

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. 
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory 
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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§Note/Subtotal§

as at 30/06/19 Asset movements during the reporting period as at 30/06/20

$ '000
Gross carrying 

amount
Accumulated 
depreciation

Net
carrying
amount

Additions 
renewals   1

Additions new 
assets

Carrying value 
of disposals

Depreciation 
expense

Revaluation 
decrements to 

equity (ARR)

Revaluation 
increments to 
equity (ARR)

Gross carrying 
amount

Accumulated 
depreciation

Net
carrying
amount

§Subnote§

Capital work in progress 12 – 12 1,394 – – – – – 1,406 – 1,406
Plant and equipment 1,466 (878) 588 – 187 (58) (139) – – 1,306 (728) 578
Office equipment 1,089 (947) 142 63 – – (92) – – 1,152 (1,039) 113
Furniture and fittings 309 (197) 112 – – – (17) – – 309 (214) 95
Land:
– Operational land 33,282 – 33,282 – – – – – – 33,282 – 33,282
– Community land 78,544 – 78,544 – – – – – – 78,544 – 78,544
Infrastructure:
– Buildings – non-specialised 8,043 (2,802) 5,241 – – – (111) (603) – 8,339 (3,812) 4,527
– Buildings – specialised 16,295 (6,023) 10,272 88 – – (267) (912) – 17,565 (8,384) 9,181
– Other structures 9,108 (2,830) 6,278 113 – – (204) – 3,246 15,972 (6,539) 9,433
– Roads 54,081 (9,469) 44,612 393 – – (962) – 3,217 66,428 (19,168) 47,260
– Footpaths 10,554 (3,342) 7,212 299 – – (283) – 1,656 13,244 (4,360) 8,884
– Kerb and guttering 14,806 (1,377) 13,429 177 – – (130) (441) – 18,625 (5,590) 13,035
– Other road assets 1,397 (241) 1,156 406 – – (58) – 57 1,873 (312) 1,561
– Stormwater drainage 9,539 (1,733) 7,806 259 – – (115) – 7,282 23,329 (8,097) 15,232
Total Infrastructure, property, 
plant and equipment 238,525 (29,839) 208,686 3,192 187 (58) (2,378) (1,956) 15,458 281,374 (58,243) 223,131

(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).
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§Note/Subtotal§

as at 30/06/18 Asset movements during the reporting period as at 30/06/19

$ '000
Gross carrying 

amount
Accumulated 
depreciation

Net
carrying
amount

Additions 
renewals   1

Additions new 
assets

Carrying value 
of disposals

Depreciation 
expense WIP transfers

Adjustments 
and transfers

Revaluation 
increments to 
equity (ARR)

Gross carrying 
amount

Accumulated 
depreciation

Net
carrying
amount

Capital work in progress 27 – 27 – 12 – – (25) (2) – 12 – 12
Plant and equipment 1,315 (883) 432 – 442 (180) (107) – – – 1,466 (878) 588
Office equipment 1,262 (1,171) 91 – 128 – (76) – – – 1,089 (947) 142
Furniture and fittings 301 (178) 123 – – – (19) – – – 309 (197) 112
Land:
– Operational land 33,282 – 33,282 – – – – – – – 33,282 – 33,282
– Community land 78,544 – 78,544 – – – – – – – 78,544 – 78,544
Infrastructure:
– Buildings – non-specialised 8,043 (2,691) 5,352 – – – (111) – – – 8,043 (2,802) 5,241
– Buildings – specialised 15,888 (5,766) 10,122 – 16 – (258) 22 – 370 16,295 (6,023) 10,272
– Other structures 9,024 (2,608) 6,416 44 37 – (222) 3 – – 9,108 (2,830) 6,278
– Roads 53,694 (8,521) 45,173 307 93 (13) (955) – – – 54,081 (9,469) 44,612
– Footpaths 10,230 (3,073) 7,157 62 276 (6) (277) – – – 10,554 (3,342) 7,212
– Other road assets 1,331 (207) 1,124 79 – (13) (34) – – – 1,397 (241) 1,156
– Stormwater drainage 9,438 (1,619) 7,819 76 25 – (114) – – – 9,539 (1,733) 7,806
– Kerb and guttering 14,775 (1,255) 13,520 31 5 (5) (122) – – – 14,806 (1,377) 13,429
Total Infrastructure, property, 
plant and equipment 237,154 (27,972) 209,182 599 1,034 (217) (2,295) – (2) 370 238,525 (29,839) 208,686

(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).
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§Note/Subtotal§

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carrying amount of assets is assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm that
it is not materially different from current fair value.

Accounting policy for infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Land is not depreciated. The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the asset’s
useful life or over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term if there is no reasonable certainty that the Council
will obtain ownership at the end of the lease term. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years
Office equipment 5 to 10 Playground equipment 5 to 20
Office furniture 10 to 20 Benches, seats etc. 5 to 10
Vehicles 5 to 8
Other plant and equipment 5 to 15 Buildings

Buildings: masonry 50 to 100
Buildings: other 50 to 100

Transportation assets Stormwater assets
Sealed roads: surface 10 to 25 Drains 60 to 100
Sealed roads: structure 60 to 100
Kerb, gutter and footpaths 10 to 70
Other Infrastructure 10 to 70

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips.
Land under roads

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008 in accordance with AASB 1051 Land
Under Roads.

Land under roads acquired after 1 July 2008 is recognised in accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment.

Crown reserves under Council’s care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated.

Crown reserves

Improvements on Crown reserves are also recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues
relating to the reserves are recognised within Council’s Income Statement.
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2020 2020
$ '000 Notes Current Non-current

Contract liabilities

§Subnote§

Grants and contributions received in advance:
Unexpended capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) (i) 1,040 –

Total grants received in advance 1,040 –

Total contract liabilities 1,040 –

Notes
(i) Council has received funding to construct assets including sporting facilities and playspace. The funds received are under
an enforceable contract which require Council to construct an identified asset which will be under Council’s control on 
completion. The revenue is recognised as Council constructs the asset and the contract liability reflects the funding received
which cannot yet be recognised as revenue. The revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12 months.

(ii) The contract liability relates to grants received prior to the revenue recognition criteria in AASB 15 being satisfied since 
the performance obligations are ongoing.
 

2020 2020
$ '000 Current Non-current

(i) Contract liabilities relating to restricted assets

§Subnote§

Total contract liabilities relating to unrestricted assets 1,040 –

Total contract liabilities 1,040 –
 
§Subnote§

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities
The contract liabilities have arisen on adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058. Previously income received in advance was 
recognised for reciprocal contracts. The increase in a contract liability is primarily due to grants in the scope of AASB 15 and
capital grants received by Council to acquire or construct assets which will be under Council’s control. Previously, revenue 
was recognised on receipt of the funds.

Where the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in the contract, the
amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts billed to or certified by the
customer.

Accounting policy for contract assets and liabilities

When a performance obligation is satisfied by transferring a promised good or service to the customer before the customer
pays consideration or before the payment is due, Council presents the work in progress as a contract asset, unless the rights
to that amount of consideration are unconditional, in which case Council recognises a receivable.

When an amount of consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring a good or service
to the customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability.
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§Subnote§

The Council has applied AASB 16 using the modified retrospective (cumulative catch-up) method and therefore the 
comparative information has not been restated and continues to be reported under AASB 117 and related Interpretations.

(i) Council as a lessee

Council has leases a photocopier. Information relating to the leases in place and associated balances and transactions is
provided below.

Terms and conditions of leases
Council has an operting lease for the photocopiers and the lease are 5 years.
 

$ '000 2020

(a) Income Statement

§Subnote§

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:

Variable lease payments based on usage not included in the measurement of lease liabilities 26
Expenses relating to Peppercorn leases 7

33
 

Council has a number of leases at significantly below market for land and buildings which are used for:

§Subnote§

Leases at significantly below market value – concessionary / peppercorn leases

Provide general indication of the use of the assets under a concessionary arrangement e.g.
• boat ramp

The leases are generally between years and require payments of a maximum amount of $1,000 per year. The use of the
right-to-use asset is restricted by the lessors to specified community services which Council must provide, these services are
detailed in the leases.

Council does not believe that any of the leases in place are individually material from a statement of financial position or
performance perspective.

Accounting policy

At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists – i.e. does the contract convey the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

Accounting policies under AASB 16 – applicable from 1 July 2019

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The
lease term includes extension periods where Council believes it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability, initial
direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives. The right-of-use
is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the impairment
of asset accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council’s
incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
lease liability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.

continued on next page ... 
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Exceptions to lease accounting
Council has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal
to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases at significantly below market value / concessionary leases
Council has elected to measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the
associated lease liability at initial recognition.

Accounting policy under AASB 117 and associated Accounting Interpretations (2019 only)
Refer to Note 5c and Note 18.
 

(b) Operating leases
§Subnote§

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to operating leases where Council is a lessor are shown below:

$ '000 2020

(ii) Operating lease expenses

Other 5
Total expenses relating to operating leases 5
 

When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

§Subnote§

Accounting policy

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted
for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the head lease rather
than the useful life of the underlying asset.

If the lease contains lease and non-lease components then the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

§Subnote§

Goods and services – operating expenditure 474 – 628 –
Goods and services – capital expenditure 862 – 179 –
Accrued expenses:
– Other expenditure accruals 439 – 170 –
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 2,711 – 2,760 –
Total payables 4,486 – 3,737 –

Income received in advance
Payments received in advance 262 – 252 –
Total income received in advance 262 – 252 –

TOTAL PAYABLES AND 
BORROWINGS 4,748 – 3,989 –
 

2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

(a) Payables and borrowings relating to
restricted assets

§Subnote§

Total payables and borrowings relating 
to unrestricted assets 4,748 – 3,989 –

TOTAL PAYABLES AND 
BORROWINGS 4,748 – 3,989 –
 

$ '000 2020 2019

(b) Current payables and borrowings not anticipated to be settled within 
the next twelve months

§Subnote§

The following liabilities, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled in
the next 12 months.
Payables – security bonds, deposits and retentions 2,331 2,427
Total payables and borrowings 2,331 2,427
 

(c) Financing arrangements
§Subnote§

(i) Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following 
     lines of credit:
Credit cards/purchase cards 40 20
Total financing arrangements 40 20

Undrawn facilities as at balance date:
– Credit cards/purchase cards 40 20
Total undrawn financing arrangements 40 20
 

continued on next page ... 
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§Subnote§

Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Accounting policy for payables and borrowings

The financial liabilities of the Council comprise trade payables.

Payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the council prior to the end of financial year that are 
unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
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2020 2020 2019 2019
$ '000 Current Non-current Current Non-current

§Subnote§

Employee benefits
Annual leave 390 – 468 –
Sick leave 56 – 50 –
Long service leave 929 19 1,238 5
Other leave 10 – 6 –
Sub-total – aggregate employee benefits 1,385 19 1,762 5

TOTAL PROVISIONS 1,385 19 1,762 5
 

(a) Provisions relating to restricted assets
§Subnote§

Externally restricted assets
Domestic waste management 179 – 180 –
Provisions relating to externally restricted assets 179 – 180 –

Total provisions relating to restricted assets 179 – 180 –

Total provisions relating to unrestricted assets 1,206 19 1,582 5

TOTAL PROVISIONS 1,385 19 1,762 5
 

$ '000 2020 2019

(b) Current provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve 
months

§Subnote§

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled 
in the next 12 months.
Provisions – employees benefits 789 818

789 818
 

Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.

§Subnote§

Accounting policy for provisions

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Short-term obligations

Employee benefits

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be
wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
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when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

On-costs

The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods.

These amounts include superannuation, payroll tax and workers compensation expenses which will be payable upon the future
payment of certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting period.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if the Council does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement
is expected to occur.
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§Note/Subtotal§

(a) Nature and purpose of reserves

§Subnote§

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment revaluation reserve is used to record increments / decrements of 
non-current asset values due to their revaluation.
 

(b) Changes in accounting policies due to adoption of new accounting standards 
(not-retrospective)

§Subnote§

Council made no voluntary changes in any accounting policies during the year.

 
§Subnote§

(ii) AASB 15 and AASB 1058

The following approach has been applied on transition to AASB 15 and AASB 1058:
§Total§

• Council has not adopted the completed contract expedient and therefore has not excluded revenue which was fully
recognised in previous years in accordance with the former accounting standards and pronouncements

• Council has retrospectively restated contracts for modifications that occurred before 1 July 2019 unless such contract
modification were minor.

Costs incurred in fulfilling customer contracts
Prior to adopting AASB 15 Council would recognise direct costs associated with fulfilling customer contracts as expenses 
when incurred, as they did not qualify for recognition as assets under any other accounting standards. Under AASB 15, as 
these costs relate directly to the contracts, generate resources used in satisfying the contracts, and are expected to be 
recovered, they are capitalised as ‘costs to fulfil a contract’ assets and released through profit and loss on the same basis as
the revenue is recognised.

Revenue recognition from contract modifications
In relation to contract modifications, AASB 15 requires customer approval, which is a more prudent criteria than the 
probability requirement in the previous standards and has resulted in deferral of revenue where unapproved works have 
been performed.

Transfer of control to a customer – over time or at a point in time
AASB 15 has specific criteria regarding whether control is transferred over time or at a point in time. The entity has reviewed
its contracts and concluded that the criteria for recognition over time is not met in some circumstances. In such cases, 
revenue and related production costs will be recognised at the delivery of each separate performance obligation instead of 
over the contract using a single margin.

Prior to adoption of AASB 15, the Council had assessed that they were a principal in transactions where another party was
involved in providing the goods or services including pass-through grants.

Principal v agent

Under AASB 15, the indicators of a principal have changed and there are now a number of performance obligations within
grant agreements where the Council is acting as an agent since the only obligation is to transfer the funds to a third party.
The result is that Council can only recognise the “commission” to which they are entitled rather than the gross revenue and
expenses. There is no change to reported profit.

Licences
Council has reviewed the licences it grants and considers that all licences are either short-term or low value and elects to 
recognise all revenue from licences up-front rather than spreading them over the life of the licence.

Prepaid rates
Under AASB 1004, rates were recorded as revenue at the earliest of receipt of the funds from the ratepayer and the 
beginning of the rating period. Under AASB 1058, prepaid rates are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of 
the rating period.
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Grants – operating
Under AASB 1004, most grant income was recognised as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 15, where an agreement is 
enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance obligations, the revenue is either recognised over time as the 
work is performed, or recognised at the point in time that the control of the services passes to the customer.

Grants – capital
Under AASB 1004, most grant monies were recorded as revenue on receipt. Under AASB 1058, where Council has 
received assets (including cash) to acquire or construct a non-financial asset, the asset is to be controlled by Council and 
the contract is enforceable, then the asset is recognised as a contract liability on receipt and recorded as revenue as the 
performance obligation to acquire or construct the asset is completed.

In addition to the above changes in accounting policies, the Council has also amended the presentation of certain items to
align them with the requirements of AASB 15 and AASB 1058:

Changes in presentation

Council had a grant with relation to the Boronia Park Grandstand and Playspace that required to be adjusted due to the
adoption the new accounting standards.

• A grant of $1,040 million was received in FY2018-19, with requirements that funds would be taken up as works were
completed, however as at 30 June 2020 tht works were still not completed and thus requiring the funds to be adjusted
between Equity & contract liabilities.

 

$ '000
Balance at

1 July 2019

Opening contract balances at 1 July 2019

§Total§

Contract assets
– Under AASB 15 –
– Under AASB 1058 –
Total Contract assets –

Contract liabilities
– Under AASB 15 –
– Under AASB 1058 1,040
Total Contract liabilities 1,040
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§Note/Subtotal§

Comparison of financial statement line items under AASB 15 compared to previous standards for the 
current year

§Total§

The following tables show the impact of adopting AASB 15 and AASB 1058 on the Council’s financial statements for the 
year ended 30 June 2020.

Statement of Financial Position

$ '000

Carrying 
amount per 

Statement of 
Financial 

Position under 
AASB 15 and 

AASB 1058
Reclassific-

ation
Remeasur-

ement

Carrying 
amount under 

previous 
revenue 

standards Notes

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4,683 – – 4,683  
Investments 18,334 – – 18,334  
Receivables 1,333 – – 1,333  
Inventories 13 – – 13  
Other 161 – – 161  
Total current assets 24,524 – – 24,524

Current liabilities
Payables 4,486 – – 4,486  
Income received in advance 262 – – 262  
Contract liabilities 1,040 – (1,040) –  
Provisions 1,385 – – 1,385  
Total current liabilities 7,173 – (1,040) 6,133

Non-current assets
Receivables 31 – – 31  
Infrastructure, property, plant and 
equipment 223,131 – – 223,131

 

Investments accounted for using equity 
method 499 – – 499

 

Total non-current assets 223,661 – – 223,661

Non-current liabilities
Provisions 19 – – 19  
Total Non-current liabilities 19 – – 19

Net assets 240,993 – 1,040 242,033

Equity
Accumulated surplus 110,890 – 1,040 111,930  
Revaluation reserves 130,103 – – 130,103  
Council equity interest 240,993 – 1,040 242,033

Total equity 240,993 – 1,040 242,033

The adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 has materially changed the statement of financial position for the year ended 30 
June 2020 only with regards to the sporting facilities and playspace with funding FY2018-19 with construction not yet 
commenced by 30 June 2020, therefore requiring deferral of income at 1 July 2019 and at 30 June 2020.
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§Total§

Income Statement

$ '000

Income 
Statement and 

comprehen-
sive income 

under AASB 15
and AASB 

1058
Reclassific-

ation
Remeasur-

ement

Income 
Statement and 

comprehen-
sive income 

under previous
revenue 

standards Notes

Income from continuing operations
Rates and annual charges 12,323 – – 12,323  
User charges and fees 1,982 – – 1,982  
Other revenues 2,057 – – 2,057  
Grants and contributions provided for 
operating purposes 836 – – 836

 

Grants and contributions provided for 
capital purposes 765 – – 765

 

Interest and investment income 376 – – 376  
Net gains from the disposal of assets 57 – – 57  
Total Income from continuing 
operations 18,396 – – 18,396

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs 5,216 – – 5,216  
Materials and contracts 6,944 – – 6,944  
Depreciation and amortisation 2,378 – – 2,378  
Other expenses 2,435 – – 2,435  
Net share of interests in joint ventures and 
associates using the equity method 127 – – 127

 

Total Expenses from continuing 
operations 17,100 – – 17,100

Total Operating result from 
continuing operations 1,296 – – 1,296

Net operating result for the year 1,296 – – 1,296

Total comprehensive income 14,798 – – 14,798  

The adoption of AASB 15 and AASB 1058 has not materially changed of the Income statement for the year ended 30 June 
2020 only with regards to the sporting facilities and playspace with funding FY2018-19 with construction not yet commenced
by 30 June 2020, therefore requiring deferral of income at 1 July 2019 and at 30 June 2020.
 

Adjustments to the current year figures for the year ended 30 June 2020
§Total§

Statement of Financial Position

$ '000

Original 
Balance 

1 July, 2019

Impact 
Increase/ 

(decrease)

Restated 
Balance 

1 July, 2019

Contract assets – – –
Total assets – – –

Contract liabilities – 1,040 1,040
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$ '000

Original 
Balance 

1 July, 2019

Impact 
Increase/ 

(decrease)

Restated 
Balance 

1 July, 2019

Total liabilities – 1,040 1,040

Accumulated surplus 110,633 (1,040) 109,593
Total equity – (1,040) (1,040)
 

§Subnote§

(iii) AASB 16 Leases

Under AASB 117, Council assessed whether leases were operating or finance leases, based on its assessment of whether the
significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to Council or remained with the lessor. Under AASB 16, there
is no differentiation between finance and operating leases for the lessee and therefore all leases which meet the definition of
a lease are recognised on the statement of financial position (except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets).

§Total§

Council as a lessee

Council has used the exception to lease accounting for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, and the lease
expense relating to these leases is recognised in the Income Statement on a straight- line basis.

AASB 16 includes a number of practical expedients which can be used on transition. Council has used the following expedients:
Practical expedients used on transition

• Contracts which had previously been assessed as not containing leases under AASB 117 were not re-assessed on
transition to AASB 16.

• Lease liabilities have been discounted using the Council’s incremental borrowing rate at 1 July 2019.
• Right-of-use assets at 1 July 2019 have been measured at an amount equal to the lease liability adjustment by the any

prepaid or accrued lease payments.
• A single discount rate was applied to all leases with similar characteristics.
• The right-of-use asset was adjusted by the existing onerous lease provision (where relevant) at 30 June 2019 rather

than perform impairment testing of the right-of-use asset.
• Excluded leases with an expiry date prior to 30 June 2020 from the Statement of Financial Position, and lease expenses

for these leases have been recorded on a straight-line basis over the remaining term.
• Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

Financial statement impact of adoption of AASB 16
The adoption of AASB 16 has not had a material impact on the Councils financial results and Council does not have material
items which it leases.

$ '000
Balance at

1 July 2019

Operating lease commitments at 30 June 2019 per Council financial statements 27
 

Short-term leases included in commitments note 14
§Total§

 

$ '000

Original 
Balance 

1 July, 2019

Impact 
Increase/ 

(decrease)

Restated 
Balance 

1 July, 2019

Total equity – – –

§Total§
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 Notes 2020 2019

(a) Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

§Subnote§

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position 7(a) 4,683 22,516
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 4,683 22,516
 

(b) Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from 
operating activities

§Subnote§

Net operating result from Income Statement 1,296 986
Adjust for non-cash items:
Depreciation and amortisation 2,378 2,295
Net losses/(gains) on disposal of assets (57) (116)
Adoption of AASB 15/1058 (1,040) –
Share of net (profits)/losses of associates/joint ventures using the equity method 127 (31)

+/– Movement in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
Decrease/(increase) in receivables (268) (93)
Increase/(decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables – (1)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories (5) (3)
Decrease/(increase) in other current assets (102) 50
Increase/(decrease) in payables (154) 437
Increase/(decrease) in other accrued expenses payable 269 (208)
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities (39) (4)
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities 1,040 –
Increase/(decrease) in provision for employee benefits (363) (166)
Net cash provided from/(used in) operating activities    
from the Statement of Cash Flows 3,082 3,146
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§Note/Subtotal§

Council’s share of net income Council’s share of net assets
$ '000 2020 2019 2020 2019

§Subnote§

Joint ventures (127) 31 499 625
Total (127) 31 499 625
 

(a) Joint arrangements
§Subnote§

(i) Joint ventures
The following information is provided for joint ventures that are individually material to the Council. Included are the total 
amounts as per the joint venture financial statements, adjusted for fair-value adjustments at acquisition date and differences 
in accounting policies, rather than the Council’s share.

(a) Net carrying amounts – Council’s share
§Total§

$ '000
Nature of 
relationship

Measurement 
method 2020 2019

CivicRisk Metro Joint venture Equity 
accounting 431 564

CivicRisk Mutual Joint venture Equity 
accounting 67 61

Total carrying amounts – material joint ventures 498 625
 

(b) Details
§Total§

Principal activity
Place of 
business

CivicRisk Metro Liability insurance and risk management Penrith NSW
CivicRisk Mutual Liability insurance and risk management Penrith NSW
 

(c) Relevant interests and fair values
§Total§

Interest in
outputs

Interest in
ownership

$ '000 2020 2019 2020 2019

CivicRisk Metro 3.4% 3.9% 3.4% 3.9%
CivicRisk Mutual 0.9% 0.9% 0.9% 0.9%
 

(d) Summarised financial information for joint ventures
§Total§

CivicRisk Metro CivicRisk Mutual
$ '000 2020 2019 2020 2019

Statement of financial position
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 9,281 254 6,177 1,813
Other current assets 15,062 10,154 12,101 7,215
Non-current assets 6,711 12,769 5,102 5,368
Current liabilities
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continued on next page ... 

CivicRisk Metro CivicRisk Mutual
$ '000 2020 2019 2020 2019

Current financial liabilities (excluding trade and 
other payables and provisions) 3,451 1,625 5,923 4,578
Other current liabilities 1,762 312 3,635 4,232
Non-current liabilities
Non-current financial liabilities (excluding trade 
and other payables and provisions) 5,558 6,651 3,635 2,279
Net assets 20,283 14,589 10,187 3,307

Reconciliation of the carrying amount
Opening net assets (1 July) 14,648 13,549 6,944 8,468
Profit/(loss) for the period (289) 1,099 211 (1,524)
Closing net assets 14,359 14,648 7,155 6,944

Council’s share of net assets (%) 3.4% 3.9% 0.9% 0.9%
Council’s share of net assets ($) 690 569 92 30
Statement of comprehensive income
Income 2,116 3,129 14,679 11,320
Interest income 271 1,013 205 448
Profit/(loss) from continuing operations 2,387 4,142 14,884 11,768

Profit/(loss) for the period 2,387 4,142 14,884 11,768

Total comprehensive income 2,387 4,142 14,884 11,768

 
Share of income – Council (%) 3.4% 3.9% 0.9% 0.9%
Profit/(loss) – Council ($) 81 162 134 106
Total comprehensive income – Council ($) 81 162 134 106

Summarised Statement of cash flows
Cash flows from operating activities 1,511 (1,436) 1,614 2,904
Cash flows from investing activities 7,516 470 2,750 (2,250)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalents 9,027 (966) 4,364 654
 

(i) County Councils
§Total§

Council is not a member of any county councils.
 

Joint ventures

§Total§

Accounting policy for joint arrangements

Council is a member of Mutual Management Services Ltd, a mutual pool scheme providing liability insurance to Local
Government. Membership includes the potential to share in either the net assets or liabilities of the fund dependant on its
past performance. Council's share of the net assets or liabilities reflects our contributions to the pool and insurance claims
within each of the funds years.

Council's accounting policy regarding the measurement and disclosure of the potential liability or benefit is to book Council's
share of net asset or liability value, as advised by Mutual management Service Ltd taking into account their audited figures
for the year ended 30 June 2019.
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§Note/Subtotal§

(b) Associates

Council has no interest in any associates.
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§Note/Subtotal§

$ '000 2020 2019

(a) Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

§Subnote§

a. Commitments under non-cancellable operating leases at the reporting
    date, but not recognised as liabilities are payable:

Within the next year 3 6
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 11 21
Total non-cancellable operating lease commitments 14 27

b. Non-cancellable operating leases include the following assets:

Council has entered into non-cancellable operating leases for office photocopier equipment contingent rental payments have
been determined & have been publicly notified in Council's Annual Management Plan. The term of the lease is five years. No
lease imposes any additional restrictions on Council in relation to Additional debt of further leasing.

 

(b) Investment in joint operations – commitments
§Subnote§

For capital commitments and other commitments relating to investments in joint operations, refer to Note 20 (c)
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowledge 
and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council’s financial report.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Guarantees

Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, named The Local
Government Superannuation Scheme – Pool B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan that has been deemed to be a
‘multi-employer fund’ for purposes of AASB119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons:

(i) Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

– Assets are not segregated within the sub-group according to the employees of each sponsoring employer.

– The contribution rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is, contribution rates have not varied for each
sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that sponsoring employer.

– Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined according to the same formulae and without regard to
the sponsoring employer.

– The same actuarial assumptions are currently used in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not borne by members).

Description of the funding arrangements.

Pooled Employers are required to pay future service employer contributions and past service employer contributions to the
Fund.

The future service employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution rate
sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current future service
employer contribution rates are::

Division B 1.9 times member contributions for non-180 Point Members;
Nil for 180 Point Members*

Division C 2.5% salaries

Division D 1.64 times member contributions

* For 180 Point Members, Employers are required to contribute 7% of salaries to these members’ accumulation accounts,
which are paid in addition to members’ defined benefits.

The past service contribution for each Pooled Employer is a share of the total past service contributions of $40.0 million for
1 July 2019 to 30 June 2021, apportioned according to each employer’s share of the accrued liabilities as at 30 June 2019.
These past service contributions are used to maintain the adequacy of the funding position for the accrued liabilities.

The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually between triennials.

Description of the extent to which Council can be liable to the plan for other Council’s obligations under the terms and conditions
of the multi-employer plan

As stated above, each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.

However, there is no relief under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from their defined benefit obligations.
Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members, on full payment
of outstanding additional contributions. There is no provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date
of withdrawal of the Council.
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There are no specific provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.

The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Government Superannuation Scheme
and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2020 was $137,402.53. The last valuation of the Scheme was
performed by Richard Boyfield FIAA as at 30 June 2019, and covers the period ended 30 June 2020.

Council’s expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period is $152,580.24.

The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2020 is:

Employer reserves only * $millions Asset Coverage
Assets 1,695.2
Past Service Liabilities 1,773.2 95.6%
Vested Benefits 1,757.5 96.5%

* excluding member accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities.

The share of this deficit that is broadly attributed to Council is estimated to be in the order of $66,900 as at 30 June 2020.

Council’s share of that deficiency cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where assets and
liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has been recognised in
Council’s accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment to correct
the deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

Investment return 5.75% per annum
Salary inflation * 3.5% per annum
Increase in CPI 2.5% per annum

* Plus promotional increases

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is not in line with the actuarial
assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the same for all
sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group.

Mutual Management Services Ltd (MMS) is a company limited by guarantee and was created to provide

(ii) Mutual Management Services Ltd

administration services to the three CivicRisk self-insurance pools CivicRisk West (previously West Pool),
CivicRisk Metro (previously Metro Pool) and CivicRisk Mutual (previously United Independent Pools).

MMS operates as a mutual for the benefit of the members who are the sixteen Councils which make up our
combined CivicRisk membership being Blacktown, Blue Mountains, Burwood, Bayside, Cumberland, Camden,
Hawkesbury, Fairfield, Hunters Hill, Kiama, Lane Cove, Liverpool, Penrith, Parramatta, Shellharbour and
Wollongong.

The CivicRisk Self-insurance pools have been operating since the late 1980's when Councils could not purchase
insurance in the market and the Councils decided to work together to share the risks and self-fund their claims
costs.

MMS was created to move the administration staff and responsibilities from West Pool (now CivicRisk West) to a
separate entity that provides the services to all three pools. The creation of obligations rather than a change
in the underlying operations.

Council is a member of StateCover Mutual Limited and holds a partly paid share in the entity.

(iii) StateCover Limited

StateCover is a company providing workers compensation insurance cover to the NSW local government industry and
specifically Council.
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Council has a contingent liability to contribute further equity in the event of the erosion of the company’s capital base as a
result of the company’s past performance and/or claims experience or as a result of any increased prudential requirements
from APRA.

These future equity contributions would be required to maintain the company’s minimum level of net assets in accordance
with its licence requirements.

Council has provided no other guarantees other than those listed above.

(iv) Other guarantees

2. Other liabilities

The Council is involved from time to time in various claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including claims for
damages relating to its services.

(i) Third party claims

Council believes that it is appropriately covered for all claims through its insurance coverage and does not expect any material
liabilities to eventuate.

Fines and penalty income, the result of Council issuing infringement notices is followed up and collected by Revenue NSW.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

(ii) Infringement notices/fines

Council’s revenue recognition policy for such income is to account for it as revenue on receipt.

Accordingly, at year end, there is a potential asset due to Council representing issued but unpaid infringement notices.

Due to the limited information available on the status, value and duration of outstanding notices, Council is unable to determine
the value of outstanding income.
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

Risk management

Council’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including (1) price risk, (2) credit risk, (3) liquidity risk and (4) interest
rate risk.

The Council’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.

Financial risk management is carried out by Council’s finance section under policies approved by the Council.

A comparison by category of the carrying amounts and fair values of Council’s financial assets and financial liabilities
recognised in the financial statements is presented below.

Carrying value Carrying value Fair value Fair value
$ '000 2020 2019 2020 2019

Financial assets
Measured at amortised cost
Cash and cash equivalents 4,683 22,516 23,017 22,516
Receivables 1,364 1,096 1,365 1,096
Fair value through profit and loss
Investments
– Amortised cost 18,334 – – –
Total financial assets 24,381 23,612 24,382 23,612

Financial liabilities
Payables 4,486 3,737 5,412 3,737
Total financial liabilities 4,486 3,737 5,412 3,737

Fair value is determined as follows:

• Cash and cash equivalents, receivables, payables – are estimated to be the carrying value that approximates market
value.

• Borrowings – are based upon estimated future cash flows discounted by the current mkt interest rates applicable to
assets and liabilities with similar risk profiles, unless quoted market prices are available.

• Financial assets classified (i) ‘at fair value through profit and loss’ or (ii) ‘available-for-sale’ – are based upon quoted
market prices (in active markets for identical investments) at the reporting date or independent valuation.

Council’s objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital.

Council has an investment policy which complies with the Local Government Act 1993 and Minister’s investment order 625.
This policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it’s staff and an investment report is tabled before Council on a monthly basis
setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance as required by Local Government regulations.

The risks associated with the instruments held are:

• Price risk – the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether
there changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors
affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

• Interest rate risk – the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.

• Liquidity risk – the risk that Council will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
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• Credit risk – the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a financial
instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council – be it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high
credit ratings or capital guarantees.
 

(a) Market risk – price risk and interest rate risk
§Subnote§

The impact on result for the year and equity of a reasonably possible movement in the price of investments held and interest
rates is shown below. The reasonably possible movements were determined based on historical movements and economic 
conditions in place at the reporting date.

Increase of values/rates Decrease of values/rates
$ '000 Profit Equity Profit Equity

2020
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 230 230 (230) (230)

2019
Possible impact of a 1% movement in interest rates 225 225 (225) (225)
 

(b) Credit risk
§Subnote§

Council’s major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees.

Council manages the credit risk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent
debt recovery procedures. Council also encourages ratepayers to pay their rates by the due date through incentives.

The credit risk for liquid funds and other short-term financial assets is considered negligible, since the counterparties are
reputable banks with high quality external credit ratings.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry
sectors and/or regions.

The level of outstanding receivables is reported to Council monthly and benchmarks are set and monitored for acceptable
collection performance.

Council makes suitable provision for doubtful receivables as required and carries out credit checks on most non-rate debtors.

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

Credit risk profile
§Total§

Receivables – rates and annual charges
Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to secure a charge over the land relating to the
debts – that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and annual 
charges at higher than market rates which further encourages the payment of debt.

$ '000
Not yet

overdue
< 1 year
overdue

1 - 2 years 
overdue

2 - 5 years 
overdue

> 5 years 
overdue Total

2020
Gross carrying amount 1 392 29 22 31 475

2019
Gross carrying amount – 274 15 13 19 321
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§Total§

Council applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors to provide for expected credit losses
prescribed by AASB 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision. To measure the expected credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges debtors have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges

The loss allowance provision as at 30 June 2020 is determined as follows. The expected credit losses incorporate forward-
looking information.

$ '000
Not yet

overdue
0 - 30 days 

overdue
31 - 60 days 

overdue
61 - 90 days 

overdue
> 91 days 

overdue Total

2020
Gross carrying amount 528 122 22 21 215 908
Expected loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 9.00% 2.13%
ECL provision – – – – 19 19

2019
Gross carrying amount 105 417 1 4 267 794
Expected loss rate (%) 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 7.10% 2.39%
ECL provision – – – – 19 19
 

(c) Liquidity risk
§Subnote§

Payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk – the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer.

Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk – the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding
costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types, maturities and
interest rate structures. The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous
to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-lease liabilities and therefore the
balances in the table may not equal the balances in the Statement of Financial Position due to the effect of discounting.

payable in:

$ '000

Weighted
average
interest 

rate

Subject
to no

maturity ≤ 1 Year 1 - 5 
Years > 5 Years Total cash

outflows

Actual 
carrying 

values

2020
Trade/other payables 0.00% 2,711 1,771 – – 4,482 4,486
Total financial liabilities 2,711 1,771 – – 4,482 4,486

2019
Trade/other payables 0.00% 2,760 977 – – 3,737 3,737
Total financial liabilities 2,760 977 – – 3,737 3,737
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§Note/Subtotal§

Council’s original financial budget for 19/20 was adopted by the Council on 24/06/2019 and is unaudited.

§Subnote§

While the Income Statement included in this General Purpose Financial Statements must disclose the original budget adopted
by Council, the Local Government Act 1993 requires Council to review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so that it is
able to manage the various variations between actuals versus budget that invariably occur throughout the year.

This note sets out the details of material variations between Council’s original budget and its actual results for the year as
per the Income Statement – even though such variations may have been adjusted for during each quarterly budget review.

Material variations represent those variances between the original budget figure and the actual result that amount to 10%
or more.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

 2020 2020 2020
$ '000 Budget Actual -------- Variance --------

REVENUES

User charges and fees 1,550 1,982 432 28% F
The variance was an increase in restoration fees.

Other revenues 1,090 2,057 967 89% F
The material variance is the Bus Shelter sign-on fees which was not originally budgeted. The contract has been assessed in
accordance with the requirement of AASB15 Revenue from Contractors with Customers.

Operating grants and contributions 754 836 82 11% F
The material variances is due to an increase in received library grant and Crown Reserves improvement funding for weeds 
control.

Capital grants and contributions 338 765 427 126% F
The major contributions to the favourable variance include the developer contributions, Road to recovery and other 
contribution received.

Interest and investment revenue 530 376 (154) (29)% U
Decrease in interest rates due to the current economic climate and COVID-19 were far greater than could be predicted.

Net gains from disposal of assets 122 57 (65) (53)% U
Deferred replacement of plant and motor vehicle items.

EXPENSES

Employee benefits and on-costs 6,225 5,216 1,009 16% F
Staff complement has been down due to retirements and resignations with positions difficult to fill due to skill shortage. 

Materials and contracts 5,555 6,944 (1,389) (25)% U
Staff shortages have resulted in use of contractors to maintain services and used to complete capital works. Increased 
materials costs were required to support expanded capital program.

Other expenses 2,848 2,435 413 15% F
The variance is a decrease in street lighting, councillor expenses, telephone and printing.

Net losses from disposal of assets 210 – 210 100% F
The variance is due to infrastructure assets being renewal projects and not as a replacement.
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 2020 2020 2020
$ '000 Budget Actual -------- Variance --------

Joint ventures and associates – net losses – 127 (127) ∞ U
The equity reduction due to the insurance renew and recoveries to the impact of claim repayment

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities 1,846 3,082 1,236 67% F
The favourable variance is entirely due to fees for restoration and Bus Shelter.

Cash flows from investing activities (3,175) (20,915) (17,740) 559% U
This materials variance is due to less expenditure being incurred on Council's capital works program than originally 
forecasted for the financial year. This due to delays in projects being completed or commenced as originally anticipated. The
unexpended funds from the FY19-20 will be carried over to the FY 2020-21 to allow the program of works to be completed. 
Council is seeking to improve its return on investment activities by moving from short term deposits to medium term 
instruments.
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§Note/Subtotal§

The Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:

– Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for either recognition
and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a ‘level’ in the
fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

§Subnote§

 

(1) Assets and liabilities that have been measured and recognised at fair values
§Subnote§

Fair value measurement hierarchy

2020

Date of 
latest 

valuation

Level 1
Quoted

prices in
active mkts

Level 2
Significant
observable

inputs

Level 3 
Significant 
unobserv-

able inputs Total

Recurring fair value measurements
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant & Equipment 30/06/20 – – 578 578
Office Equipment 30/06/20 – – 113 113
Furniture & Fittings 30/06/20 – – 95 95
Operational Land 30/06/18 – 33,282 – 33,282
Community Land 30/06/17 – – 78,544 78,544
Building – Non Specialised 30/06/20 – – 12,151 12,151
Building – Specialised 30/06/20 – – 1,558 1,558
Other Structures 30/06/20 – – 9,432 9,432
Roads 30/06/20 – – 26,759 26,759
Footpaths 30/06/20 – – 17,604 17,604
Kerb & Guttering 30/06/20 – – 24,215 24,215
Other road assets 30/06/20 – – 2,161 2,161
Stormwater Drainage 30/06/20 – – 15,232 15,232
Total infrastructure, property, plant and 
equipment – 33,282 188,442 221,724

Fair value measurement hierarchy

2019

Date of 
latest 

valuation

Level 1
Quoted

prices in
active mkts

Level 2
Significant
observable

inputs

Level 3 
Significant 
unobserv-

able inputs Total

Recurring fair value measurements

§Total§

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Plant & Equipment 30/06/19 – – 588 588
Office Equipment 30/06/19 – – 142 142
Furniture & Fittings 30/06/19 – – 112 112
Operational Land 30/06/18 – 33,282 – 33,282
Community Land 30/06/17 – – 78,544 78,544
Building – Non Specialised 30/06/18 – 5,241 – 5,241
Building – Specialised 30/06/18 – – 10,272 10,272
Other Structures 30/06/17 – – 6,278 6,278
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2019

Date of 
latest 

valuation

Level 1
Quoted

prices in
active mkts

Level 2
Significant
observable

inputs

Level 3 
Significant 
unobserv-

able inputs Total

Roads 30/06/15 – – 44,612 44,612
Footpaths 30/06/15 – – 7,212 7,212
Kerb & Guttering 30/06/15 – – 13,429 13,429
Other road assets 30/06/15 – – 1,156 1,156
Stormwater Drainage 30/06/15 – – 7,806 7,806
Total infrastructure, property, plant and 
equipment – 38,523 170,151 208,674

Note that capital WIP is not included above since it is carried at cost.
 

(2) Transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies
§Subnote§

During the year, there were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value hierarchies for recurring fair value 
measurements.
 

(3) Valuation techniques used to derive level 2 and level 3 fair values
§Subnote§

Where Council is unable to derive fair valuations using quoted market prices of identical assets (ie. level 1 inputs) Council
instead utilises a spread of both observable inputs (level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (level 3 inputs).

The fair valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising level 2 and level 3 inputs are as follows:

This asset class comprises all of Council's land classified as Operational Land and Community Land under the NSW Local
Government Act 1993. The key unobservable inputs to the valuation are the price per square metre and market price. The
operational Land valuation was undertaken at 30 June 2018 and was performed by APV Valuers and Asset Management.
The Community Land valuation was performed by Valuer General at 1 July 2016.

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPP&E)

Where there is directly comparable market evidence, Level 2 valuation inputs were used to value land held in freehold title
as well as land used for special purposes which is restricted in use under current zoning rules.
Sales prices of comparable land sites in close proximity are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as property size.

Land assets that have no comparable observable market evidence were subsequently valued at the Level 3 valuation input
hierarchy using the professional judgement of a Registered Valuer adjusted for price per square metre of sales sites not in
close proximity which provided only a low level of comparability.

Council’s Plant, Office Equipment and Furniture & Fittings include:

• Plant: Truck, tractors, mowers
• Fleet: Cars, Utes
• Office Equipment: Computer hardware/software, document management
• Furniture & Fittings: Desks, chairs, window coverings

Plant, Office Equipment, Furniture & Fittings are valued at cost but are disclosed at fair value in the notes.
Level 3 unobservable inputs include consumption pattern, useful life, residual value and asset condition.

Buildings were valued by Assetic Valuers and Asset Management at 30 June 2020. Residential properties were valued on
Level 3 valuation inputs using comparable properties after adjusting for differences in attributes such as property size.

Specialised buildings were valued using the cost approach by estimating the replacement cost for each building by
componentising the buildings and subsequent useful lives. Level 3 valuation inputs required Professional Judgement to
estimate unobservable inputs such as residual value, useful life, consumption patterns, asset condition and remaining
service potential.
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This asset class comprises of Road, Kerb and Channel, Structure, Car Park, Bridge, Footpath, Traffic Signs, Stormwater
Drain, Stormwater Pit and were valued using Level 3 valuation inputs using the cost approach.

This approach estimates the replacement cost for each asset into component level with differing useful lives. While the unit
rates based on square metres or similar capacity could be supported from market evidence (Level 2), other inputs such as
estimated residual life, useful life, consumption patterns and asset condition required professional judgement and impacted
significantly on the determination of fair value. These assets were valued using Level 3 valuation inputs.
 

(4) Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)
§Subnote§

a. The following tables present the changes in level 3 fair value asset classes.
§Total§

$ '000
Plant and 

equipment
Office 

equipment
Furniture and 

fittings
Community 

Land
Building 

specialised

2019
Opening balance 432 91 123 78,544 10,122
Purchases (GBV) 442 128 8 – 38
Disposals (WDV) (180) – – – –
Depreciation and impairment (107) (76) (19) – (258)
FV gains – other comprehensive 
income – – – – 370
Closing balance 587 143 112 78,544 10,272

2020
Opening balance 587 143 112 78,544 10,272
Purchases (GBV) 188 63 – – 88
Disposals (WDV) (58) – – – –
Depreciation and impairment (139) (92) (17) – (267)
FV gains – other comprehensive 
income – – – – (912)
Closing balance 578 114 95 78,544 9,181
 

$ '000
Other 

structures Roads Footpaths
Kerb and 
guttering

Other road 
assets

2019
Opening balance 6,416 45,173 7,157 13,520 1,124
Purchases (GBV) 84 400 338 36 79
Disposals (WDV) – (6) (6) (5) (13)
Depreciation and impairment (222) (955) (277) (122) (34)
Closing balance 6,278 44,612 7,212 13,429 1,156

2020
Opening balance 6,278 44,612 7,212 13,429 1,156
Purchases (GBV) 113 393 299 177 406
Depreciation and impairment (204) (962) (283) (130) (58)
FV gains – other comprehensive 
income 3,246 3,217 1,656 (441) 57
Closing balance 9,433 47,260 8,884 13,035 1,561

§Total§

 

$ '000
Stomwater 

drainage Total

2019

§Total§
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$ '000
Stomwater 

drainage Total

Opening balance 7,819 170,521
Purchases (GBV) 101 1,654
Disposals (WDV) – (210)
Depreciation and impairment (114) (2,184)
FV gains – other comprehensive income – 370
Closing balance 7,806 170,151

2020
Opening balance 7,806 170,151
Purchases (GBV) 259 1,986
Disposals (WDV) – (58)
Depreciation and impairment (115) (2,267)
FV gains – other comprehensive income 7,282 14,105
Closing balance 15,232 183,917
 

c. Significant unobservable valuation inputs used (for level 3 asset classes) and their relationship to fair value.
§Total§

The following table summarises the quantitative information relating to the significant unobservable inputs used in deriving 
the various level 3 asset class fair values.

$ '000
Fair value 

(30/6/20) Valuation technique/s Unobservable inputs

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Community Land 78,544 Land values obtained from the NSW 

Valuer General
Land value and land area

Plant & Equipment 578 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Office Equipment 113 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Furniture & Fittings 95 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Specialised Buildings 9,182 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Other Structures 9,432 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Roads 47,260 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Footpaths 8,884 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Kerb & Gutter 13,035 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Other Road Assets 1,561 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

Stormwater Drainage 15,232 Cost approach Gross Replacement Cost, remaining 
useful life

 

d. The valuation process for level 3 fair value measurements
§Total§

The council engaged external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the infrastructure assets on a
regular basis. An annual assessment is undertaken to determine whether the carrying amount of the assets is materially
different from the fair value. If any variation is considered material a revaluation is undertaken either by comprehensive
revaluation or by applying an interim revaluation using appropriate indices.
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Changes in level 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each reporting period and discussed between the valuation team
and Council.

Community Land was valued based on the Land Value provided by the Valuer-General. Where the Valuer-General did not
provide Land Value an average unit rate based on the Land Value for similar community land was used.

As at 30 June 2018 a comprehensive valuation was undertaken for Operational Land was performed by APV.

As 30 June 2020 all Buildings revaluation was performed by Assetic and Non-Specialised Buildings have been valued at
market value from the sales evidence of similar or reference assets. Specialised Buildings have been valued using
depreciated replacement cost. The method is based on determine the replacement cost for each building by componentising
the buildings into significant parts with different useful lives and taking into account a range of factors.

Valuation of Roads was undertaken at 30 June 2020 by Assetic. This asset class comprises the Road Carriageway, Suburb
Markers and Traffic facilities. The road carriageway is defined as the trafficable portion of a road, between but not including
the Kerb and gutter. The Cost Approach using Level 3 inputs was used to value the road and other road infrastructure.
Valuation for the road carriagewage, comprising surface, pavement and formation were based on calculations undertaken
by the external valuation process.

Footpaths and Kerb & Gutter were segmented to match the adjacent road segment where possible and no further
componentisation was undertaken. Footpaths and Kerb & Gutter were originally mapped and the condition assessed based
on a physical inspection. Condition information is updated as changes in the network are observed through regular
inspections. Valuation of the Footpaths and Kerb & Gutter was undertaken at 30 June 2020.

Stormwater Drainage comprise pits, pipes, open channels, headwalls and various types of water quality devices. The Cost
Approach estimated the replacement cost for each asset by componentising the assets into significant parts with different
useful lives and taking into account a range of factors. While the unit rates based on linear metres of certain diameter pipes
and prices per pit or similar could be supported through extensive professional judgement and market evidence. Valuation of
the stormwater drainage was undertaken at 30 June 2020 by Assetic.
 

(5) Highest and best use
§Subnote§

All of Council’s non-financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

Key management personnel

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the council, directly or 
indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$ '000 2020 2019

Compensation:
Short-term benefits 1,280 1,211
Post-employment benefits 136 132
Total 1,416 1,343
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

Council is unaware of any material or significant ‘non-adjusting events’ that should be disclosed.
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§Note/Subtotal§
§Subnote§

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, Council has significant obligations to provide Section 7.11 (contributions towards provision or improvement of amenities or
services) infrastructure in new release areas.

It is possible that the funds contributed may be less than the cost of this infrastructure, requiring Council to borrow or use general revenue to fund the difference.
 
§Subnote§

Summary of contributions and levies

as at 30/06/19  as at 30/06/20
Contributions

received during the year

$ '000
Opening
Balance Cash Non-cash

Interest 
earned 
in year

Expenditure 
during 

year

Internal 
borrowing 

(to)/from

Held as 
restricted 

asset

Cumulative 
internal 

borrowings 
due/(payable)

Other 1,701 358 – 27 (492) – 1,594 –
S7.11 contributions – under a plan 1,701 358 – 27 (492) – 1,594 –

Total S7.11 and S7.12 revenue under 
plans 1,701 358 – 27 (492) – 1,594 –

Total contributions 1,701 358 – 27 (492) – 1,594 –
 

S7.11 Contributions – under a
plan

§Subnote§

CONTRIBUTION PLAN NUMBER 27 NOVEMBER 2013
Other 1,701 358 – 27 (492) – 1,594 –
Total 1,701 358 – 27 (492) – 1,594 –
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§Note/Subtotal§

 Amounts Indicator Prior periods Benchmark
$ '000 2020 2020 2019 2018  

1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding 
capital grants and contributions less operating 
expenses   1, 2 601
Total continuing operating revenue excluding 
capital grants and contributions   1

17,574
3.42% (4.24)% (3.09)%  >0.00%

2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all 
grants and contributions   1 16,738
Total continuing operating revenue   1 18,339

91.27% 85.49% 90.54%  >60.00%

3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions 19,619
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities 3,874 5.06x 8.08x 8.70x  >1.50x

4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest 
and depreciation/impairment/amortisation   1 2,979
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)

– ∞ ∞ 51.23x  >2.00x

5. Rates, annual charges, interest and 
extra charges outstanding percentage
Rates, annual and extra charges outstanding 502
Rates, annual and extra charges collectible 12,700 3.95% 2.97% 2.49%  <5.00%

6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year’s cash and cash equivalents plus all
term deposits 4,683
Monthly payments from cash flow of operating 
and financing activities

1,337
3.50
mths

18.85
mths

17.40
mths  >3.00

mths

§Subnote§

(1) Excludes fair value increments on investment properties, reversal of revaluation decrements, reversal of impairment losses on 
receivables, net gain on sale of assets and net share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method and includes 
pensioner rate subsidies

(2) Excludes impairment/revaluation decrements of IPPE, fair value decrements on investment properties, net loss on disposal of assets 
and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and associates using the equity method
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Report on the general purpose financial statements 

Council of the Municipality of Hunters Hill 

 

To the Councillors of the Council of the Municipality of Hunters Hill 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Council of the Municipality of Hunters Hill 

(the Council), which comprise the Statement by Councillors and Management, the Income Statement 

and Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2020, the Statement of 

Financial Position as at 30 June 2020, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 

Flows for the year then ended and notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and 

other explanatory information.  

In my opinion: 

• the Council’s accounting records have been kept in accordance with the requirements of the 

Local Government Act 1993, Chapter 13, Part 3, Division 2 (the Division) 

• the financial statements: 

- have been prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with the requirements of this 

Division 

- are consistent with the Council’s accounting records 

- present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Council as at 

30 June 2020, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended 

in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 

• all information relevant to the conduct of the audit has been obtained 

• no material deficiencies in the accounting records or financial statements have come to light 

during the audit. 
 

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report. 

 



 

 

 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the 

standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ 

section of my report. 

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the: 

• Australian Auditing Standards 

• Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)’ (APES 110). 
 

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110. 

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of 

New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by: 

• providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an 

Auditor-General 

• mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils 

• precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services. 
 

I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

audit opinion. 

Other Information 

The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 includes other information in addition to 

the financial statements and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The Councillors are 

responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’s Report, the other 

information I have received comprise the Special Schedules (the Schedules). 

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not 

express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local 

Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the Special Schedule - Permissible 

income for general rates. 

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other 

information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the 

financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other 

information, I must report that fact. 

I have nothing to report in this regard. 

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements 

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 

accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1993, and for such 

internal control as the Councillors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair 

presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s 

ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and 

using the going concern basis of accounting. 

  



 

 

 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

My objectives are to: 

• obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

• issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion. 
 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in 

accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or 

in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take 

based on the financial statements. 

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing 

and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf. The 

description forms part of my auditor’s report. 

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance: 

• that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically 

• on the Original Budget information included in the Income Statement, Statement of Cash Flows, 

and Note 21 Material budget variations 

• on the Special Schedules. A separate opinion has been provided on Special Schedule - 

Permissible income for general rates  

• about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial 

statements on any website where they may be presented 

• about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements. 
 

 

 

Unaib Jeoffrey 

 

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales 

19 November 2020 

SYDNEY 

 

http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf
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Ms Lisa Miscamble 

General Manager 

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter’s Hill 

PO Box 21 

Hunter’s Hill NSW  2110 

 

19 November 2020 

Dear Ms Miscamble 

 

Report on the Conduct of the Audit 

for the year ended 30 June 2020 

Hunter’s Hill Council 

 

I have audited the general purpose financial statements (GPFS) of Hunter’s Hill Council (the Council) 

for the year ended 30 June 2020 as required by section 415 of the Local Government Act 1993 (the 

Act). 

I expressed an unmodified opinion on the Council’s GPFS. 

This Report on the Conduct of the Audit (the Report) for the Council for the year ended 30 June 2020 

is issued in accordance with section 417 of the Act. This Report should be read in conjunction with my 

audit opinion on the GPFS issued under section 417(2) of the Act. 

Contact: Unaib Jeoffrey 

Phone no: (02) 9275 7450 

Our ref: D2023981/1742 



 

 

2 

INCOME STATEMENT 

Operating result 

 

  2020  2019  Variance 

  $m  $m  % 

Rates and annual charges 
revenue 

 12.3  11.4  
 

Grants and 
contributions revenue 

 1.6  2.4  
 

Operating result 
for the year 

 1.2  0.9  
 

Net operating result 
before capital grants and 
contributions 

 0.5  (0.4)  
 

 
 

The Council’s operating result ($1.2 million profit including the effect of depreciation and amortisation 

expense of $2.3 million) was $0.3 million higher than the 2018–19 result. The is mainly attributable to 

the following: 

- $1.0 million increase in rates and annual charges as approved in the Special Rate Variation 

- $1.0 million increase in other revenue as Council signed a bus shelter advertising contract 

with a media company 

- $0.8 million decrease in government grants received during the year 

- $1.0 million increase in materials and contracts costs as Council performed several new 

projects in 2019-20. 

The net operating result before capital grants and contributions (a surplus of $0.5 million) was 

$0.9 million higher than the 2018–19 result. The primary reason for the improvement is outlined 

above. 

Rates and annual charges revenue ($12.3 million) increased by $0.9 million in 2019–20 due to the 

Council’s approved Special Rate Variation, which increased general rates revenue by 8.8 per cent in 

2019–20. 

Grants and contributions revenue ($1.6 million) decreased by $0.8 million (33.3 per cent) in 2019–20 

due to the fact that during the financial year 2018-19 year Council received a capital grant for the 

Boronia Park upgrade from the State Government of $1.0 million. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

 

The Statement of Cash Flows 

illustrates the flow of cash 

balances and cash equivalents 

moving in and out of Council 

during the year and reveals that 

cash decreased by $17.8 million 

to $4.7 million at the end of the 

financial year 2019-20. This was 

mainly due to purchase of 

investment securities of $18 

million during the financial year 

2019-20. 

 

 
 

FINANCIAL POSITION 

 

Cash and investments 

Cash and investments 2020 2019 Commentary 

 $m $m  

External restrictions 4.8 4.8 • External restrictions include unspent specific 

purpose grants, developer contributions, domestic 

waste management charges and special levies. 

• Balances are internally restricted due to Council 

policy or decisions for forward plans including 

works programs. 

• Unrestricted balances provide liquidity for day to 

day operations. 

Internal restrictions 5.6 5.5 

Unrestricted 12.6 12.2 

Cash and investments 23.0 22.5 

 

PERFORMANCE  

Performance measures 

The following section provides an overview of the Council’s performance against the performance 

measures and performance benchmarks set by the Office of Local Government (OLG) within the 

Department of Planning, Industry and Environment. 
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Operating performance ratio 

The ‘operating performance ratio’ 

measures how well council contained 

operating expenditure within 

operating revenue (excluding capital 

grants and contributions, fair value 

adjustments, and reversal of 

revaluation decrements). The 

benchmark set by OLG is greater 

than zero per cent. 

The Council met the OLG benchmark 

for the current reporting period. This 

was primarily attributable to an 

increase in other revenues and rates 

revenue.  

 

 
 

Own source operating revenue ratio 

The ‘own source operating revenue 

ratio’ measures council’s fiscal 

flexibility and the degree to which it 

relies on external funding sources 

such as operating grants and 

contributions. The benchmark set by 

OLG is greater than 60 per cent.  

The Council exceeded the OLG 

benchmark for the past three years. 

The ratio indicates that Council 

generates adequate funds from own 

source revenues. 

 
 

Unrestricted current ratio 

The ‘unrestricted current ratio’ is 

specific to local government and 

represents council’s ability to meet its 

short-term obligations as they fall due. 

The benchmark set by OLG is greater 

than 1.5 times.  

The Council exceeded the OLG 

benchmark for the past three years. 

This ratio indicates that Council 

currently has $5.06 of unrestricted 

current assets available to service 

every $1.00 of its unrestricted current 

liabilities.  
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Debt service cover ratio 

The ‘debt service cover ratio’ 

measures the operating cash to 

service debt including interest, 

principal and lease payments. The 

benchmark set by OLG is greater 

than two times.  

The Council exceeded the OLG 

benchmark for the past three years.  

The Council has no external 

borrowings. 

 

 
 

Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage 

 

The ‘rates and annual charges 

outstanding percentage’ assesses the 

impact of uncollected rates and 

annual charges on council’s liquidity 

and the adequacy of debt recovery 

efforts. The benchmark set by OLG is 

less than 5 per cent for metro 

councils.  

The Council exceeded the OLG 

benchmark for the past three years.  

This ratio has been impacted primarily 

by the economic conditions resulting 

from the COVID-19 pandemic.  

 

 
 
 

Cash expense cover ratio 

This liquidity ratio indicates the 

number of months the council can 

continue paying for its immediate 

expenses without additional cash 

inflow. The benchmark set by OLG is 

greater than three months.  

The Council exceeded the OLG 

benchmark for the past three years.  

This indicates that Council had the 

capacity to cover 3.5 months of cash 

expenditure without additional cash 

inflows at 30 June 2020.  
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Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment renewals 

The Council had asset renewals of $3.2 million in the 2020 financial year as against $0.6 million in the 

prior year.  

 

Asset renewals in 2019-20 were carried out in accordance with Council’s capital works program. The 

majority of the asset renewals expenditure was within the other roads assets and Capital work in 

progress categories. 

 

Asset renewals were $3.2 million compared to the depreciation charge of $2.4 million which indicates 

the Council is renewing its assets faster than they are depreciating in the current year. 
 

OTHER MATTERS 

 

Impact of new accounting standards  

AASB 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and AASB 1058 ‘Income for Not-for-Profit 

Entities’ 

The Council adopted the new accounting standards AASB 15 ‘Contracts with Customers’ and 

AASB 1058 ‘Income of Not-for-Profit Entities’ (collectively referred to as the Revenue Standards) for 

the first time in their 2019–20 financial statements. 

AASB 15 introduces a new approach to recognising revenue based on the principle that revenue is 

recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer. AASB 15 impacts the timing and 

amount of revenue recorded in a councils’ financial statements, particularly for grant revenue. 

AASB 15 also increases the amount of disclosures required. 

AASB 1058 prescribes how not-for-profit entities account for transactions conducted on 

non-commercial terms and the receipt of volunteer services. AASB 1058 significantly impacts the 

timing and amount of income recorded in a councils’ financial statements, particularly for grant income 

and rates which are paid before the commencement of the rating period. 

The Council recognised a $1.0 million adjustment to opening accumulated surplus at 1 July 2019 on 

adoption of the new Revenue Standards. 

The Council disclosed the impact of adopting the new Revenue Standards in Note 15. 

AASB 16 ‘Leases’ 

The Council adopted the new accounting standard AASB 16 ‘Leases’ for the first time in their 2019–20 

financial statements. 

AASB 16 changes the way lessees treat operating leases for financial reporting. With a few 

exceptions, operating leases will now be recorded in the Statement of Financial Position as a 

right-of-use asset, with a corresponding lease liability.  

AASB 16 results in lessees recording more assets and liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position 

and changes the timing and pattern of expenses recorded in the Income Statement. 

The Council does not recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities as Council does not have 

material items which it leases. 

The Council disclosed the impact of adopting AASB 16 in Note 15 
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Legislative compliance 

My audit procedures did not identify any instances of non-compliance with legislative requirements or 

a material deficiency in the Council’s accounting records or financial statements. The Council’s: 

• accounting records were maintained in a manner and form to allow the GPFS to be prepared 

and effectively audited 

• staff provided all accounting records and information relevant to the audit. 
 

 

 

Unaib Jeoffrey 

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales 

cc: Clr Ross Williams, Mayor 

Mr Brian Robertson, Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee  

Maria Kenny, Director Finance and Corporate Strategy 

Jim Betts, Secretary of the Department of Planning, Industry and Environment 
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§Note/Subtotal§

Calculation Calculation
$ '000 Notes 2020/21 2019/20

§Subnote§

Notional general income calculation   1

Last year notional general income yield a 9,519 8,659
Plus or minus adjustments   2 b 14 2
Notional general income c = a + b 9,533 8,661

Permissible income calculation
Special variation percentage   3 d 0.00% 9.74%
Or rate peg percentage e 2.60% 0.00%

Plus special variation amount h = d x (c + g) – 844
Or plus rate peg amount i = e x (c + g) 248 –
Sub-total k = (c + g + h + i + j) 9,781 9,505

Plus (or minus) last year’s carry forward total l (13) 14
Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year m (1) –
Sub-total n = (l + m) (14) 14

Total permissible income o = k + n 9,767 9,519

Less notional general income yield p 9,754 9,519
Catch-up or (excess) result q = o – p 12 (1)

Plus income lost due to valuation objections claimed   4 r 1 1
Carry forward to next year   5 t = q + r + s 13 –

Notes

(1) The notional general income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding year. The statements are
reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years’ rates income.

(2) Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring during the year. 
The adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations’ as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916.

(3) The ‘special variation percentage’ is inclusive of the rate peg percentage and where applicable Crown land adjustment.

(4) Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the land value issued by
the Valuer-General.  Councils can claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in any single year.

(5) Carry forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require ministerial approval by order 
published in the NSW Government Gazette in accordance with section 512 of the Local Government Act 1993. The OLG will extract 
these amounts from Council’s Permissible income for general rates Statement in the financial data return (FDR) to administer this 
process.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Permissible income for general rates
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 

Special Schedule - Permissible income for general rates 

Council of the Municipality of Hunters Hill 

 

To the Councillors of the Council of the Municipality of Hunters Hill 

Opinion 

I have audited the accompanying Special Schedule – Permissible income for general rates (the 

Schedule) of the Council of the Municipality of Hunters Hill (the Council) for the year ending 

30 June 2021. 

In my opinion, the Schedule is prepared, in all material respects in accordance with the requirements 

of the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting – update number 28 

(LG Code), and is in accordance with the books and records of the Council.  

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report. 

Basis for Opinion 

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the 

standards are described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule’ section of my 

report. 

I am independent of the Council in accordance with the requirements of the: 

• Australian Auditing Standards 

• Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for 

Professional Accountants (including Independence Standards)’ (APES 110). 
 

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110. 

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of 

New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by: 

• providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an 

Auditor-General 

• mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of councils 

• precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services. 
 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 

audit opinion. 

 



 

 

 

Emphasis of Matter - Basis of Accounting  

Without modifying my opinion, I draw attention to the special purpose framework used to prepare the 

Schedule. The Schedule has been prepared for the purpose of fulfilling the Council’s reporting 

obligations under the LG Code. As a result, the Schedule may not be suitable for another purpose.  

Other Information 

The Council’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2020 includes other information in addition to 

the Schedule and my Independent Auditor’s Report thereon. The Councillors are responsible for the 

other information. At the date of this Independent Auditor’s Report, the other information I have 

received comprise the general purpose financial statements and Special Schedule ‘Report on 

infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2020. 

My opinion on the Schedule does not cover the other information. Accordingly, I do not express any 

form of assurance conclusion on the other information. However, as required by the Local 

Government Act 1993, I have separately expressed an opinion on the general purpose financial 

statements. 

In connection with my audit of the Schedule, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in 

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Schedule or my 

knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  

If, based on the work I have performed, I conclude there is a material misstatement of the other 

information, I must report that fact. 

I have nothing to report in this regard. 

The Councillors’ Responsibilities for the Schedule  

The Councillors are responsible for the preparation of the Schedule in accordance with the LG Code. 

The Councillors’ responsibility also includes such internal control as the Councillors determine is 

necessary to enable the preparation of the Schedule that is free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the Schedule, the Councillors are responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to 

continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 

going concern basis of accounting. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Schedule  

My objectives are to: 

• obtain reasonable assurance whether the Schedule as a whole is free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error 

• issue an Independent Auditor’s Report including my opinion. 
 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in 

accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. 

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or 

in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take 

based on the Schedule. 

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the Schedule is located at the Auditing and 

Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar8.pdf. The 

description forms part of my auditor’s report.  

  

http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar8.pdf


 

 

 

The scope of my audit does not include, nor provide assurance: 

• that the Council carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically  

• about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited Schedule on any 

website where it may be presented 

• about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the Schedule. 
 

 

 

Unaib Jeoffrey 

 

Delegate of the Auditor-General for New South Wales 

19 November 2020 

SYDNEY 
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§Note/Subtotal§

Asset Class Asset Category

Estimated cost
to bring assets
to satisfactory 

standard

Estimated cost
to bring to the 

agreed level of 
service set by 

Council

2019/20 
Required 

maintenance   a

2019/20
Actual

maintenance
Net carrying 

amount

Gross 
replacement 

cost (GRC)

Assets in condition as a percentage of 
gross replacement cost

$ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 $ '000 1 2 3 4 5

(a) Report on Infrastructure Assets - Values

§Subnote§

Council Offices/ Administration Centres 381 1 68 90 3,078 5,444 4.0% 44.0% 45.0% 7.0% 0.0%
Council Works Depot 294 – 26 63 509 1,042 14.0% 4.0% 53.0% 28.0% 1.0%
Council Public Halls 3,193 650 288 120 4,875 10,577 7.0% 18.0% 45.0% 24.0% 6.0%
Other Buildings 668 122 95 289 5,247 8,842 15.0% 45.0% 32.0% 6.0% 2.0%

Buildings

Sub-total 4,536 773 477 562 13,708 25,905 9.4% 32.1% 40.9% 14.4% 3.2%

Other structures 1,329 365 276 25 9,433 15,971 1.0% 30.0% 61.0% 6.0% 2.0%Other 
structures Sub-total 1,329 365 276 25 9,433 15,971 1.0% 30.0% 61.0% 6.0% 2.0%

Sealed roads 2,375 3,970 507 1,322 47,260 66,429 10.0% 55.0% 30.0% 5.0% 0.0%
Footpaths 276 7 187 242 8,884 13,244 5.0% 29.0% 63.0% 3.0% 0.0%
Kerb and guttering 107 124 242 13 13,035 18,625 0.0% 36.0% 64.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Other road assets – – – 6 1,561 1,873 78.0% 22.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Roads

Sub-total 2,758 4,101 936 1,583 70,740 100,171 8.8% 47.4% 40.1% 3.7% 0.0%

Stormwater drainage 112 131 394 174 15,232 23,329 17.0% 1.0% 82.0% 0.0% 0.0%Stormwater 
drainage Sub-total 112 131 394 174 15,232 23,329 17.0% 1.0% 82.0% 0.0% 0.0%

  TOTAL - ALL ASSETS 8,735 5,370 2,083 2,344 109,113 165,376 9.3% 36.8% 48.2% 5.1% 0.7%

(a) Required maintenance is the amount identified in Council’s asset management plans.

Infrastructure asset condition assessment ‘key’

1 Excellent/very good No work required (normal maintenance)
2 Good Only minor maintenance work required
3 Satisfactory Maintenance work required
4 Poor Renewal required
5 Very poor Urgent renewal/upgrading required

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Report on Infrastructure Assets
as at 30 June 2020
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§Note/Subtotal§

 Amounts Indicator Prior periods Benchmark
$ '000 2020 2020 2019 2018  

Infrastructure asset performance 
indicators (consolidated)   *

Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio   1

Asset renewals   2 1,212
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 2,132 56.85% 26.38% 36.36%  >=100.00%

Infrastructure backlog ratio   1

Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory 
standard 8,735
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 113,096

7.72% 8.23% 2.04%  <2.00%

Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance 2,344
Required asset maintenance 2,083

112.53% 37.27% 78.62%  >100.00%

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level
Estimated cost to bring assets to
an agreed service level set by Council 5,370
Gross replacement cost 165,376

3.25% 22.50% 3.23%  

(*) All asset performance indicators are calculated using classes identified in the previous table.

(1) Excludes Work In Progress (WIP)

(2) Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance  as opposed to
the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.

The Council of the Municipality of Hunter's Hill

Report on Infrastructure Assets (continued)
as at 30 June 2020
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Hunter’s Hill Council 
PO Box 21 
HUNTERS HILL NSW 2110
02 9879 9400
customerservice@huntershill.nsw.gov.au 


